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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRBES

Shanghai Landmark Center
LERERD

SLOWING ECONOMY AND TIGHT CREDIT HAVE
HURT CHINA’'S PROPERTY SECTOR.

A slowing Chinese economy adversely impacted China’s
property market in 2019. The U.S.-China trade war dampened
sentiment and the economy slowed given weaker demand
at home and abroad, with GDP rising only 6.1% in 2019, the
slowest in 29 years.

In addition, for much of 2019, China’s property sector has
been adversely affected by the government’s plans to control
property speculation, with the government emphasizing earlier
in 2019 that “houses should be for living in rather than for
speculation.” With that slogan, the government prohibited new
public bond issuances for developers that have been overly
aggressive in land auctions, and only allowed developers to
issue bonds to refinance existing maturing bonds. The China
Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission also tightened
trust financing.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

Because of a slower economy and the policy to control price
speculation, investment in real estate has slowed and new
home prices grew at their weakest rate in 17 months at the
end of the year in December, with average new home prices
in China’s 70 major cities rising only 6.6% in December
according to the National Bureau of Statistics, and significantly
less than the 9.7% gain in December 2018.

THE ADVERSE CONDITIONS HAVE IMPACTED
HKC’S RESIDENTIAL SALES AND COMMERCIAL
LEASING, RESULTING IN LOWER REVENUES
AND PROFITS.

HKC has not been immune from the market conditions.
Residential sales have been lower than expected. Partially
because of the poor sales environment but also partially
because the Group’s inventory of properties available for sale
is lower than in previous years, recognised residential property
sales dropped 36% to HK$497.7 million compared to the
previous year. Leasing revenues have increased by 6% as the
Group increases leasing revenues at its Landmark Center.
However, leasing uptake has been slower than expected given
the slowing economy and oversupply of office and commercial
property in Shanghai. Given the poor market environment, the
Group’s 2019 revenues declined 18% to HK$1,036.9 million
and net profit by 61% to HK$377.5 million compared to the
previous year.

CONTRACTED SALES INCREASED DURING THE
SECOND HALF OF 2019. HOWEVER, COVID-19
EPIDEMIC HAS ADVERSELY IMPACTED THE
MARKET AGAIN.

In the second half of 2019, there were some signs of recovery
as the U.S. and China agreed on a phase one trade deal to end
their trade war. The Group’s contracted sales in the second
half of the year increased 21% to RMB338.1 million compared
to the same period last year and 79% compared to the first
half of the year.

However, the emergence of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) epidemic has severely dampened market
sentiment again. GDP growth is expected to drop significantly
in the first half of 2020. Property sales offices were ordered
closed and restrictions on movement are hurting property
sales.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

HKC IS MONITORING MARKET CONDITIONS AND
IS WELL POSITIONED TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF
ANY OPPORTUNITIES THAT MAY ARISE AND HAS
BEEN BUYING BACK ITS SHARES.

Because of the slowing economy, tight credit for the property
sector, and virus-induced residential lockdowns that prevent
potential buyers from visiting showrooms or shopping malls,
the Group expects both leasing and residential sales revenues
for the property sector to be disappointing through the first
half of 2020. With limited revenue, many developers will face
pressure given high debt. Given this pressure, one major
developer has cut sales prices for its properties by 25% in
order to stimulate sales.

HKC, on the other hand, is better positioned. Unlike many
China property developers, the Group has not sought to grow
for the sake of growth or to simply increase market share.
Instead, the focus has been on return on capital. Given the
Group’s feeling that land prices were excessively high, we have
not recently been aggressive in land auctions. As a result, the
Group has a strong balance sheet, with a net debt to equity
ratio of only 4%. And instead of land bank purchases, HKC
has chosen to purchase back its deeply discounted shares,
thereby increasing shareholder value.

However, the Group remains positive on China and Hong
Kong over the long term and expects the government to
promote policies to support the economy. People will delay,
but will not stop their purchases of properties and will return
to the shopping malls when it is safe. If the epidemic can
be contained, the Group expects a rebound in the second
half of 2020. Lower interest rates and continued growth in
Shanghai will make the Group’s commercial properties more
attractive as suggested by Hongkong Land Holdings Limited
recent purchase of a parcel land in the West Bund for a
record RMB31 billion. The Group is carefully monitoring China’s
property market conditions, and is looking for profitable
opportunities. Although unsuccessful, HKC has recently
participated in two private and one government land tendering
in Hong Kong, and will continue to look for more opportunities
in 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

RENEWABLE ENERGY PROFITS RELATIVELY
STABLE.

CRE recorded HK$181.2 million in turnover. Although wind
resources were less than last year, lower overall curtailment
and new contributions from the Group’s Henan Songxian 74
Mega-Watt wind project led to a 21% increase in revenue as
compared to last year's HK$149.5 million. With continued effort
in controlling operational costs, the gross profit for the period
increased 32% to HK$68.6 million (2018: HK$51.9 million).

However, overall poor wind conditions in China during 2019
led to a decrease in net profit contribution from our associates
to the Group. The net profit from the associates was HK$48.9
million as compared to last year'’s HK$69.0 million. Because of
the lower profit contribution from our associates, net profit after
tax attributable to the equity holders of CRE for the year ended
31 December 2019 declined a modest 8% to HK$57.4 million.
However, with the completion of and increased contribution
from its Songxian windfarm in 2020, the Group expects
improvement for the year.
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

Shanghai Sinar Mas Plaza
BB EWES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019, turnover amounted
to HK$1,086.9 million, a decrease of 18% over turnover of
HK$1,270.0 million for the same period in 2018. Gross profit
for the period increased 6% to HK$682.4 million compared to
HK$640.8 million in 2018. Residential sales declined 36% to
HK$497.7 million given a much smaller inventory of residential
units available for sale and a tepid market environment.

Gross profit margins increased to 66% from 50% due to an
increase in the Group’s higher margin leasing revenues and
also to the reversal of construction cost accruals for residential
properties sold in previous years. The reversal, amounting
to HK$97.4 million, resulted after the Group negotiated the
final construction costs with the main contractors of the
completed residential projects. During the vyear, leasing
revenues increased 6% to HK$358.0 million as leasing
revenues increased from its newly opened Landmark Center in
Shanghai. The Group expects leasing will increasingly become
a greater percentage of the turnover mix as the Group seeks a
balanced approach between residential sales and commercial
and office properties.

In 2018, the Group recorded a one-time revaluation gain
of HK$696.5 million, primarily from the completion of its
Landmark Center. This gain was not repeated in 2019.
Following the completion of Landmark Center, management
has been negotiating the final contract sum with the
contractors, resulting in a reversal of construction accruals of
HK$215.9 million or 2% to the respective investment property
value during the vyear. The respective reversal has been
reflected as part of the valuation movement in the current year.
As a result, combined with lower residential sales and higher
finance costs given interest is no longer being capitalised
with the completion of its Shanghai commercial buildings, the
Group’s net profit declined 61% to HK$377.5 million. Basic
earnings per share for the period amounted to HK52.8 cents,
while basic earnings per share for the same period in 2018
was HK138.8 cents. Book value per share was HK$25.1.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DM

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total borrowings and
amount due to a shareholder amounted to HK$3,165.6 million,
representing a decrease of 8% when compared with the
equivalent figure of HK$3,442.8 milion as at 31 December
2018. Total borrowings and amount due to a shareholder as at
31 December 2019 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of
HK$300.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$385.5 million) and
Renminbi borrowings that are equivalent to HK$2,864.9 million
(31 December 2018: HK$3,057.3 million).

For the maturity dates of the Group’s outstanding borrowings
and amount due to a shareholder, HK$606.0 million are
repayable within one year or on demand, HK$2,032.1 million
repayable within two to five years, and HK$527.5 million
repayable after five years.

Most of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with floating interest rates.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had restricted cash
of HK$200.1 million (31 December 2018: HK$478.9 million).
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents (includes short-term
bank deposits) amounted to HK$2,293.5 million (31 December
2018: HK$2,601.9 million).

The Group did not use any financial instruments for financial
hedging purposes during the period under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum
financial structure that best reflects the long-term interests
of its shareholders and will actively consider a variety of
alternative sources of funding to finance its future investments.

Details of Charges in Group Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain assets worth HK$10,980.3
million (31 December 2018: HK$11,047.6 million) as security for
bank borrowings.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DM

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings plus
amount due to a shareholder divided by total equity as at
31 December 2019 was 20%, compared with 22% as at 31
December 2018. The Group’s net debt to equity ratio for the
same period was 4%, compared with 2% as at 31 December
2018. This ratio represents total borrowings plus amount due
to a shareholder minus cash and divided by total equity.

BUSINESS MODEL

The Group is a Hong Kong based property developer focusing
on investing and developing property projects in the Mainland
China and aims to develop high quality products to create
sustainable value for its shareholders.

The Group has a diversified property portfolio model
with investments in both residential projects for sale and
commercial projects mainly for rental income. The residential
projects currently are located in Tianjin, Jiangmen and
Shenyang. The Group’s commercial projects, which are
primarily office buildings and retail malls, are located in
prime business areas in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Beijing and
Guangzhou. The Group also has a commercial property in
Nanxun, Zhejiang Province.

Over the long term, the Group seeks to maintain a balance
between residential development for sale and commercial
investment properties for lease in order to create a sustainable
model with growth potential. Residential properties for sale
generate fast turnover, which should enhance return on
equity. Investment properties for lease, on the other hand,
create steady recurring income and cash flow as well as long
term capital appreciation, and are relatively immune from the
periodic restrictions on residential properties.

The Group adopts a very prudent financial policy, and given
the volatility of the property industry, HKC aims to maintain
a conservative net debt to equity ratio. While most of the
Group’s projects are in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), the Group may consider diversifying by investing in
other countries.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DM

The Group has also made an investment in the renewable
energy sector and believes shareholders may benefit from
China’s need to develop non-polluting sources of energy.

Business Risks

As a China property developer, the Group is subject to Chinese
government property policies, development, marketing, and
other execution risks.

Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s assets are in Renminbi. The Group
conducts a majority of its business operations in the PRC.
The major portion of revenue, expenses and debts are
denominated in Renminbi. Fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Renminbi would have limited impact on the Group’s operations.
However, depreciation of the Renminbi may have an adverse
impact on the Group’s book value.

Environmental Policies

The Group aspires to be a leading sustainable group, and has
therefore invested in the renewable energy sector, and uses
sustainable technologies in some of its property developments,
such as solar panels.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Recognised sales from residential properties in Tianjin,
Shenyang, and Jiangmen declined 36% in 2019 due to poor
sentiment, particularly during the first half of the year given a
slowing economy, turmoil from the U.S.-China trade war, and
government efforts to control property speculation. Sales also
declined because of reduced inventory of property available
for sale. However, market sentiment improved somewhat in
the second half of the year given the phase one agreement
to resolve U.S.-China trade war. As a result, contracted sales
increased 21% during the second half of 2019 compared to
the second half of 2018 and 79% compared to the first half
of the year. Meanwhile, revenues from property leasing are
increasing as the Group leases out its newly constructed
commercial properties in Shanghai.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DM

Investment Properties
Shanghai

Leasing revenues are expected to increase over the next
couple of years as the occupancy rates of the Group’s two
commercial buildings in North Bund increase. Moreover,
the area is set to gain from an increasing tendency of price
sensitive tenants to move from the central business district
(“*CBD”) to nearby fringe districts such as the North Bund.
Eventually, the North Bund, particularly given its proximity and
improving infrastructure, is expected to gradually merge with
the CBD.

However, leasing out of the buildings has been lower than
expected given the U.S.-China trade war dampened demand
and given the current oversupply of office buildings in
Shanghai. In 2020, the Grade A office inventory in Shanghai
increased by 5% to 13.3 million square meters. The citywide
vacancy rate is currently at 19.3% compared to 16.2% during
the previous year. As a result, rents in Shanghai have declined
by 0.9% during 2019.

Landmark Center

The Group has a 60% interest in Landmark Center, which is a
commercial complex consisting of two Grade A office towers
and a retail shopping mall, with the total volume of gross floor
area (“GFA”) of approximately 246,000 square meters. The
project is located at the junction of North Sichuan and Tiantong
Road, just a few minutes walk from the metro station (Tian
Tong Road connects metro line 10 and line 12), and is also
near the CBD and the historical Bund, and offers panoramic
views of the Huangpu River, the Bund, and Lujiazui. The
surrounding blocks are becoming an increasingly fashionable
area with the recent openings of MGM’s Bellagio Hotel, located
across the street, and the Bvlgari Hotel. The Peninsula Hotel
is also nearby.
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Landmark Center was completed in 2018 and is beginning to
generate significant leasing revenues. Leasing revenues rose
19% during the year to HK$196.8 million. Despite continued
oversupply of office space in the Shanghai market, Landmark
Center is benefitting from strong demand from well-known
domestic corporations and also multinational corporations
seeking to increase their market share in the local market.
Relaxation of restrictions on some industries previously
dominated by state owned companies such as the insurance
industry, has resulted in increased demand from companies
such as Metlife and AIA, who have both committed to
leasing out additional space at Landmark Center. However,
leasing uptake has been adversely impacted by surrounding
construction. As this construction is completed, we anticipate
that the area will become more attractive and leasing will
improve. The Group’s attributable value in Landmark Center is
valued at HK$4,012.1 million or HK$7.8 per share.

Sinar Mas Plaza

Sinar Mas Plaza, in which the Group has a 25% interest,
has a GFA of approximately 257,000 square meters (GFA of
approximately 410,000 square meters including basement) of
office, hotel, and retail spaces. Construction was completed
in 2018. The office tower offers highly panoramic views of the
Shanghai skyline. The hotel commenced operation in 2017
and is run by Marriott International, Inc. under the W brand.
While Sinar Mas Plaza is still loss making given interest costs
are no longer capitalised and the buildings are not yet fully
occupied, the Group anticipates that it will become profitable
as occupancy rates increase. The Group’s attributable value
in Sinar Mas Plaza is valued at HK$1,443.9 million or HK$2.8
per share.
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Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Beijing, and Nanxun

The Group’s property investment portfolio also includes
premium commercial and retail developments in Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Beijing, and Nanxun. In Shenzhen, the Group
operates Shun Hing Square and South Ocean Center. In
Guangzhou, the Group owns CITIC Plaza. In Beijing, the Group
operates a retail complex at Legation Quarters, the former
site of the United States diplomatic compound in Beijing. The
Group also owns a trading center for furniture and building
materials in Nanxun, Zhejiang Province. The Group is in the
process of expanding the complex. The 26,900 square meter
(including basement) expansion was completed in the fourth
quarter of 2019 and leasing is underway.

Residential Developments
Tianjin

Tianjin Eka Garden is on a prime location in the Nankai
District of Tianjin. The project consists of villas and high-rise
apartments with total GFA of approximately 150,000 square
meters. Construction for all three phases has been completed.

Tianjin’s contracted sales improved significantly in the second
half of the year, rising to RMB234.1 million compared to
RMB79.2 million in the first half of the year. For the full year,
contracted sales increased 48% year on year to RMB313.3
million. The primary reason is that the Group increased sales
of its service apartments.

The Group has completed master planning for its Tuanbo
Lake in Tianjin. The land area can support the development
of approximately 836,000 square meters of what the Group
believes will be a world class residential community and will
provide the Group a substantial development pipeline. The plan
is to develop the site over five phases. The preliminary master
plan prepared by the renowned design firm Chapman Taylor
has been completed. The Jinghai District Government has
commented favorably on the plan. However, formal approval
for this plan cannot be completed until the Tianjin City master
plan has been approved. This approval has been delayed as
the central government is requiring all regions to upgrade their
existing land and town/rural planning to land resources and
spatial planning (B + Z= 47 &l).
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Jiangmen

Jiangmen Eka Garden is a residential project with GFA of
approximately 189,000 square meters of villas and high-rise
apartments. The project is located on an excellent site along
a riverbank, within a few minutes walk to the Jiangmen/
Hong Kong ferry terminal, an international school, and a
marina club. The site is also close to the Guangzhu Intercity
Railway’s Waihai Station connecting Jiangmen to Guangzhou
and Zhuhai. Jiangmen is part of the Greater Bay Area which
is benefitting from improved infrastructure.

Sales were lower primarily because most of the Group’s
inventory has already been sold and now consists mainly
of villas. The Group recorded contracted sales of RMB71.6
million, a 4% decline compared to RMB74.3 million during
the same period in 2018 as remaining units are mostly higher
priced villas. During the period, the Group sold more higher
margin villas compared to 2018. As a result, gross margins on
recognised sales increased to 47% compared to 31% in 2018.

Shenyang

Shenyang Eka Garden, located in one of Shenyang’s prime
residential areas, is adjacent to Shenyang’'s Nanhu Park in
the center of city. The project, subdivided into sites A, B, and
C, comprises GFA of approximately 266,000 square meters
of villas, high-rise apartments, and a few commercial shops.
For site B (GFA: approximately 133,500 square meters),
construction of all four high-rise towers and villas have been
completed. Site C (GFA: approximately 57,500 square meters)
is divided into two portions. One completed portion consists
of two high-rise blocks (mainly for housing resettled residents)
with ground floor shops and a small communal block.

A second portion, with a GFA of approximately 6,400 square
meters (GFA of approximately 9,590 square meters including
basement) is now being developed into low-rise apartments.
Construction of the superstructure began in April 2019.
Construction is now substantially completed. Meanwhile, the
Group has essentially completed the resettlement for site A,
which will enable the construction of additional residential
properties with a GFA of approximately 75,000 square meters.
Given demand for commercial retail space has declined, the
Group is seeking approval to reduce the commercial ratio from
its current 30%. The project is expected to be completed by
the end of 2024.
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The market environment for Shenyang was subdued during the
period as a weak economy and purchase restrictions adversely
impacted demand. Upgrade demand for the Group’s larger
units were impacted by government restrictions on providing
mortgages for second units. Buyers currently prefer cheaper,
smaller units and most of these have already been sold, leaving
the larger apartments and villas still available for sale. For the
period, the Group recorded contracted sales of RMB142.1
million, a decrease of 41% compared to RMB239.2 million in
the same period in 2018.

Renewable Energy

All of the Group’s renewable energy projects are under its
subsidiary, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
(*CRE”). During the year, wind resources were less than last
year. However, lower overall curtailment and new contributions
from the Group’s Henan Songxian 74 Mega-Watt (“MW”)
wind project (“Songxian Phase | Wind Farm”) led to a 21%
increase in revenue to HK$181.2 million as compared to last
year's HK$149.5 million. With continued effort in controlling
operational costs, the gross profit for the period increased
32% to HK$68.6 million (2018: HK$51.9 million). However,
overall poor wind conditions in China in 2019 led to a decrease
in net profit contribution from our associates to the Group.
The net profit from the associates was HK$48.9 million as
compared to last year’s HK$69.0 million. As a result, CRE’s
net profit after tax attributable to the equity holders of
CRE declined 8% to HK$57.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 as compared to HK$62.3 million for the same
period in 2018. Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more
details.

PROSPECTS

Property

The Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) epidemic will
adversely impact the economy and the property sector in the
first half of 2020. Because of the crisis, all property sales
offices were shut down after Chinese New Year. However,
given the crisis, the government is seeking to stabilize the
economy, and recently announced a 50 basis point cut to the
Reserve Requirement Rate. In addition, the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission issued a circular requiring
banks to extend credit support to enterprises and individuals
affected by the epidemic. Assuming the epidemic can be
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contained, these and other to be announced policies should
help stabilize the economy and drive a recovery in the economy
and property sector in the second half of 2020. As a result,
the Group expects some property developers will be squeezed
for liquidity. Over the last couple of years, the Group has been
reluctant to purchase land bank at what it perceives to be at
inflated values. Property markets are inherently cyclical, and
the Group looks for opportunities that will increase shareholder
value rather than just building a large land bank. As a result, the
Group does not face the financial pressures that other property
developers face given the current severe credit tightening
environment.

Therefore, the Group views the current environment as an
opportunity rather than a crisis. The Group has a very strong
balance sheet, and unlike many property developers that
have a large net debt to equity ratio, the Group’s net debt to
equity ratio was only 4% as at 31 December 2019. In 2020,
the Group hopes to leverage its strong balance sheet to take
advantage of any opportunities that might arise given the
many companies that are seeking to deleverage. The Group
also intends to diversify and may look at opportunities outside
of China. Although unsuccessful, the Group has recently
participated in two private and one government land tendering
in Hong Kong.

For the first half of 2020, the Group expects the Shanghai
leasing market to remain difficult given the COVID-19 epidemic.
Assuming the epidemic can be contained, the Group expects
leasing revenues at its Landmark Center and Sinar Mas Plaza
to improve by the second half of 2020 as the government
stimulates the economy. These two properties will provide
the Group with steady cash flow over the long term and are
relatively immune from residential focused credit tightening
by the government. Leasing revenues should also improve
at Shun Hing Square in Shenzhen as the Group completed
renovation and the commercial complex is expected to attract
more quality tenants.

The Group believes that the sales outlook for residential
properties in the first half of 2020 will also remain subdued
given the epidemic, the weak Chinese economy and the
restrictions to control speculation in the property markets.
With regard to existing residential properties, the Group will
continue focusing on sales of its residential properties in
Tianjin, Shenyang and Jiangmen.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

It 55 BUR Ko E At T 2R 0 B0 BUR  B B AR
ERE YR_F_FTETIFFTHLER
FHETRER - Bt - AEEEF Y
XFEPNESRIUBIIEE - N&E
EBREBF BETHEBEEERAREEESHN
Wik - BHEMSAGAFARME  MAK
B R BRSRREE  MIFHERILEK
Mt iFEE - Bt EAMEEBRERRED
RFET - AEE W RE R E A E 3%
P TED [ O BA TS B )

FiA - REBBERIRBERERSE  MIkER
HoAEBENEEABEREBRRE BN
HEFEERALESNEMERER &
EER-ZT-NFT+ZA=+—HKFEE
BRI ERERA% MRZT_TF  ERNFZ

EEkEER AEEFENHAHERRE
WEEBERALEARHENEA#SE -
RNEBTEREFEERZ T/ B E
iﬁ@l\ SSRHE - BEREND  REEZR
TEAZEMNAAR—RBFAREEZ -
HRE -

AEERAN_Z-_FTFL¥F LBHEE
miﬁl%2019ﬂﬂkfaffl BB EE -
IR IG A 2 - BEE BT RIBE & -
SEBEH_Z_ZFTEF EEHORA

FHESNHSBEBBERNE - LAY
%H#EHEF%KEIhT#\F mfﬁimui B

HETRBNETREEEEREZRE
2NN SETEI 2N ﬂllfm,\fiﬁZﬁ%ﬁ&?ﬁ%—
BENSIEZEEHEP  HeRaREME

=
m °

ERRIE  PREERS MG EHETS
BRESHRHER ARERS-_F=-F
FEXFNEEMEHENSMATLE -
RIRENEENEMNS  AREHEEFT
RIEEERE  BEMIFANEEYE -



Management Discussion And Analysis
EEENWR DM

For future residential development, the Group is focusing on its
Tuanbo Lake land bank. The site can support the development
of approximately 836,000 square meters of residential
development and will be developed over five phases. However,
the Group needs to wait until the official completion of the
Tianjin City master plan before obtaining the necessary
development permits. In Shenyang, construction of additional
low-rise apartments has been substantially completed. The
Group has essentially completed resettlement at its site A and
is in position to begin development of this next 75,000 square
meters phase project.

In Nanxun, the Group is progressing on developing the
expansion of its Nanxun furniture trading center. This extension
area will be synergistic with the existing building materials and
furniture trading center that is adjacent to the land. The 26,900
square meters (including basement) complex was completed
in the fourth quarter of 2019. Leasing is how underway.

Renewable Energy

Curtailment is expected to continue declining in 2020 as new
transmission lines are completed and given the government
has implemented a new quota system in which each region
is now required to purchase a minimum amount of renewable
energy. The Group expects to complete the rest of its Songxian
windfarm project in Henan Province in 2020. Upon completion,
CRE’s net wind power generation capacity will have increased
by 9.8%. In addition, the Group has received approval from the
Luoyang Development and Reform Commission to construct
an additional 40 MW of wind power at Songxian. The Group is
now waiting to obtain the grid interconnection approval. CRE
is optimistic over this project given the curtailment rate in this
region is relatively low and wind tariff rate is relatively high.
Please refer to CRE’s annual report for more information.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately
230 employees across its operations in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. All employees are remunerated according
to the nature of their jobs, their individual performances, the
Group’s overall performance and prevailing market conditions.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEkeREERE

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
(Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, aged 49, has been appointed as Executive
Director of the Company since April 2004. Mr. OEl is the Chief
Executive Officer and the chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Company. Mr. OEl was appointed as the Chairman
of the Company on 3 December 2019. Mr. OEl was also
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 20 March 2019.
Mr. OEl also holds several directorships in other members of
the Group. Mr. OEl was educated in the USA, and obtained
a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics (with a minor in Electrical
Engineering) and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
Earlier in his career, Mr. OEl worked with Peregrine Securities
Ltd. and PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG Group in Seoul and
McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is a son of Mr.
OEl Tjie Goan, the former Chairman of the Company, who
resigned on 3 December 2019. Mr. OEl is also the sole director
and the sole shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. OEl is currently
an Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “CRE Group”), a subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 56, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since September 2015.
Mr. LEUNG also serves as a director of certain members of
the Group and Chief Financial Officer and a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG has been
appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
of CRE since 1 December 2008. He joined the CRE Group
in April 2008 as Qualified Accountant. He also holds several
directorships in other members of CRE Group and is a member
of the Executive Committee of CRE. Mr. LEUNG is a certified
practising accountant of CPA Australia. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business from RMIT University of Australia. He has
over 20 years’ experience in auditing and finance management
with an international audit firm and other major conglomerates
in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the CRE Group, Mr. LEUNG
was a director of internal control and risk management of the
Company.
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Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel
(Executive Director)

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel, aged 54, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014.
Mr. LEE also serves as a director of certain members of
the Group and a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. Mr. LEE is the Project Director of Property
Department of the Group since December 2010. Mr. LEE
holds a Professional Diploma in Quantity Surveying (Hong
Kong Polytechnic), a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) degree with
honours (City University, Hong Kong) and an MSc degree in
Construction Management (Reading University, UK). He is a
Registered Professional Surveyor, a member of The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. LEE has over twenty years
of project management experience in property developments
in Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group, Mr. LEE
was the General Manager (Property Projects) of the Property
Department of CITIC Pacific Limited.

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 59, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group and
is currently serving as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. WONG is the Investor Relations Director of
the Group and has been with the Group since 2007. He has
also served as a former Chief Financial Officer. Mr. WONG is
an Executive Director of CRE and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of CRE.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. He started his career as an
investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New York, where
he was involved in project finance. He moved to Hong Kong
with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of corporate
finance activities, and was involved in some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research
at Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research
efforts in Shanghai; and later as Vice President and head of
China Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining
the Company, Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer
for DVN Holdings Limited (now known as “Frontier Services
Group Limited”), where he was involved in fund raising and
introducing strategic investors to the company.
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Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, aged 59, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2004. Mr.
CHENG holds a Master of Science Degree in Economics,
Accounting and Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.) Degree
in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. His career
includes more than 20 years’ accounting and corporate
advisory services expertise in several listed companies in Hong
Kong. The co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm,
Mr. CHENG is the proprietor of a certified public accountancy
practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. CHENG is currently an independent non-executive director
of CSI Properties Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited,
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited, Chong Hing Bank
Limited, C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.,, CPMC Holdings Limited,
Top Spring International Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing
Investment Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings
Company Limited, Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited,
Somerley Capital Holdings Limited and Kidsland International
Holdings Limited, all being Hong Kong listed companies. Mr.
CHENG was an independent non-executive director of C.P.
Lotus Corporation, a company delisted from the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 28 October 2019.

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior (alias: Alberto Thomaz
DA ROSA Junior & 3l1H), aged 66, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr.
DA ROSA holds both Bachelor's and Master's Law Degrees
from The University of Hong Kong. He qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1980. He is currently a practicing solicitor and
a partner of Messrs. Cheung Tong & Rosa Solicitors, Hong
Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEE

Mr. DA ROSA is a fellow of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and an
accredited mediator with certain institutions in the U.K. and
Hong Kong.

Mr. DA ROSA is a non-executive director of TCL Electronics
Holdings Limited and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty
Group Limited, both of which are companies listed on The
Stock Ex-change of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. DA ROSA serves as a member of the Standing Committee
on Standards and Development of The Law Society of
Hong Kong. He held the following positions: member of
the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong from 2003
to 2009; member, deputy tribunal convenor and ultimately the
tribunal convenor of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal Panel
from 1998 to 2014; chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings)
Panel from 2009 to 2017; and member, Deputy Chairman and
finally the Chairman of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance) Panel from 2006 to 2020.

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David, aged 53, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since February 2020. Mr.
VOON graduated from University of California, Berkeley in
the United States of America with a degree of Bachelor of
Arts with a major in Economics in 1988. He obtained a Juris
Doctor degree from Harvard University and was admitted as
a member of the American Bar Association in 1991.

From 1993 to 2011, Mr. VOON worked at Goldman Sachs
(Asia) L.L.C. (“Goldman Sachs”) in Hong Kong, where he
has held the position of Partner since 2004 and Managing
Director since 2001. At Goldman Sachs, he was the firm’s
Head of Asia Private Wealth Management and served on the
firm’s Asia Management Committee since 2006. Mr. VOON
has broad and extensive management experience in Goldman
Sachs, having led businesses in the firm’s Equities and Fixed
Income, Currencies and Commodities divisions from 1996 to
2006, including their Equity Products Group and Derivatives
Structuring business. He served in the firm’s Legal Department
from 1994 to 1996. Prior to joining Goldman Sachs, Mr. VOON
was an associate attorney in Shearman & Sterling LLP in New
York.
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Since April 2013 and March 2013, he has been a vice
chairman of The Manhasset Bay Group, Inc. and TransAsia
Private Capital Limited respectively, and is responsible for
acting as strategic ad-visor on business issues.

Since August 2015, he has been the chairman and a director
of Oski Capital Partners Limited (“Oski Capital”), where he
is the co-founder and key decision-maker of the company.
Oski Capital co-invests with entrepreneurs, international family
offices and Asian high net worth individuals in acquiring
strategic equity positions in undervalued, mostly private,
businesses that seek to capture cross-border opportunities in
emerging technology and demographic trends.

Since July 2018, he has been the chief executive officer of
LabyRx Immunologic Therapeutics Limited, and is responsible
for managing the overall business, with focus on strategic
timelines, financing, personnel and risk control issues.

Mr. VOON is currently an independent non-executive director

of DLC Asia Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices and its board
of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that
it is essential to safeguard the interests of its shareholders
(the “Shareholders”), customers and employees and uphold
accountability, transparency and responsibility of the
Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the
year ended 31 December 2019, save for the deviations with
considered reasons as explained stated in the following
relevant paragraphs.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2019 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises seven
Directors with four Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the Shareholders
as a whole. In addition, the Company had maintained three
Independent Non-executive Directors which formed at least
one-third of the full Board. Biographical details of the Directors
and their relationships, where applicable, are set out in pages
20 to 24 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with
the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them are
independent.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board Composition (continued)

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David, who was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
1 February 2020, has provided to the Stock Exchange the
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should
be separate and performed by different individuals. Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan, the father of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (CEQ), resigned
as the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) and the Non-
executive Director, and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric was appointed as
the Chairman with effect from 3 December 2019. Under the
current organisation structure of the Company, the functions
of CEO are performed by the Chairman, Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
with support from the other Executive Directors. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company, and has been effective in discharging its
responsibilities satisfactorily and facilitating the Company’s
operation and business development. The Board will review the
structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet the
principle and will consider segregation of the roles of chairman
and CEO if and when appropriate.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs
and formulating business strategies with a view to maximizing
its financial performance and Shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers

to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference
or the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company
as defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved
for the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the
terms of reference of the Executive Committee and those
not specifically reserved for the Board are delegated to the
Executive Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.

Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organizations and other significant commitments. Such
changes will be updated and published in the annual and
interim reports as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.
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TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then put recommendations to the
Board for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
are set out under the heading of “Nomination Committee”
below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”), the
nearest to but not less than one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation but are eligible for re-election by
Shareholders at the annual general meeting provided that every
Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. New appointments to the Board are also subject
to re-election by Shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting (in case of an addition to the Board) or at the
next following general meeting (in the case of filing a casual
vacancy).

All Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed with
no specific term, but are subject to the aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term pursuant to code
provision A.4.1 of the CG Code. The rotating Directors who
are subject to retirement and re-election at the 2020 annual
general meeting are set out on page 67 of this Annual Report.
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CEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set
up various Board Committees, among others, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are available on both the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

HESGRYE SERHESHEYA
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors EEHE Exg BHRZEY YHEEE REZEE
Executive Directors HBITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric BB%A a4 /oMo H) 1Mo ) g jqNote )
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel TERLE 4/4 1/2Note M) N/A i A N/A R iE A
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BHEREAE 4/4 2,/2Note Hi3) N/A REE - N/A T8
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel REREAE 4/4 2,/2Note Hi3) N/A REE - N/A T8
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. OFI Tjie Goan BEEEL 04 NATER NATER  NATER

(resigned on 3 December 2019) (R=ZF—-NF+=HA
ZHEF)

Independent Non-executive Directors B HITES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EREEE

(resigned on 1 February 2020) (RZF-ZFF
—H—HFHT)
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo B E ANk A
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior — ZHl1E %4
Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David REREE
(appointed on 1 February 2020) (R=F=-FF
ZA—HEZE)

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as
invitees.
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4/4 2/2 11 11
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees

(continued)

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board
papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised
of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman and CEQ prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to
the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after
the date of the meeting. All Directors have access to the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the
board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters.

The Board continues to maintain a culture of openness and
constructive relations between Executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors. In the absence of the Chairman, the
CEO is in the position to facilitate the effective contribution
of Independent Non-executive Directors, and ensure their
views are communicated and heard by the Board. During
the year, the Chairman did not hold any formal meeting with
Independent Non-executive Directors without the Executive
Directors present (as provided for in code provision A.2.7 of
the CG Code) due to the tight schedule of the Chairman and
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
four members namely Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas
DA ROSA, Junior and Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David, all of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric, who is the Chairman and CEO. Mr. VOON Hian-fook,
David was appointed as a member on 1 February 2020 upon
the resignation of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico on the same
day.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management, and reviewing their remuneration packages.
In arriving at its recommendations, the Remuneration
Committee will consult with the Chairman and CEO whenever
it thinks fit and take into consideration factors such as the
remuneration paid by comparable companies, skill, knowledge,
time commitment and responsibilities of Directors. The
Remuneration Committee has the responsibility, powers and
discretion to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting to review, inter alia, the remuneration
policy and structure of Directors including those retired and
re-elected at the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The attendance records of each member
at the meeting of the Remuneration Committee held during
his term of office are set out on page 29 of this Annual
Report. Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four
members namely Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA
ROSA, Junior and Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric,
who is the Chairman and CEO. Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David
was appointed as a member on 1 February 2020 upon the
resignation of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico on the same day.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year, and the attendance details of each member are set
out on page 29 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;
° reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and sufficient number of independent
directors to maintain a balanced board;

° making recommendation to the Board relating to the
succession of Chairman;

° making recommendation to the Board relating to the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors; and

° reviewing the progress report from the management in
relation to the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REZES

ARRERYIRREZE S UHFTEEAE R
EHE - RRLZEChR —EBUIENITES
BIEE BRENAKE D3 ABIEH
TEFEHFMELE  BYBLELLERE
AR ERFTRESEMLE - BBREL
AR E-_TF_A-—HEZTAKE B
ERAEEHBTINERRELE -

REZECBEEVEBFRIESSERE -
ABREK  MEBEGEAESZREAN
AR IERITES 2B A RBRA R
NRMEERBEMBYEESELNE M
PHESSHRLER - REZESNEFARY
BIT—RER SHEBZHEFABHNRELE
R 298 -

FR - REZEGETZTIHERBRBRATRE:

WM EEE2RE - ABKMEK:

. R EFREQCRE:

. FEBIENTEFZBIME BT
EFYERERN UERESEY
F

s HMEIFEFCZENEFSFLEHHEBE
"

. MEFETERTEEANESSELEHE
BER X

. R EEEREFEZ LB RE L
ZEEHRE -

AR R R 8@ REARERIAET
HBE REZBEEVNHEARERSREY
BEER  UETRE  BRHAQFAE -



Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. All appointments of the members of the Board are
made on merit, in the context of the skills and experience the
Board as a whole requires to be effective. In designing the
Board composition, the Company is committed to equality of
opportunity in all aspects and does not discriminate on the
grounds, including but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age,
cultural and religious background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommended them to the Board for adoption. During
the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the existing
composition of the Board and accepted the progress report
from the management in relation to identified business skills
and experience required and their ranking and the action
plan for recruiting new Board member. It also monitored the
review of the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its
commitment to the principle of equal opportunity.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 17 June 2019.

Below is the summary of the Nomination Policy:

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
selection and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors, and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Policy set out the procedures,
process and criteria for the Nomination Committee in making
any such recommendations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

1.

Principle and Guidelines

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall consider a variety
of factors including without limitation the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

i. The Board Diversity Policy.
ii. Reputation for integrity.

iii. Accomplishment and experience that are relevant
to the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

iv. Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s affairs.

V. The ability to assist and support management and
make significant contributions to the Company’s
success.

Vi. Compliance with the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Main
Board Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive director.

vii.  Any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s) of
the Board shall be made in accordance with the Bye-
laws and other applicable rules and regulations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

2. Nomination Procedures

21

2.2

Procedures for Appointment of New Director

If the Board recognizes the need to appoint a
new Director, the following procedures should be
adopted:

The Nomination Committee identifies
candidates in accordance with the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee evaluates the
candidates and recommends to the Board
the appointment of the appropriate candidate
for directorship.

The Board decides the appointment based
upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee.

The key terms and conditions of the
appointment should be approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

Procedures for Re-election of Director at
General Meeting

The Nomination Committee reviews the
overall contribution to the Company of the
retiring Director.

The Nomination Committee also reviews
and determines whether the retiring Director
continues to meet the selection criteria set
out in the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Committee share
recommend to the Board which shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders
in respect of the proposed re-election of
Director at the general meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

2.

Nomination Procedures (continued)
2.3 Procedures for Nomination by Shareholders

i. The Procedure for Election of Directors for
Shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director is
available on the Company’s website.

ii. The Nomination Committee shall evaluate
such candidate based on the selection
criteria set out in the Nomination Policy
and to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship and where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee shall
recommend to the Board which shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders
in respect of the proposed election of
Director at the general meeting.

The Company Secretary shall ensure all disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules regarding the
appointment or re-election of Directors are duly
complied.

Review of the Policy

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its
continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.
The Board reserves the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the
Nomination Policy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference which have been updated from
time to time to align with the code provisions set out in the
CG Code. The Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director, comprised three members namely Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr.
VOON Hian-fook, David, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David was appointed
as a member on 1 February 2020 upon the resignation of Mr.
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico on the same day.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognized corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external
auditor. The attendance details of each member are set out
on page 29 of this Annual Report. The major work performed
by the Audit Committee during the year included reviewing
interim and annual financial statements, continuing connected
transactions, internal audit reports on the internal controls
and risk management matters, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as reviewing and
recommending re-appointment of external auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
designated executive who is accountable to the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
unlawful activities, or activities violating the Group’s Code
of Conduct and Business Ethics or otherwise amounting
to serious improper conduct and to ensure protection from
possible retaliation against any of our employees who has
reported concerns in good faith.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Executive Committee with
the key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities,
and oversee the operating performance and financial position
of the Group and all strategic business units. The Executive
Committee comprises all Executive Directors and chaired by
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, co-ordinate overall resources, made financial
and operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and
develop investment strategy and policies of the Company and
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors
and other executives of the Company, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction
as adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting
the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors
and executives meet regularly to review the performance of
the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 84 to
92 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the
auditor amounted to approximately HK$4.8 million and HK$1.3
million respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of
interim results review services and tax advisory services.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

For the year ended 31 December 2019, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The training
programmes included seminars and courses, reviewed the
updated laws, rules and regulations and materials on topics
relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities. A summary
of training received by Directors during the year ended 31
December 2019 according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:
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Training on corporate governance, regulatory

development and other relevant topics

TtEER EERER

Name of Directors EEHE Hth A8 B8 = 8 =2 1Z 7
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric = M5 A& v
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FEREL v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy =ERLA v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel REREE v
Non-executive Director kHITES
Mr. OEl Tjie Goan BsEREE

(resigned on 3 December 2019) (RZF—NFA+ZH=HFFF) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUEHITES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BEELLE

(resigned on 1 February 2020) (RZFZFFZH—HFT) v
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo B[R AN ST A v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior me\ AL E v
Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David mEEEE N/A

(appointed on 1 February 2020) (RZFZFF-ZH—HEZF) i A

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness,
while management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems to manage risks and compliance.

Risk Management Model
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The Board/Audit Committee EEEg EXZES

Senior Management Sk EEE
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*

(Own and Manage Risks)

(Oversee Risks)

(Independent Assurance)

(RIEREERE) (EEZmE ) (BIRFE)
Internal Financial Control Bf7& g5 4%
Management Control
Controls : Internal Audit
Measures o A
e B Risk Management [&| & & 1% Pl
& HE Compliance & (& &

As the first line of defense, operational management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
for executing risk and control procedures on day-to-day
operation. Management of Head Office establishes various risk
management and compliance functions to provide direction on
the importance of risk management and monitor the first line
of defense controls. The Internal Audit and Risk Management
(“IARM”) Department reviews and provides independent
assurance on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [& B & T8 & A 0 B5 28 (@)

(continued)

Internal Control Framework A B EE AR 4R

The Group has in place an integrated internal control 7K % B & 3 # COSO (Committee of
framework that is consistent with the COSO (Committee  Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission) Commission)iE 28— 7 4R & N EPESfE 2848
framework as illustrated below: R

Control Environment
EERRIE

Set the right tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.
Y ASBIERNELAER UNRtBRENEZEZIHLERZM -

Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, delegation of authority and responsibility.
MEBART  BREE BIXeh BERERETHEZEE -

Foundation for all other components of internal control.

ERMBEMATEZERBY OER -

Risk Assessment

BB 3P £

Identification, evaluation and analysis of the key risks underlying the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, including the risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment; conducted
regularly, forming the basis for determining control activities.

ERBER FEROMHREFASEERAFANIERR(BREHEEENKERFZCNAR)
I PA A A ) FE B4R VR B O A R o

Control Activities

BEEER

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions
are taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.

HEBREER BEEEBZETRIBSAATAMKBSGEZETHRES G EAEEERARZA

% -

Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [& B & T8 & A 0 B5 28 (@)

(continued)

Internal Control Framework (continued)
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Information and Communication
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to the Group.

° Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.

° Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.

° Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating
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Monitoring
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° Management and supervisory activities.
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o Internal audit activities.
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° Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good
business ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal
Code of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated
to all staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and
control responsibility into our culture and regard them as
the foundation of our risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to monitor the Group’s ability to achieve its business
objectives; and can provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Control Environment (continued)

We maintain an effective internal audit function, the IARM
Department, whose main features include:

(i) independence from operational management;

(i) fully empowered auditors with access to all data and
every operation of the Group;

(i) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and to prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units
regularly review and analyse the key risks associated with
achieving the objectives of their particular departments,
activities and businesses to provide reasonable assurance that
internal controls are both embedded and effective within their
areas of accountability.
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TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Control Processes

The Board maintains sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems through the following:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules
and the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The IARM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEO, and carries out independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the
Audit Committee. Key audit findings and implementation
progress of internal control recommendations are
regularly reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. Head of the IARM Department also serves as
the contact person under the Whistleblowing Guideline
of the Company.
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(vi)

(vii)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and submit to the Audit Committee
a certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope
of this review covers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the IARM Department on the performance of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified
in the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once each year and reports
to the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems effective and adequate for the year ended 31
December 2019. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the operational, financial, and compliance controls and
risk management function of the Group were identified.
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TEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
required.

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(i) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv)  identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons
and respond to external enquiries.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and CEO on
Board or committee matters. All Directors have direct access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary for the
ongoing discharge of their duties and responsibilities. For
the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
Secretary took more than 15 hours of relevant professional
training organized by the Stock Exchange and various
professional bodies.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the
Company at the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. During the year, there was no alteration on the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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TEERBRE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 17 June 2019.

Below is the summary of the Dividend Policy:

The Dividend Policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to
the declaration of dividends and to allow Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate
reserves for the future growth of the Group.

The Board shall consider the following factors before proposing
and declaring dividends:

i. the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

ii. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

iii. the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on
equity and the relevant financial covenants;

iv. the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

V. general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

vi. any other factors that the Board deem relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the
Bye-laws and any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time
and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy. There can
be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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TEERBRE

GENERAL MEETINGS

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 20 May 2019 (the “2019 AGM”). The CEO chaired the
2019 AGM in the absence of the then Chairman due to prior
business engagement. The external auditor attended the 2019
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2019

N
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AGM is set out in the table below: BREFIAS
2019 AGM
Attended
HE-Z—-I&F
Name of Directors EENE BREFKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric = M5 A4 v
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FEREE v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EERLE v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel REHRTE v
Non-executive Director kHITEE
Mr. OEl Tjie Goan mEREE x
(resigned on 3 December 2019) (R=ZF—NFF=H=HFF)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYEHITES
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico EBREELE v
(resigned on 1 February 2020) (RZF=ZZFF = H—HFHF)
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo R AN % v
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EIAEE v
Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David m EAE N/A
(appointed on 1 February 2020) (RZF-ZFF-H—HEZT) i A

Note:

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director are required to attend general meetings pursuant
to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. All Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director were
encouraged to attend the general meetings to inter-face with
Shareholders but the Non-executive Director was not in a
position to attend the 2019 AGM due to overseas commitment
and pre-arranged business engagements.
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TEERBRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Under section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any members
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition
(“Requisitionists”).

The written request must state the resolution, preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to
in the proposed resolution for the Company’s reference
and consideration, signed by the all Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company will convene a special general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act
of Bermuda, either any number of members representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the members, or not less than one hundred members
(“Requisitionists”) can submit a written request to move
a resolution at an annual general meeting or to circulate
a statement of not more than one thousand words in
relation to business to be dealt with in any general
meeting to members of the Company.

If a resolution is proposed by the members, the
written request must state the resolution (preferably
accompanied by a statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution), signed by all the Requisitionists
concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company and preferably with a copy of
such request sent to the head office of the Company
at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before
the meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution, and not less than one week in the case
of any other requisition.

The request will be verified by the Branch Share
Registrars. Upon the Share Registrars’ confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, and the Requisitionists
have deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s expenses in giving effect thereto, the
Company will send the notice of resolution or the
statement to its members.

Procedures for election of directors of the
Company

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose
a person for election as a Director are available
and accessible on the Company’s website at www.
hkcholdings.com.
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TEERA®RS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
Shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
Shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to Shareholders in accordance with statutory
and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties
recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available on the Company’s website
at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the Shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual Directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The CEO
attended the 2019 AGM in the absence of the then Chairman
due to his prior business engagement. Other members of the
Board, the Chairmen of the relevant Board Committees and
the external auditor of the Company also attended the annual
general meeting to inter-face with, and answer questions from
the Shareholders.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post: 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
E-mail: info@hkcholdings.com

Fax: (852) 2722 6266
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERHS

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, and with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is pleased to present
its annual Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “ESG Report”) with disclosure reference made to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) as contained in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The ESG Report covers the
financial year ended 31 December 2019.

This ESG Report describes the Group’s environmental, social
and governance management approach, strategy, priorities
and objectives. It explains how the Group complies with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.
This ESG Report covers the Group’s governance on the
Environmental and Social aspect. The corporate governance
aspect is addressed in more detailed in the Corporate
Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Through China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”),
the listed subsidiary of the Company, the Group has been
one of the earliest investors in China’s renewable energy
sector since 2006. The Group has been heavily involved in
environmental protection and support for the low carbon
development of China. CRE strives to continuously improve
and evolve in the renewable energy sector to adapt to the
changing expectations of our stakeholders while balancing the
needs of our shareholders, environment and the communities
we operate in.

CRE has eight wind farms and one distributed solar
project under operation with a total gross power generating
capacity of 700 Mega-Watt in Hebei, Heilongjiang, Gansu,
Inner Mongolia, Henan and Zhejiang provinces. Most of our
projects are located in remote northern regions. They greatly
benefit the economic development of the local areas through
investment, by reducing local pollution and carbon emissions,
and by contributing to the local community through the hiring
of local staff who are given fair market-based remuneration
packages. In 2019, CRE’s operating assets complied with all
local environmental related regulatory requirements. With a
total electricity generation of 1,360.5 Giga-Watt-hours (“GWh”)
(2018: 1,362.2 GWh), we have reduced approximately 442,000
tons (2018: 443,000 tons) of coal consumption and 1,053,000
tons (2018: 1,054,000 tons) of carbon emission. For our
Songxian Phase | Wind Farm which was still under construction
in 2020, we will closely monitor the environmental performance
of the construction sites through regular measurements, site
supervision, and on-site audits by both CRE internal staff and
independent parties.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

As a responsible property developer, the Group strictly
complies with laws, regulations and good practices regarding
environmental protection. During the construction stage, the
Group has ensured that its contractors have complied with the
laws and contractual requirements in respect to environmental
protection and construction safety standards. The Group also
endeavours to minimize environmental impact as early as the
design stage by adopting eco-friendly and energy efficient
designs.

Emissions

Pollutants are generated in the process construction of all
property development projects. These mainly include: (i)
various kinds of machinery noise; (i) dust and exhaust, and
also gas emitted from organic waste left during renovation; (iii)
wastewater generated from construction sites and domestic
sewage generated by construction workers; and (iv) remaining
waste material left in the construction site and garbage
disposed of by construction workers. All these will adversely
affect the surrounding environment. Corresponding pollution
prevention and environmental management measures have
been taken to reduce such impact.

Noise Emissions

Construction noise come from various kinds of machinery such
as foundation piling machines, excavators, and bulldozers. In
order to reduce the impact to neighbours, the construction
teams are required to take the following measures:

° Operation of machinery with high noise levels are
prohibited during breaks, noon time and night time; and
any extension of operations due to special circumstances
must be reported and approved by the relevant
department.

° Use mechanical equipment with low noise levels or those
equipped with attenuators as much as possible.

° The entrances and exits for the construction trucks at

the construction sites should be arranged at places away
from the sensitive area.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R -HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Emissions (continued)
Waste Gas Emissions

Waste gas emission during operation includes mainly the dust
resulting from construction, the exhaust gas emitted from
various construction machinery and transportation vehicles,
and organic waste gas generated during renovation. To
minimize the impact of the dust to the surrounding atmosphere,
the Group has adopted the following measures:

° Construction sites should be 100% enclosed, and road
surfaces within the construction sites should be 100%
hardened.

° Certain wetness should be maintained during the
excavation and drilling process by watering the operation
surface; watering should be carried out regularly on loose
and dry soil in the construction site; and proper watering
should be carried out on the dry surface of soil when
backfilling the soil.

° Dedicated locations should be set up with enclosures
for the stacking and storing of building materials and
misplacements are not allowed. Unwanted and spoiled
materials should be transported away as soon as
possible and accumulation of such waste is not allowed.
When not used, sand and soil in the construction site
should be 100% covered.

° When not in use, machinery should be turned off to
reduce the generation of exhaust gas from combustion.
During the construction process, using disposed building
materials as fuel is strictly prohibited. Accommodation
and canteen facilities should not be set up on
construction sites.
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R -HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Emissions (continued)
Wastewater Emissions

Wastewater discharged during operation mainly comes
from surface runoff of heavy rain, domestic sewage from
construction workers, and wastewater from rinsing of the
ground surface. In order to minimize the impact of wastewater
discharged during operation, the Group has adopted the
following measures:

° Wastewater generated during foundation piling work
must be treated immediately by paying attention to
dredging and discharge management. Pollutants in
wastewater generated from the washing and rinsing
of machinery and construction vehicles are mainly
suspended solids. The rinsing and washing facilities
should be set up at designated locations. The ground
surface water ditches should be directed to temporary
sedimentation tanks.

° Muddy water generated during operation and sludge
produced by punching pile drivers and bored piles must
not be discharged without treatment. Temporary settling
basins should be provided at backfill dumps and at
locations where sludge is produced. Discharge of rain
water containing sediments and muddy water must be
organized and planned. They should only be discharged
after all solid particles have settled in the settling basins
so as to prevent any sewer blockage.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Emissions (continued)
Solid Waste Emissions

Solid waste generated during construction consists of large
quantities of silt, muck, and sludge resulting from surface
excavation. There is residual waste construction materials
and domestic garbage from workers. Resided waste such
as mortar surface cement, interior and exterior wall coating,
plastic, flexible packaging, scrap metal wire, sawdust, etc,
is also generated from renovation. In order to reduce the
accumulation of solid waste during the construction period as
well as the impact to the environment during transportation,
the following measures had been taken:

° Different types of solid waste generated from
construction should be placed separated.

° Domestic garbage should be regularly cleaned and
delivered to the environmental health department.

° Construction waste that may cause airborne dust should
be covered with an enclosure.

° Waste should be only dumped in landfill sites designated
by the relevant authorities.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle,
relevant laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

Under the KPIs A1.1 to A1.6 of the ESG Reporting Guide, as a
property developer and all the group’s construction works are
outsourced to contractors, KPIs A1.1 (types of direct emissions
and emissions data), A1.2 (greenhouse gas emissions in total
and intensity), A1.4 (total non-hazardous waste produced), A1.5
(description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved) and A1.6 (description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved) are immaterial to the Group’s operation and have not
been disclosed in this report. Further, as there is no hazardous
waste produced from the Group’s operation, KPI A1.3 (total
hazardous waste produced) is not applicable to the Group.
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B HERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Use of Resources

The Group has incorporated energy saving and eco-friendly
designs in its residential and commercial developments so as
to protect the environment and improve air quality within the
community. Such designs include:

° Occupancy sensors to turn off lighting in common areas.

° LED and energy saving lighting.

° Water cooled chillers (in lieu of air cooled chillers).

° Air purification system that filters PM2.5 particles to
provide superior indoor air quality.

° Smart temperature control and fresh air system that
cleans and renews air while realising energy saving.

° Ground Source Heat Pumps.

° Lifts and escalators with variable voltage variable
frequency drives to save energy.

° Variable speed drive in electrical system to allow supply
on demand for motor driven systems to save energy
in water supply systems, chilled water pumps and
condensed water pumps.

° Low-E insulated glass to reduce reliance on air-
conditioning.

° Provision of roller blinds for office tenants.

° South-North natural ventilation concept included in living
room design.

° Provision of balconies and sky gardens in residential
units to improve air ventilation and capture of daylight.
The Group is also planning to install electric vehicles
chargers to carparks and solar panels in some of its
properties.
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R -HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

The Group is also committed to implementing energy
conservation and environmental protection measures in its
offices:

Water resources control

The Group educates each employee to save water, and
to encourage the reuse of water in order to reduce water
consumption, so as to reduce sewage from the source.

The Group is committed to the guarantee of water supply
installation and maintenance, and to ensure that water
supply is always available. When leakage is discovered,
it will be quickly repaired.

Electricity control

The use of electricity in production must strictly
comply with the Electricity Power Law of the PRC,
encouraging power saving, safety, high efficiency and
low consumption.

Lights and electrical appliances in workplace must be
turned off when not in use.

Every member of the staff and management must turn off
the power for each department’s computers, photocopy
machines and printers machines when they are off duty
or on leave.

Staff is reminded to switch off lights and air-conditioning
in meeting rooms and to turn off the computer at the
workstation when it is not in use. The room temperature
is maintained at 25° C to save energy.

To ensure no unnecessary use of resources at
production lines.
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B HERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Use of Resources (continued)
Office consumables consumption management

° The Group encourages employees to reduce the use
of paper by assessing the necessity of printing, by
encouraging duplex printing where appropriate, and by
reusing the blank side of single-side printed paper.

° No printing and photocopying of materials unrelated to
work.

Based on these energy use efficiency initiatives, use of
resources can be effectively controlled and efficiently reduced.

Under the KPIs A2.1 to A2.4 of the ESG Reporting Guide, as
only a minimum amount of electricity and water were used
in the office, KPIs A21 (energy consumption in total and
intensity), A2.2 water consumption in total and intensity), A2.3
(description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results
achieved) and A2.4 (description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved) are immaterial to the Group’s operation.
For the Group’s investment properties in 2019, the energy
consumption and water consumption of Shenzhen Shun Hing
Square was 15,365,970KWh (2018: 15,732,190KWh) in total
and 390,094m® (2018: 397,336m°%) in total respectively. The
energy consumption and water consumption of Shenzhen
South Ocean Centre was 991,309KWh (2018: 880,026KWh)
in total and 129,845 tonnes (2018: 123,831 tonnes) in total
respectively. The energy consumption and water consumption
of Beijing Legation Quarter was 1,188,006KWh (2018:
1,321,317KWh) in total and 28,784m?* (2018: 28,524m?) in total
respectively. The energy consumption and water consumption
of Shanghai Landmark Center was 12,838,363KWh (2018:
10,430,127KWHh) in total and 77,277m?® (2018: 56,267mq) in total
respectively

Further, as no packaging material was used in the Group’s

operation, KPI A2.5 (total packaging material used for finished
products) is not applicable to the Group.
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B HERERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to minimizing environmental impact
from its property developments. Building layouts and heights
are optimized and subject to rigorous sunlight analysis to
avoid reduction in sunlight hours to neighbours. Extensive soft
landscaping have been provided to create a green environment
for building users and neighbours. The concept of vehicles
and pedestrian separation are included in the design of all
open areas. The overall project designs focus on minimizing
environmental impact and fitting in with the surrounding natural
environment and fully utilizing natural resources. The properties
should be sustainable, eco-friendly and integrated into nature,
with high energy efficiency and should not harm the local
ecosystem.

As the Group’s environmental impact and use of natural
resources is minimal, KPI A3.1 of the ESG Reporting Guide is
not applicable to the Group’s operation.

SOCIAL

The Group regards people as its most important asset. Over
the years, the Group has put considerable effort to provide
a safe and healthy staff environment for its employees. The
Group offers a comprehensive and competitive package of
benefits to attract and retain talent.

Employment

The Group has adopted an “Employee Handbook” which
sets out the practices and policies of human resources. The
Employee Handbook is in compliance with the Labour law
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), PRC Labour
Contract Law, Hong Kong employment laws, and other
relevant laws and regulations. The Employee Handbook covers
areas such as compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity, and other
benefits and welfare for the benefit of the employees.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and does
not discriminate on the basis of personal characteristics.
Regardless of race, color, descent, ethnic background,
ethnic origin, gender, age, nationality, disability, veteran
status, citizenship and religion, all job applicants and current
employees enjoy equal opportunities and fair treatment. The
Group values the input and contributions made by employees
of all backgrounds.
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B HERERHE

SOCIAL (continued)
Employment (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
complied with all the relevant rules and regulations in relation
to employment.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe, effective and
congenial work environment. Adequate arrangements, training
and guidelines are implemented to ensure the working
environment is healthy and safe. Different safety-related
initiatives and measures have been rolled out in the Group’s
operations. Risk assessments are also conducted to identify
risks in special working environments, while detailed safety
instructions have been formulated and communicated to
workers as part of their safety training sessions. For employees
working on construction sites, safety equipment such as safety
helmets, safety shoes, ear plugs and dusk masks are provided.
Safety officers are appointed by the main contractors to
coordinate and communicate safety-related matters to workers
on site.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle,
relevant laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to attend training and
development programs to strengthen their job skKills, to
enhance their professionalism, to improve their operational
efficiency and productivity, and to develop their potential
and other talents. In addition, the Group encourages and
assists employees to further develop their technical or
professional standards knowledge by sponsoring them for
professional membership. All applications for membership fee
reimbursement will be considered depending on their degree
of importance to the employee’s job and their relevance to
the operational requirements of the employee’s department.
Continuous professional development training for directors and
senior management are required and the Group encourages
them to attend training programs organised by various
professional bodies.
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B HERERHE

SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

The Group’s employment practices has strictly complied with
the Labor Contract law of PRC, the Hong Kong employment
laws and other relevant laws and regulations to avoid child
or forced labour and other potential irregularities. During
recruitment, all job applicants are required to complete a job
application form and declare that all personal data provided
(including age and personal particulars) are true and correct.
The Group undertakes a detailed job reference check, if
needed.

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to ensuring that its supply chain
management is socially responsible. The Group has adopted
procurement procedures and practices to identify eligible
bidders through a detailed assessment of prospective bidders.
Factors considered include: company size, financial strength,
statutory qualifications, reputation, previous track record and
ongoing projects. Satisfaction of past co-operation is also an
important determining factor.

Suppliers are chosen based on the supplier’s continuous ability
to guarantee satisfactory product quantity and quality, price,
and ability to deliver services on time. The Group closely
monitors supplier’'s performance and provides feedback where
necessary.

Product Responsibility

The Group’s construction of office and residential properties
have been closely supervised by internal and external
professionals. The Group and its consultants and contractors
strictly adhered to the national and local standards and the
respective codes for construction inspection and acceptance.
During the construction process, the Group and its consultants
conducted systematic inspection and acceptance on each part
of the construction.

Strict procedures in respect to examination and rectification
have been carried out in the handover of properties to
purchasers. Customer service teams have also been set up
to resolve queries from customers.
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B HERERHE

SOCIAL (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

Maintaining high quality and standards are crucial to the
Group’s sustainable development. Reliability, safety and quality
of our energy generation are crucial to the Group’s success.
Therefore, maintaining high availability and operating our wind
and solar assets efficiently to maximize our energy generation
are the Group’s major priorities.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle,
relevant laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has issued the “Code of Conduct & Business
Ethics” (the “Code”) to all the directors and employees of the
Group. The Code sets out the principles to guide the directors
and employees of the Group to conduct business affairs in
accordance with the highest business ethical standards. The
Group strives to preserve honesty, fairness and impartiality. In
accordance with the “Whistle-blowing Guideline”, all employees
can report for investigation any suspected bribery, extortion,
fraudulent and money laundering cases. Once confirmed,
it will be reported to the police or other regulatory bodies
for prosecution. The Group has also issued a “Policy on
Advantages Handling” with regard to guidelines for soliciting,
accepting or offering advantages and gifts by the directors
and employees. The Policy also provides guidelines for the
avoidance of any potential conflicts of interest or breaches of
any local laws, rules or regulations.

The Group strictly complied with the aforesaid principle,
relevant laws, rules and regulations throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to participating in the community
where we operate with an aim to improve the community’s
wellbeing. Through the hiring of locals using market compatible
remuneration packages, the Group is able to share its
operational returns with the local community and to contribute
back to the society. The Group will explore other means to
contribute more to the environment and society once the
Group achieves higher profitability. To create shared values
with the community and stakeholders, the Group will continue
to consider ESG factors in selecting future investment projects.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRES

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment and renewable energy investment and
operation. The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and a joint venture are set out in pages 234 to 239 of the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2019 by geographical and business segments
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 93.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK13 cents (2018: HK13 cents) per ordinary share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 9 June 2020. Subject to the approval of Shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
which will be held on Tuesday, 26 May 2020 (“2020 AGM”),
the final dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 23 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 19 of this annual
report.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

The Group have complied the relevant laws and regulations
during the year.

ARFIESE((EZINEFS ) MARART]
RETERRDIEEAXNF MEMBE QG (FKHE
(AEEDEHEE_FT-—NF+_A=+—HL
FEZREEREERMBHRE -

FTERBRERMEDN

REBIEEKEEMAERREERENUR
BARREEREE HEZWEAR - B
ERNRIN—HEERRZEBHNGRETB
R X F234% 2398

BE-Z-AFT-A=+—ALFE &
S0 ERER D BEHZRASTER
G AN BREN S -

REARDIK

AEBBE—_ZT-NF+_A=T—HLF
BZHBEHENERBEFABRESR -

EEeEsRAN_E-TFANB(EH D)
HZH AR EEMOBRREEREEZ - —
NEFT-A=Z=+BLEFENREREEFR
TRBFASEN (ZZ—)\F 1378l) - FRE
EABR-_ZE-_EFRA-+HEHD)
BITNEEREETFAE(ZZE_SFRRE
BEREG]) L &R RPEBREBR T
ZENA-+=H(EH )R -

REOE
AEERE-T-NAF+-A=+—ALF

B2 2BERBNETREOTI0E[EEE
SEY T AR

BB EERER
AEBRAFEANDETHBEREIER

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA

65



66

Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and
investment purposes are set out on pages 242 to 244.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”) and there is no restriction
against such rights under the law of Bermuda.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 41 and note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the
Company available for distribution was HK$312.2 million
(2018: HK$623.4 million), calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
240 to 241.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donation (2018: Nil).
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan (resigned on 3 December 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico (resigned on 1 February 2020)
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David (appointed on 1 February 2020)

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy and Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo will
retire from office by rotation at 2020 AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

In addition, Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David who was newly
appointed by the Board on 1 February 2020, will also retire
from office in accordance with bye-law 84 of the Bye-Laws
and will offer himself for re-election as Director.

The Company has also received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company considers that all of them to be independent.

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David, who was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive on 1 February 2020, has provided
to the Stock Exchange the confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan, a former Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Company who resigned on 3 December
2019, has voluntarily agreed to waive his annual director’s
fees with effect from 1 January 2010 until further notice to the
Company, and the director’s fee he waived for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$92,000.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at 2020 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the
Company were as follows:

() Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company:

EEm
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() REQXAROREBROZEFR:

Number of Approximate

shares and percentage of the

underlying existing issued

shares of the share capital of

Name of Directors Nature of interest Company the Company

EERRAFRE

KRB KRB K EEITRAE

EEps ERME HERODEE BMYBES

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate 363,924,938! 70.579%
=W KL NS]

Joint 11,154,9872 2.163%
A

Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel Personal 7,200° 0.001%
FEREE (EPN

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal 5,145,0004 0.998%
BEEREE (PN
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

EENRBHFZER @

Long positions in the shares and underlying i) REXATRGEEBROZIFE:

shares of the Company: (continued) (%)

Notes: B

1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents 1. =M AE 2R AR EmIE@QMAIEEE
(a) an interest in 203,445,407 shares of the Company BRAEN (812 ]+ A 2 203,445,407
held by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”); (b) an BRARNE R GDERS,OREAEBAR
interest in 143,212,531 shares of the Company held by ~R([E A # B 2143,212,531f% &K
Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”); and (c) an NER DR ROBEABRBRERAT
interest in 17,267,000 shares of the Company held by (MEFB)) ¥ 5B 217,267,0000% A 2 &) A
Great Nation International Limited (“Great Nation”) (via k= (BRE2ENBARERRIZE
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Genesis Ventures Limited KEBRAR([ERIEIZE]D  HA—M
(“Genesis Ventures”), a company owned as to 50% by mElEEER0%ERREEZF2
Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his BUTHAEBSOBERN AT Al
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau. Both Creator and Genesis are ## K9 Claudio Holdings Limited
wholly-owned by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”), a ([Claudiol) & & # & - ifiClaudio i &
company wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric. MEE2ERSE -

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an 2. EMlcE s HAESERFHEFEZE
interest in 11,154,987 shares of the Company jointly held FREZTHRFFH 211,154,987k
with his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau. KRR

3. The personal interest of Mr. LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel 3. ZEAR A 28 AR = 45 7A7,2000%
represents an interest in 7,200 shares of the Company. ARFIR DR -

4. The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy 4. W R S 2 B AR 2 78 745,145,000
represents an interest in 5,145,000 shares of the BRARBIR O R -

Company.

Long positions in the shares and underlying (i) RAQXTHEBEZERORERERG

shares of associated corporation of the ZHRE:

Company:

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of the
underlying existing issued

Name of shares of the share capital of

associated Name of Nature of associated the associated

corporation Director interest corporation corporation
LB IEERSE
HEEE 2R 4 2R TRA
HEEZEERE EEHE ERME REBROEHA BHAEI
China Renewable Energy Mr. OEl Kang, Eric  Corporate 1,826,026,937" 72.862%
Investment Limited
FRBEREREE =Wl k& NE]
BRAT]
Joint 41,661,439 1.662%
H[A

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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EETEHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of associated corporation of the
Company: (continued)

Notes:

1. Since as at 31 December 2019, the Company was
held as to (a) approximately 67.231% by Claudio (via
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric; and (b)
approximately 3.349% by Great Nation (via its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Genesis Ventures). As thus, Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares of China Renewable Energy Investment
Limited (“CRE”) in which the Company is interested.
The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents
(i) an interest in 1,395,682,050 shares of CRE held by
the Company; (i) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of
CRE held by Genesis; and (i) an interest in 154,278,990
shares of CRE held by Creator.

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 41,661,439 shares of CRE jointly held with his
wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan, who resigned as the Chairman and Non-
executive Director on 3 December 2019, is the chairman
and a director of PT. Sinar Mas, a company together with
its subsidiaries, associates, including Asia Pulp & Paper
Company, Ltd., and its holding companies (if any) (the “Sinar
Mas Group”) are engaged in, among other things, general
trading and property development and investment. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. OEl Tjie Goan is not interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group. Mr. OEl Kang,
Eric, a member of the Oei Family and the son of Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan, does not hold any directorship in the Sinar Mas
Group. Having considered that the Company itself has its
own management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate
its business independently from the Sinar Mas Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sections “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Report of Directors and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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EETEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES
At 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a

Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or

short

positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company

FERRRES2ERS

RZB-NF+ZA=+—B U TFTAL(E
EXARBEBITHRABRINRALREZ IR
EAMBERNPHEEASETNESF MR ERK
PIFEIBIEMERATFEN B LMz EE K

NP
WA

RAXTAROREBRD ZFR

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued
shares of the share capital of
Name Nature of interest Company the Company
HAERARRE
ARG R ERITRAE
wE a8 EEME HERGOHEE BHaES
Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau Family 363,924,938 70.579%
B2 7+ ENi-S
Joint 11,154,9872 2.163%
#*A
Claudio Holdings Limited Corporate 346,657,938°% 67.231%
NG
Creator Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 203,445,407 39.456%
BEEEAR AR EREBA
Genesis Capital Group Limited Beneficial owner 143,212,531° 27.775%
ERIEBBRAA EmBERA
Notes: Bt 3% -

1.

Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
is taken to be interested (as detailed in “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” section above).

The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 11,154,987 shares of the Company jointly held with Mr. OEl
Kang, Eric.

The corporate interest of Claudio represents an interest in
203,445,407 shares of the Company held by Creator, and
an interest in 143,212,531 shares of the Company held by
Genesis.

The beneficial interest of Creator represents an interest in
203,445,407 shares of the Company.

The beneficial interest of Genesis represents an interest in
143,212,531 shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
Directors and chief executive of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
repurchased a total of 13,210,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (“Shares”) at an aggregate consideration
of HK$77,523,720.00 (excluding expenses) on the Stock
Exchange as follows:

Total number

FTERRERRBLHFZ2ESZ @

BREXHEEEIN R-T-NAF+_A=*
—B ARB U EEEMAL(EERARA
TETBRAEBRINAEG - RRERAREZ
B REERDTHERBAECHRARARE
& 75 N EE 1R B SEXV BF 533616k 2 3R E /A8 B
FEMNETLMAZREAIOXRE

HE-ZT-NAFE+-_A=1+—HIEFE  AQ
A) B A B 22 P % 0] & ££13,210,0008% A8 A 7]
L@k (k] - R{E 8% A77,523,720.00
BIL(TRERS)  FBIT:

Aggregate

of Shares consideration paid
Month of Shares repurchase repurchased Price paid per Share (excluding expenses)
BENREHAE
BER0A R ERERAOEH BRIZGER (TBEMX)
Highest Lowest
ESE BIKE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
September 2019
—E-NFhA 4,825,000 5.550 4.830 26,167,960.00
October 2019
—E-NF+A 4,732,000 6.350 5.480 27,511,730.00
November 2019
—E-nF+—H 1,578,000 6.570 5.970 9,714,030.00
December 2019
—E-nF+=H 2,075,000 7150 6.390 14,130,000.00
TOTAL
&&f 13,210,000 77,523,720.00

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year under
review and the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value thereof. The repurchases were
made with a view to enhancing the net asset value and/or
earnings per Share.
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EETEHREE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year under review.

As at 31 December 2019, there was a total of 515,624,246
Shares (31 December 2018: 528,834,246 Shares) in issue.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries entered into certain
transactions in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms which were “Related Parties Transactions”,
the details of which are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements. Some of these transactions also
constitute “Continuing Connected Transactions” under the
Listing Rules as summarized below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into
by the Group during the year are set out below:

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE

The Company has provided, by itself directly or its wholly-
owned subsidiary indirectly, guarantees in respect of project
loan facilities granted by banks to the relevant project
companies, which are subsidiaries of CRE (the “Guarantees”).
CRE is a subsidiary of the Company and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer of
the Company) and his associates held approximately 18.83%
direct interest in CRE as at 31 December 2019. The provision
of the Guarantees is subject to reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the Guarantees were disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 30 September 2011.
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Report of the Directors

BEEZEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BREBRERX I W

(continued)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) MHAEBEREREZHBARRMBER
(#&)

The salient particulars of the Guarantees are set out below: ERzZ2EEZEFBEIHINNOT

(1)

Date
HH

Project company
(borrower)

B RAE(ET)

Amount secured

ERTHE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

EXREZERR
3HA

28 August 2006
ZEERENAZTNAR

TMENEEH L) BRATF (Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company Limited),
which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.
TMEANBEEWMNI)BRAR  BRATEBEFERIFEZEWNBAR -

The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the bank
to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to the lending
bank under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued and other
losses, damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
RLEERARIAMERZERDURTAREA BREEZEEFMEE TERR
TRKEERR AR BEEXREBTAS  EFSREMERS -
BRREMNE -

The loan in the sum of RMB200.0 million (approximately HK$223.1 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried interest at
such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined by reference to PBOC
Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be
adjusted annually on each anniversary of the related advancement (and, in relation
to an extended term agreed by lending bank, on each anniversary of the date
falling immediately after the original maturity date) based on the PBOC Benchmark
Rate then in effect as prescribed in the facility agreement.

JRAEH R Az B A% A A R%200,000,0007T (£1223,100,000% 7T) © & K
REHEF REBHRITBEZAMFNXRE K2 EHRBEARRITHE
RAERRFHzERZELENERET - HREWHEM A FXEREFEA
REFTEFEREERE  REARRzE—BFER(URBERRITHREZ
ERBE ZRRIPER2E-BFER)RFAR -

As at 31 December 2019, the total outstanding principal was RMB25.0 million
(approximately HK$27.9 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was for the same
amount.

RZZE-AFEF+ZA=+—H KEEXELLE R AR 25000,0007T (4
27,900,000 7T) » FERE ISR o

The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan as
provided in the facility agreement, with the final maturity date falling on 30 August
2021.

LREHERT EXREXHAIHEERE  sRIPER-_ZT_—FNAA=T
E| o

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Report of the Directors

BEEZEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BREBRERX I W

(continued)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) MHAEBEREREZHBARRMBER
(#&)

(] Date 3 March 2006

B

Project company
(borrower)
HE QAR (ER)

Amount secured
EREE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

ERREERR
FEA A

—EERFZAZ=H

EBENEE (BIZ) BR2AR (Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company Limited),
which is currently a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRE.

BAERNEERBR)AERAR  BAIATEBLEERRIFEZENBARR -

The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the bank to
secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to the bank under
the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued and losses, damages
and other monies payable under the loan facility.
RLAERARIMERZEBRIURITARGEA BREEE
WEERRICHERTE  BREXMEETAE  EHAME
it JE T R BE o

HEER TRITE
LEE BRRE

The loan in the sum of RMB200.0 million (approximately HK$223.1 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried interest,
settled quarterly, at such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined by
reference to PBOC Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and tenure. The
interest rate will be adjusted annually on each anniversary of the date of related
advancement (and, in relation to an extended term agreed by lending bank, on
each anniversary of the date falling immediately after the original maturity date)
based on the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility
agreement.

JRAEF L R Az B A% A A R%200,000,0007T (£1223,100,000% 7T) © & K
REBRER REBRRITHECEBEMNEASTREFEE LL2EHBEA
RRITHBERASRREMCER I EENKET - KHEGEETH - XK
BRETEARRITERERZEENX REBBR 2 BFER(LHRER
RITHEZERPE  EERINBAR T -BFER)RFRHE -

As at 31 December 2019, the total outstanding principal was RMB25.0 million
(approximately HK$27.9 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was for the same
amount.
RZE-NFT+ZA=+—H REEXLEHE/ AR 250000007 (£
27,900,000 7T) * EREEINEHER -

The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan as
provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the final maturity
date falling on 27 February 2021.

RERBARBERZRT EXRRERBASBHER SEIABA-Z=
—F_AZt+tR-

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Report of the Directors

BEEZEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BREBRERX I W

(continued)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued) OHAPBEBEERZHBATRMHER
(#&)

3) Date 22 December 2008

B

Project company
(borrower)
HE QAR (ER)

Amount secured
EREE

Repayment and
maturity dates of
loan facility

EXMECERR
R

—EENF+A=+=H

BRI T RSB AT (Hong Kong New Energy Si Zi Wang Qi Wind
Power Ltd.), which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRE.

BEMERODFEERARERLAR  BAATEBLERRZZEMBAR -

The Guarantee provided for this project company was given in favour of the bank
to secure repayment of all monies due from the operating company to the bank
under the loan facility, including the principals, interests accrued and other losses,
damages and monies payable under the loan facility.
AR ARIMERZEBRIURITAR A BREEZ
WEERRIZERE BDREXMEBETAE Bt A
KSR -

HEER TRITE
LEMER B

=
8
IS\

The loan in the sum of RMB300.0 million (approximately HK$334.6 million) was
originally granted and utilized. The loan was a term loan and carried interest at
such annual rate as agreed with lending bank, determined by reference to PBOC
Benchmark Rate for loans of the same grade and tenure. The interest rate will be
adjusted annually on each anniversary of the date of related advancement based on
the PBOC Benchmark Rate then in effect, as prescribed in the facility agreement.
ReEEDRE Rz B3 48% A A R300,000,0007T (41334,600,000/% 7T) © B3
REHEF REBHRITBEZAMFNXRE  B2ERBEARRITHE
RERLFRcERELENERETF - HBEGREMT A AEBRBEREA
RRITERERIELENE REWUBRR B —BFERRFEAE -

As at 31 December 2019, the total outstanding principal was RMB50.0 million
(approximately HK$55.8 million); and the extent of the Guarantee was for the same
amount.
RZZB-AF+ZA=+—HB REELXLEHEAR A K¥50,000,0007T (4
55,800,000/ 7T) * ERE ISR -

The loan is repayable by installments scheduled over the term of the loan as
provided in the facility agreement over the term of the loan, with the final maturity
date falling on 22 December 2021.

RERBARBERZRT  EXRRERPAIBHER  SRIPE/R T
—F+ZAZ+=H-

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors on
the continuing connected transactions

The Independent Non-executive Directors were given
sufficient information to discharge their duties in monitoring
the continuing connected transactions described above
(“Continuing Connected Transactions”). The Independent
Non-executive Directors had assessed that the Continuing
Connected Transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms of the relevant agreements governing the Continuing
Connected Transactions and on normal commercial terms.
The Internal Audit and Risk Management Department had
reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and the
internal control procedures and provide the findings to the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company to assist
them in performing their annual review. The internal control
systems and procedures of the Company had provided an
internal audit function to ensure that the Independent Non-
executive Directors had sufficient information to properly review
the Continuing Connected Transactions. The Independent
Non-executive Directors had ensured that the methods and
procedures established by the Group are sufficient to ensure
that the Continuing Connected Transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to the interests
of the Group and its minority Shareholders and appropriate
internal control procedures are in place and the Group’s
Internal Audit and Risk Management Department would review
the Continuing Connected Transactions.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Guarantee to the subsidiaries of CRE (continued)

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors on
the continuing connected transactions (continued)

In accordance with rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and
approved the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were
carried out in accordance with the following principles:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms no less favorable than terms
available to (or from) independent third parties;

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Report from the auditor on the continuing connected
transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance
with the Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

BFEBREXRS @
BMEEBLERERZHEBEATRMEER
()

BYFITESHREBRERZZER (8

RIE E R RIE14A650%  BUIFHITES
EEHIMUERBBERS LB EH
BERZTIRATRAIETT
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by TERAGE)BILIE=TRHEZ—

SESEICEE
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the
year attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 41%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 58%
Sales

The largest customer 9%
Five largest customers in aggregate 22%

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, any of their
associates, or Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers
or customers noted above.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 52.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

REVIEW OF THE AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at 2020 AGM.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of said persons.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.

iR K18 R 5T &

AEEZERRBHNAEERENGE MR
RMEE9 -

EHARERE

REBARBREZ ARERRRESHRA
RAREAH  RARFREFEARNRTRE
BIR AR LR AT E AR R 2 BT (D 25%
NEHRBRALES -

EREECSEHNKERMHER
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2019 Interim
Report is set out below:

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan
(Non-executive Director & Chairman)

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan resigned as Non-executive Director and the
Chairman with effect from 3 December 2019.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric was appointed as the Chairman with effect
from 3 December 2019.

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHUNG resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director and ceased to act as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from 1 February 2020.

Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. CHENG resigned as an independent non-executive director
of C.P. Lotus Corporation, a company delisted from the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 28 October 2019.

Mr. CHENG was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 43) with effect
from 1 January 2020.
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Report of the Directors

EETEHREE

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

(continued)

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. VOON was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2020.

On behalf of the Board

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OEIl Kang, Eric

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M % B R &

_
pwe 5ok i

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B 3% B R R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED BHEAERER)ERATIRRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RBEHFEFMKLZHERAAE)
OPINION 2R

What we have audited BMEBETFHARR

The consolidated financial statements of HKC (Holdings) #&EERZR R BRAT UATHEEISAT])
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set N EMBARI(ATHBIEE£®])IEHRE

out on pages 93 to 233, which comprise: O3E233E MR B HE - B

- the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December - RZE-NFT+_A=T—HBHHEGEEE
2019; ERER:

- the consolidated income statement for the year then — BEZHLFEMNGAERRK:
ended;

- the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for - HEZHLEFENGAEZEERR:

the year then ended;

- the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the - BEZALFENGEAEREEH R
year then ended;

- the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then - HEZRALEFENGEHREGRER X
ended; and

- the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which - RAEMBHREWNT  BEZESFH
include a summary of significant accounting policies. EHME -

Our opinion EMANER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a FKfIRA @ ZESHGEAMERRCEEEES
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of =tEIAEEMH(E BT EREEINEEM
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated H ST SEER-_T—NAF+=-A
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the =+ —HBHGATERRILEEHEEZZEILE
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial EMGAFERRIGARERE YO i
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong MBREEB(AGENNNRBER EZAEE -
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have

been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

- Valuation of investment properties held by the Group and
its joint venture

- Recoverability of right-of-use assets (mainly related
to land leases), properties under development and
properties held for sale

- Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related to power plants in
the Mainland China.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

Key Audit Matter
HREGTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNAEEERETSE

Valuation of investment properties held by the
Group and its joint venture

ERERAGEQARAMFANRENMENLE

Refer to note 2.6, 4(a) and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements
B2HEAMBHRERME26 - 4014

Management estimated the fair value of the
investment properties held by its subsidiaries and a
joint venture to be HK$11,980 million and HK$3,713
million respectively at 31 December 2019, with a
revaluation gain recorded in fair value adjustments
on investment properties of HK$92 million and a
revaluation loss recorded in share of loss of a joint
venture of HK$31 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

ERBAAHEMNBAAR —RELRAFHENRE
MERNRAFER_ZE-NAF+_A=+—825 %
11,980,000,000;% 7T #13,713,000,0008 7T * HE=F
—NFT+ZR=+—HLFE JIRKREVWELFE
B W E B U 592,000,000/ T IR EE—RE
&N T B E R E(f B 18 431,000,000/ 7T ©

Independent external valuations are obtained to
support management’s estimates, with income
capitalisation method and direct comparison
method being applied for the valuation of completed
investment properties These valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgments, among other things,
capitalisation rates, fair market rental and market unit
rate.

BBBIINBEEIRERENGR  HTIRE
MEFKBPAENERBRBHEETHRE - EX
HERANTEEERBIEHERAB O LARR
FEARBEERNMEE  QRFHEEERTHEN
BE-

Due to the significant judgment and estimates
involved, specific audit focus was placed on this area.
MR R BAHE MG FEE PRI L%
EIH-

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

PR EREHREMENGEMRTHNERR
&

o Evaluation of the independent external
valuer’s qualifications, expertise, competence,
capabilities and objectivity;
HEBEIIIFEEMOERE BE N
NREEHM:

i}

\;

o Assessed the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the property industry and
using our valuation specialists; and
BREZMEMETENER  EAXMANA
BMEERER EMRANGEETERER
BHROGEM AR

o Checked, on a sample basis, the published
external market data for the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by the
independent external valuer.

R AR & BT A 5 B SN B T 35 A R A 24 B A
K2 ¥ 37 HINER ik (B R P 8 AR &Y ) A & K9 4B B8
Moo

We found that the assumptions used in the
valuations were supported by the available evidence.
BMEREEPERANBREREEEXR -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B % B R

Key Audit Matter
HREGTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNAEEERETSE

Recoverability of right-of-use assets (mainly
related to land leases), properties under
development and properties held for sale
FRAREE(EEELIHEEER) BRIVER
EHERZRZYWENTRE 4

Refer to note 2.7, 2.8, 2.24, 4(a), 4(b), 4(c), 15, 18
and 25 to the consolidated financial statements
FL2HBEEAET B RERMT27 28224 4()
4(b) ~ 4(c) ~ 15 + 18225

Included in the Group’s balance sheet were right-of-
use assets (mainly related to land leases), property
under development and properties held for sale which
amounted to HK$1,454 million, HK$676 million and
HK$594 million respectively as at 31 December 2019
which were related to property projects in Mainland
China.

HE-Z-NAFT+-A=1+—H BEE E£EZ
EBERTPNEAREE(Z2HIWHERHM) &
EHYENIEHSER ST 2% %D B 1,454,000,000
77T + 676,000,000/ 7T f1594,000,00078 7T, + LA
NtEMEEEGE -

Given their financial significance, management
assessed the recoverability of right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) and net realisable value
in respect of the properties under development and
held for sale, where applicable, taking into account
the estimated costs to completion and estimated net
sales value at prevailing market conditions.
EREVBESR BEBIGTEAREE (X228
T HEFR) R U EE A RERPFIEREERE
ZOERNRIERFE - EA - WERTRITMISGK
BT R TEET % TR AR ML 538 & )F | -

In respect of properties held for sale, management
assessed the recoverability based on the estimated
net sales value at prevailing market conditions.
EHER G 2METE  ERERBERITHISGME
TAEETHEEFENE T AT KOS -

Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The assessment requires
management judgment and estimates.
BEESEMLRYBE A REMBAREREEEEER
BR - FHRREER - A FEEEEELA
B RO 5T o

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on recoverability of the right-of-use
assets (mainly related to land leases), properties
under development and properties held for sale
included:
EREREHCAREE(TER LT MBEEEH) -
ERPYMENEHEAZE 2 XN KO T T
il BAMITHREABRE:

° Evaluation of management’s assessment
which was prepared based on the estimated
selling price and cost to completion. We had
benchmarked the estimated selling price, on
a sample basis, to recent transactions or
available market information. While on the
construction cost to completion, we had
vouched significant items to the relevant
supporting documents; and
AEEREERBEMTNHEHEERIN T IKRAR
e B RT 14 B API 3 1k 51 B9 85 & B A% 813 B
RHHATATISMEETTHELE - M
TLIRARE  RAAZE THBZRX G
MEEEHE: UK

° Discussed with management on the
latest status and development plans of
the underlying property projects, such as
expected dates in obtaining the completion
certificates and expected completion dates of
the projects.

HEBEN REBYEREANI N MFAES
2 mESTIZENEGFABMNEERTT
BITEETEH] o

We found the carrying amounts were supported by
the available evidence.

BMERAREAENTRDERS RS -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Key Audit Matter
HREGTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNAEEERETSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets (mainly related to land leases) related to
power plants in the Mainland China

TEAGRERMEEANDE  BERRE BEE
ENCERAREE(EEHI W EERFE) WREFTHG

Refer to note 2.5, 2.10(b), 2.24, 4(c), 15, 16 and 17 to

the consolidated financial statements

m,/%i A IEHRERM FE2.5  2.10(b) * 2.24 + 4(c)
s 16217

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s non-current
assets principally comprised property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related to power plants
in the Mainland China.

(EZT-NF+ZA=+—H " EBEE5E/ERY
BEXTZRFEHRRAAMBEAESHROYE  #ER
BE BEEAENERAREE(FE2HELTMEESR
#) o

Management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets by calculating the recoverable amount under
value-in-use method. The impairment assessment
requires management to exercise significant
judgement and estimates, among other things,
estimating tariff rates, future sales volume and
discount rate.

ERERBRBERABENEAFEIL KSR - 7F
mYE - KELRRE BEEENERAEEENE
HESAFEEMAE - BREFGEEREREEFL
BRAEBRMGE  BEGAEE  RKREERUR

% o
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related to relevant
power plants in the Mainland China included:
REREHPEANMEEESTHRAOYE  EBS LR
W EBEEENERAEEE(TRRLHEERHA)
EURER - RABITHREABEE:

o Assessed the impairment assessment
methodology used by the management to
estimate value in use;

B ER N EE B EERBARE
(WRz~E

o Assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
relevant business and industry and with the
involvement of our valuations specialists;

AR 45 2 (P9 S0 A8 B 3 T AN 1T 35 0 I R DA SR B AFS
MAREEERN2E  FHERRKRNE
B

o Reconciled input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considered the
reasonableness of these budgets;
HEEABBNIHEER  IRENEER
NRERELEENGIEIL:

o Evaluated the management’s sensitivity
analysis to assess the potential impact of
reasonable possible downside changes in the
key assumptions.
THEEBOBRESN AT HARRR
REERIRENANE(CNBETE -

We found the assumptions made by management
in relation to the value in use assessment to be
supportable based on available evidence.
BERAEFE  HMARE  SEEHGEREENT
HAERERBAB X

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 4c.

ZEENEEHARBCEME4chABIE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Hip 58

BERAEFEHEMESRR - HLEEE
BERANAEES  ETBEREAMBR
REBRPOZBE RS

B EEMBREANBERL NREEME
B BATTHZEHEMEEEREMAER

MEER AW °

BERMYESEEMBHREROET  RANE
TRHBEEMES  HIBIES - TEEM
EERTEGEMBHRRIBMERBERE
THTEROBAFEEARBEXEUTFFE
ERHERRAMBR -

ERBMAEATHTE  WRBEMABREMD
EEFEER#HRRL  RMATEREZXSE
BE-fwEhm BRFORBEMRS -

EERABEERGEMBHRAR
EWEE

BERRESAAERETBGHMASRM
HKE BB REENDREB(ABIERE)
BREATREEEMPENEEMB®RE
YHERRRESAMBRERNOEB I FE
A IR S8R AR T G B B K 88 SR PR AL P 5
MARZEHAE -

ERERAEMBEHRRE  EFRENE B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

e HEERABBLLSHERNRE
MR o RIBPTERMEERE -
BEEAFERSHEKBERNEHENE
ATHEEME  tMAkEHYE &5
EORELERNELEREE - 11
RERMRBREFHEEATEEN  BA
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pong Fei Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March, 2020

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REREERAMFERT  BAIEEWLE
AHAMGAMBERENBTRAEE - [
MBKRERETEE - RAERBEMBSH
W EL IR  RIPDEBERTAFTF AR
BELZER AAEBRFLANBRT WX
EEENERMBRETEBRFHERNE
HE&RRBBEENARNE - HPUVRETIE
ERERBBEZLER -

HEAABYZBMBRENEARBEBAZ
RS °

BOBKEGTMEHR
e

B8 —_ZE_TF=A=+—H



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEBERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—HhF+-_A=Z+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5 BEEBABRT BEETT
Revenue Uy &= 5 1,036.9 1,270.0
Cost of sales FER-A (354.5) (629.2)
Gross profit EX 682.4 640.8
Other income — net HEig A - F58 6 120.7 135.2
Fair value adjustments on HEMERNFERAE
investment properties 91.9 696.5
Selling and distribution costs $HE K& o KR (36.4) (36.6)
Administrative expenses THRER (148.2) (155.0)
Other and general expenses EmEk—%EA (66.7) (43.3)
Operating profit LR 7 643.7 1,237.6
Finance income B i A 8 57.2 41.8
Finance costs & Bk AR 8 (177.6) (33.4)
Finance (costs)/income — net (B & A A,/ BB A
- FH 8 (120.4) 8.4
Share of profits less losses of  JFEAG B & A A
associates Y IR s 18 20 83.0 89.4
Share of loss of a joint venture EE— AL AFEE 21 (152.5) (65.9)
Profit before income tax Fit 16 %t A1 0% 7 453.8 1,269.5
Income tax expense FT 1S % 2 i 11 (76.3) (312.3)
Profit for the year 74 0 F 377.5 957.2
Profit attributable to: DT EREF
Equity holders of the Company ZARXRIEZFEFAA 278.7 7341
Non-controlling interests FEVE A 2 98.8 223.1
377.5 957.2
Earnings per share attributable AT ERIZFEA
to equity holders of the EteRAZF
Company (expressed in HK (AT R EAIR)
cents per share) 12
Basic R 52.8 138.8
Diluted e 52.0 138.3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEXHEHEBRRK
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—HhF+-_A=Z+—HILFE

2019 2018
—B-NF AL
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERER BEAT
Profit for the year 7 3R A 377.5 957.2
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 HE B
Iltems that may be reclassified ATREZEHFIEE
subsequently to profit or loss B 2HEB
Translation of financial statements of ME B INETE I TE
foreign operations m*x
- Currency translation differences of the — — Z&RAF R HKi B A A
Company and its subsidiaries ZERIBEZRR (268.4) (693.3)
- Currency translation differences of -BERARR—EEE
associates and a joint venture RAIZEH®BE
Z5 (53.0) (134.8)
Release of exchange differences upon NS /NEI DR S35
liquidation of subsidiaries b X 3 & (49.9) -
Item that will not be reclassified HETSEHIES
subsequently to profit or loss BRZEH
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair EAFEEEME2ME
value through other comprehensive ERiRremEE
income ZAFEEBE (2.2 -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, AXFEEHMEMEEIE -
net of tax MBRBIIE (873.5) (828.1)
Total comprehensive income for the AEEZERAELE
year 4.0 1291
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTEA2@E(ER)
attributable to: PN LI
Equity holders of the Company RARIEDRFAA (35.9) 54.5
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 39.9 74.6
4.0 1291
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-—NF+ZH=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-)N\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5 BEEAT BEATT
ASSETS BEE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment properties "EME 14 11,980.4 12,344.9
Prepaid land lease payments AT HEER 15 - 1,4721
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 1,455.0 -
Property, plant and equipment Vs R NEE
- Other property, plant and - HEmmzE
equipment 28 I 3R 16 1,105.3 909.7
- Construction in progress -ERIRE 16 2227 321.0
Intangible assets BEAE 17 1.0 1.4
Properties under development ERPYE 18 549.1 555.6
Interests in associates REE R NF 2R 20 1,202.8 1,210.3
Interest in a joint venture R—EEERAI 2R 21 1,443.9 1,626.7
Financial assets at fair value EAFELEEMER
through other comprehensive EndlRzemBEE
income 22 18.1 21.4
Financial assets at fair value EAFELEERSE
through profit or loss JERMBEE 23 300.8 -
Prepayments and other receivables T8 15 78 & £ b & U 7k 26 59.1 84.3
Total non-current assets ERBEEMLEE 18,338.2 18,547.4
Current assets REBEE
Inventories IENS 6.6 6.7
Properties under development ERPYE 18 126.5
Properties held for sale TESHE R 2 M 25 593.5 919.9
Trade and other receivables JrE AT B SR B EL th JE T 3R 26 474.7 369.4
Restricted cash ZREIR S 27 200.1 478.9
Short-term bank deposits 5 HER 1T K 28 - 712.3
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 29 2,293.5 1,889.6
Total current assets REBEEHE 3,694.9 4,376.8
Total assets EEHAH 22,033.1 22,924.2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEEREXR

As at 31 December 2019
RZE—-—NhF+=ZH=1+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5T BEEAT BEEATT
EQUITY E=
Capital and reserves attributable AT FH A BN
to equity holders of the EXR#HE
Company
Share capital fig A% 30 128.9 132.2
Reserves G 31 12,822.3 13,070.0
Equity attributable to equity ERAFEEFEA
holders of the Company PE 4k ¥ &= 12,951.2 13,202.2
Non-controlling interests FEIERE R 2,783.2 2,752.2
Total equity EHEEEE 15,734.4 15,954.4
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 32 2,559.6 2,768.3
Lease liabilities HE&E 8.0 -
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMEHAE 34 1,829.2 1,882.4
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEHEE 4,396.8 4,650.7
Current liabilities REAEE
Trade and other payables AT BR 3R B2 EoAth B 5 3K 33 1,100.6 1,474.3
Borrowings &3k 32 408.3 4770
Lease liabilities HeEaE 227 -
Amount due to a shareholder B — R R EFIA 35 197.7 197.5
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTERias 172.6 170.3
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 1,901.9 2,3191
Total liabilities EEHEEHE 6,298.7 6,969.8___
Total equity and liabilities BEREEHE 22,033.1 22,924.2

OEIl Kang, Eric

g

Director

EFE
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LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

RER
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREEBX

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—HhF+-_A=Z+—HILFE

Attributable
to equity Non-
holders of the controlling
Note Company interests  Total equity
AAR R

B = BAEAENE GFERES ERAH
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEETR BEER BEER

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZEBE-NE—-B—H2z&&# 13,202.2 2,752.2 15,954.4
Comprehensive income 2HEHBA

Profit for the year REE & 278.7 98.8 3775
Other comprehensive loss Hit2HEEE

Translation of financial statements of ~ M EGINEKITHKIHRE
foreign operations

- Currency translation differences of - ARRREMBARZ
the Company and its EHHREEE
subsidiaries 31 (209.5) (58.9) (268.4)
- Currency translation differences of -BENR R —HEE
associates and a joint venture NRIZERGEER 31 (53.0) - (53.0)
Release of exchange differences upon K B2 =)E B 1% %
liquidation of subsidiaries fE & A 31 (49.9) - (49.9)

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair & A F(EEEM 2 EIE R
value through other comprehensive IR EMBEEL
income ATEEE 31 2.2) - 2.2)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AFE2[H (EE),/

for the year ON-E- (35.9) 39.9 4.0
Transactions with owners HEBAZRS
Repurchase of own equity shares BRAQABEHITZAES

issued by the Company @R G (77.6) = (77.6)
Dividends paid BERAKRE 31 (137.5) (8.9) (146.4)
Total transactions with owners HEBAZRZHE (215.1) (8.9) (224.0)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-AE+=ZA=1+—H

2 12,951.2 2,783.2 15,734.4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREREEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_ZT-NF+_A=+—RHILLFE

Attributable to Non-
equity holders of controlling
Note the Company interests Total equity
/NS
Bt & BFEARG  EERER Bm B
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEETL
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZBE-NF-A—-Hz&EH 13,270.9 2,685.3 16,956.2
Comprehensive income 2EHBA
Profit for the year KEERF 7341 2231 957.2
Other comprehensive loss Hit2HEER
Translation of financial statements of ~ #E /G INEK K RE
foreign operations
- Currency translation differences of - ARARREMBRAZ
the Company and its EHRBREZE
subsidiaries 31 (544.8) (148.5) (693.3)
- Currency translation differences of -BERARR—HAE
associates and a joint venture RRAIZERBEESE 31 (134.8) - (134.8)
Total comprehensive income for the ZAEEZ2HWALE
year 54.5 74.6 1291
Transactions with owners HEEBAZRS
Changes in ownership interests in THREAEBHMB AR
subsidiaries that do not result in BERERZHERENR
a loss of control arising from the REEHIE
following factor
- Exercise of a listed subsidiary’s -fFE-BLEmHE AR
warrants < RBREE 31 22.6 177 49
- Acquisition of non-controlling -RE-MHBARZ
interests of a subsidiary FEE R = 31 (18.9) 18.9 -
Dividends paid BERKRE 31 (126.9) (8.9) (135.8)
Total transactions with owners HEBAZRZHEE (123.2) (7.7) (130.9)
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+=ZA=+—H
2R 13,202.2 2,752.2 15,954.4
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-hhF+_A=1+—RHLLFE

2019 2018
—B-NF AL
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5 BEEBABRT BEETT
Cash flows from operating REEBECHERE
activities
Cash generated from operations & EEAERE 40 588.9 797.3
Income tax paid, net BB FE (74.6) (256.0)
Net cash generated from operating #& & %5188 & %58
activities 514.3 541.3
Cash flows from investing RETBH2RERE
activities
Interest received 2 HF B 57.7 41.8
Dividend received from associates & U B & A &A% & 22.0 23.4
Dividend received from a financial 2 43z A F(E4E Hith
asset at fair value through other ~ 2 E 2558k 2
comprehensive income TREERE 1.3 -
Dividend received from financial 2 WIZ A FEHEE R
assets at fair value through HIR s emMEERE
profit or loss 2.3 -
Development costs paid for ENEEMFE  ER
investment properties & AR (140.2) (419.3)
Development costs paid for ENERIECER
construction in progress & AR (108.4) (184.7)
Purchase of property, plant and B E¥W% - e LR E
equipment (12.0) (12.3)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE - 0.2)
Purchase of financial assets at fair B E IR A FEAEEZR
value through profit or loss R ZEmMEE (304.4) -
Proceeds from the disposal of MEWE - WELEE
property, plant and equipment B8 28 7.3 0.3
Return of capital from a financial ZAFEE A2 E
asset at fair value through other Bz 5IEE 2 € &t
comprehensive income BEZARKE 0.9 5.4
Decrease/(increase) in short-term 52 ISR 1717 ZUR 4~
bank deposits (3% 1) 697.8 (712.3)
Net cash generated from/(used in) & ESNFE,(FTA)
investing activities ReFHE 224.3 (1,257.9)

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z—hhF+-_A=1+—HLLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B = BEEAT BEATT
Cash flows from financing MEIBC2RERE
activities
Payment for repurchase of own B [E B & # 25 I
equity shares (NP (77.6) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted S RHIIR &R/
cash (3 hn) 2741 (101.1)
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 775 & H b B 5%
and other loans Fri§ 18 357.2 1,609.5
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 & iR 17 & 3 & H A
and other loans BER (521.2) (997.9)
Payment for lease liabilities TNHEEBEKIEA
(including interest) (BIEF8) (23.5) -
Decrease in advance from a — B AR R B FOR
shareholder = (25.0)
Contribution from non-controlling  3F#EAZ A% 3R 2 )T &
shareholders = 4.9
Dividends paid to equity holders BEff ARG Ez=EFHE A
of the Company 2B (137.5) (126.9)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 21t 3F 2 A% A% R~ A% &
shareholders (8.9) (8.9
Repayment of loan from a EEFEBRREER
non-controlling shareholder - (1.3
Interest paid BATF A (177.1) (176.2)
Net cash (used in)/generated from @& &E (FAA),/
financing activities T8 & %% (314.5) 1771
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERBEESEEY
and cash equivalents i, CRd) R 4241 (539.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BzZzER& Xk
1 January REEEY 1,889.6 2,497.4
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEH T8
changes (20.2) (68.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+ZA=+—AH2
31 December BeMReEEY 2,293.5 1,889.6

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019




GENERAL INFORMATION

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment and renewable
energy investment and operation. The investments of the
Group are mainly located in the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The ultimate holding company is Claudio
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in millions of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$ Million”),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements were approved for issue by the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) on 31 March
2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M A

—gE R
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(BEEERDARBRESMA L 2
BEREEAR - MM BRI A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) and disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@ New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations adopted by the Group

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

HKAS 19 Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements  Annual Improvements to
to HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

HK (IFRIC) -
Interpretation 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of these
amendments to standards and interpretation
does not have any significant impact on the
Group.

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 is
disclosed below.

HKFRS 16 Leases — Impact of adoption

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, HK(SIC)
15 and HK(SIC) 27, which establishes
new accounting requirements on leases.
HKFRS 16 leads to the recognition of lease
transactions in lessee’s financial statements,
focuses on whether an arrangement
contains a lease or a service agreement
and introduces a substantial change to the
accounting for lessees. A right-of-use asset
which represents the right to use the leased
asset for the lease term and a lease liability
which represents the obligation to pay rentals
are recognised for all leases. The accounting
for lessors will not significantly change.

Until 31 December 2018, payments made
under operating leases were charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases — Impact of adoption
(continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group has used the
simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year
prior to first adoption. The reclassifications
arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance
on 1 January 2019.

The Group’s leases consist of rentals of land
and office premises, in which their existing
contracts satisfy the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16. For leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has
elected to measure the right-of-use assets
at the amounts equal to the lease liabilities
adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease
payments. Accordingly, no adjustments
were recognised to the opening balance of
retained profits as at 1 January 2019, the
date of initial adoption.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases — Impact of adoption
(continued)

The Group applied the following practical
expedients on transition to HKFRS 16 for
those leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17.

° Applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics

o Applied the recognition exemption for
leases for which the lease term ends
within 12 months of the date of initial
adoption

° Applied by class of underlying asset,
not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component

o Excluded the initial direct costs from
the measurement of the right-of-use
assets

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, leases are
recognised as a right-of-use asset including
land use rights which are presented within
property, plant and equipment as “leasehold
land and buildings” in the consolidated
balance sheet. For lease previously classified
as finance lease under HKAS 17, the
Group transferred the carrying amounts
(immediately before transition) of the
underlying obligations previously grouped for
financial statements presentation purposes
under borrowings, to lease liabilities at 1
January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEHMEw@)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wREEE@)
(@) New standards, amendments to standards (a) AEBFFFEMNZFER @£

and interpretations adopted by the Group
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases — Impact of adoption
(continued)

The table below explains the difference
between operating lease commitments
disclosed at 31 December 2018 by applying
HKAS 17 and lease liabilities recognised at
1 January 2019 by applying HKFRS 16:

RS ET R 22 8 (@)

BB BRI F 165
[HE] - FRAZZEE)

TREBR-_Z—N\E+—
A=+—BREEBgHE
B B17R T ENE e E
EER-T-NF—H—H
BEREHBHREELE
1BRFTERMNEAERE Y
IR Z R

HK$ Million
BEABTT
Operating lease commitments RZE—NF+ZA=+—H
at 31 December 2018 2B EAEE 0.3
Less: W
Exemption for leases for which the RNEHERRVBRAA L
lease term ends within 12 months 12EARNERZHE
of the date of initial adoption (0.3)
Finance lease liabilities RZE—-N\F+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2018 ZBEMERE 51.3
Total lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 R-—ZE—AF—HA—H
ZHEARRE 51.3
Of which are: Hr:
Current lease liabilities mEHEARE 20.7
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEAE 30.6
51.3

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

FESHEHEME@m

21 wBEEEm)

(@) New standards, amendments to standards (a) AEBFFFEMNZFER @£

and interpretations adopted by the Group

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases — Impact of adoption

(continued)

The table below summarises the impact on

the adoption of HKFRS 16:

RS ET R 22 8 (@)

BB & BRI F 165
[HE] - FRAZZEE)

TR R E B B S
SHRAFTR 2 E

== R =

At 1 January

2019

R=ZTB-NIF

—H—H

HKS$ Million

BEETT

Decrease in prepaid land lease AN EE R

payments (1,472.1)
Increase in right-of-use assets i AREE EE N 1,472.1
Decrease in borrowings BFOR L (51.3)
Increase in lease liabilities HE&BBEMN 51.3

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FE€HHBE#MZEW@
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wREEE@)
(b) New standards and amendments to b) R=-—ZZFE—-HLF—H—H

standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2019 and have not been

early adopted

The following standards and amendments
to standards have been published and
are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 or later periods, but the Group has not

early adopted them:

MM BFECSEM
BEHRERBEERER
Moz w AR AR

AT A E R #p B i 78 54 il FE
ARAEEE T _TF—
A— B8 ARFE 2 &5 B
S 1% HA ) 2 2RI 2 2 Rl
EF] - HEARREIL EITR R
A

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEHR &
BB ETEENR

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
B 7% ¥ 5 1 2 AE Z2R2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8
BB ERNBIRRES
2T ERIE8R 2 1B8E]
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB G mEERIEIR
1&5]
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BB E LR L -

ARG EREIR NEE
BTSSR B TSR 2B FT

HKFRS 17

BB WS ERNE175R

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

FBW RS ENFI0NH &

BB FTERIF285 2 BFT

Revised Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting
M mEMAERZEET

Definition of Material

BEEMTEE

Definition of a Business

EBHTER
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

e B

Insurance Contracts

REEL

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

REEHHEBE RN NEEAA
JHEZEBEELESTE

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

New standards and amendments to
standards have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2019 and have not been
early adopted (continued)

The Group has not early adopted the new
standards and amendments to standards,
which have been issued but are not effective
for the financial year beginning on 1 January
2019. The Group has already commenced
an assessment on the impact of these new
standards and amendments to standards,
and expected that the adoption of new
standards and amendments to standards will
not have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial information in the
current or future reporting periods.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. lIdentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. It is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated, unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

(c)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions -
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method
of accounting, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’'s share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group’s investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of
the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses s
recognised in profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d)

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of profits less losses of associates” in the
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in
investments in associates are recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised
within other income or other and general
expenses in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

()

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for by the equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the
Group’s share of the results of joint ventures
for the year, and the consolidated balance
sheet includes the Group’s share of the net
assets of the joint ventures and goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) on
acquisition.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Group’s most
senior executive management that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Group’s
functional currency is Renminbi and the
Group’s presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollars to facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group, which is listed in
Hong Kong.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

()

Group companies

The

results and financial position of all

the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(ii)

assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income. Goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable
to the equity holders of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEHMEw@)

POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y HBBIRZHE

Properties are interests in land and buildings
other than investment properties. Leasehold land
and buildings, electric utility plant and equipment,
other plant and equipment, comprising plant
and machineries, motor vehicles and furniture
and fixtures are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Leasehold land commences depreciation from the
time when the land interest becomes available for
its intended use. Depreciation on leasehold land
and other assets is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Mk HtaskEm
ETEEEENERE  AERR
AR BERE  RAAR R
WERRABEEEIR - EL
RABRRANEERBEEMER
I 2B -

HE LR Z LR RER
EREEHRRBTE -HELHE
HiBEEZITEANBERETE
R & AT E A A HR A A AN B
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Leasehold land Shorter of remaining HE L FAAEF Bk
lease term or useful AfAESR2
life BEE

Buildings 50 years BF 504

Electric utility plant and  Shorter of the remaining BERLEH FHRECEEH0F

equipment operation period or pd Sk

20 years
Other plant and 3 to 15 years

equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income in profit or
loss.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed as
investment property is carried at fair value. Where
fair value is not determinable, such investment
property under construction is measured at cost until
either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or
construction is completed (whichever is earlier).

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition
at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined
at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognised as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property, others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the financial
statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded as part of a
valuation gain or loss in fair value adjustments on
investment properties in profit or loss.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets when and only when there is
a change in use, evidenced by commencement
of owner-occupation. The deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets is the fair value of the property at the date
of change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

The Group transfers a property from property, plant
and equipment to investment property when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced by
end of owner-occupation. Any difference resulting
between carrying amount and the fair value of
the property at the date of transfer is treated as
the same way as a revaluation under HKAS 16.
Any resulting increase in the carrying amount of
the property is recognised in income statement to
the extent that it reverses a previous impairment
loss, with any remaining increase recognised in
other comprehensive income and increase directly
to equity in revaluation surplus within equity. Any
resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is initially charged in other comprehensive
income against any previously recognised
revaluation surplus, with any remaining decrease
charged to income statement.

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured at
the carrying amount of the property at the date of
reclassification from properties under development.
Properties remaining unsold at the end of the year
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost comprises land and development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

The Group transfers a property from investment
property to properties held for sale when and
only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the fair
value of the property at the date of change in use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Properties under development

Properties under development including the
properties developed for resale comprises
development cost of properties which are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified under
current assets when they are expected to be
realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle and
comprise development costs of properties and the
costs paid to acquire land use rights which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
On completion, the properties under development
are transferred to completed properties held for
sale.

Net realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less applicable
variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development
period.

Construction in progress

Costs directly attributable to the construction of
property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified
as construction in progress. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until such items as the
relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(@

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGUs
containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEHMEw@)

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued) 210 | & E (@)

(b) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Other intangible
assets have a finite useful life and are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment and
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of five years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets which are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(@

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through profit or loss;

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income; and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election
at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)
(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset.

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

(d) Impairment

The Group applies the simplified approach
on assessing the expected credit losses
associated with trade receivables as
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 26 for further details.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally
due for settlement within 30 days and therefore are

all classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. See Note 26 for
further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and Note 3.1 for a description

of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current

unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the balance sheet date.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2

FESHEHEME@m

214

215

FE Wy R =X

1M BRI R AR R B R A
5 8 15 5 3R 5 PR S T A M
MR o 8RB % RG0R 7Y
RITEE - AU ERDRAARD
HE -

FEW R IR ] EG M EB N E
SRBETVRER  BEEEES
BAREXDE WA F(EET
MR - AEBEFERKERR
MEMERBAERRKESTE
I H 1% 50 B PR R SR OA T B AR
Rt EEKER - BUREBERE -
ERAEBERERRERNEETH
KA FFHEER KA LB AR E R
i B RIZEWFE6 R
3.1

BRNBEATENBEELR
PR R o 3 1 I 8
RAHISE - FHERUE (B X B
7) B2 B {8 18 = 4 fa] 2 4 A 7
BRI R RERIB SR
MR -

A BEtR IR B D s 2 R B BAR
RRIERBREMNERS
BRBERRXFEA - EIIER
T EHERABETEARAEER
EUE R o fin 4 BF SR BUR A] BEHR X
MoREZHEFRE WEBER
H R ERME /R B E & IR FALN
Fo AN ERBERE AR EN -

RIFREEEREKGSAREZ
RERTEZHFERARRRD T
—EA RRBRIBRRBDE
(==

5 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16

217

218

219

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2.21

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and
long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Defined contribution plans

The Group uses a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”) for the eligible employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC respectively.

2

FESHEHEME@m

2.20 BN HA X IE %€ Fr 18 i ()

2.21

EEFBHEENRIBEB RIKE
AR AM ML R E R ERFER

5 FE R

BEIEFERNHEBAT  BERQ
ALAERRREELERER
Rratie B - BEREAEE RN
THERER 2 BOIERE MY
FERAEAERKGKREATED
g B E 2R PT S A E AR
S e

6 B 5K TE Rl 98 B A TTRE A A B B
MEEEREHNH ARG
BEEMBHREELABEER—
BGHEL B2 EERRE
BBRcAERER MAME
EHERRFREEGMAT AR -
EERMGHEERAERSTEM
i -

BEEF
(@ EERMEZ#F

EERZFZFREKIRS
KBRIREEERZFEAR
R - EEREBRELER
ZREFEMEEZFRE
EHRBHRB 2 G EE
SETIEEE - BEEERER
BREBREBREET

= EE = o
= o

(b) EFEHERTE

AEERBRIMEAESE
g(aBEe)RBAFEAR
HANE ([ B ) B A AL

ZREERASFE - 25
BERTEZAERERS
£ o

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA

131



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(©)

Defined contribution plans (continued)

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further
payments obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Group’s contributions
to the MPF are expensed as incurred and
are not reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave MPF prior
to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available. The assets
of MPF are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a

percentage in compliance with the
requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (@) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits faling due more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEHMEw@)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Provisions 2.22 ¥ 1&

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Where
the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
the provision are reversed. Reversal of provisions
are recognised in the income statement, except
for the reversal of construction costs related to
investment properties and unsold properties which
results in a decrease in the carrying amount of the
investment properties and properties held for sale
respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below.
The amount of revenue is not considered to be
reliably measurable until all contingencies relating
to the sale have been resolved. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@ Revenues from renewable energy refers
to power dispatched during commercial
operation. Revenues from sales of electricity
is recognised at a point of time when it is
transmitted to the customers. Commercial
operation starts upon obtaining a Power
Purchase Agreement, safety certificate from
the State Electricity Regulatory Commission
(“SERC”) or Provincial Grid Authority,
and 240 hours commissioning. Revenue
attributable to the sales of electricity
generated during construction and testing
period is not included in the electricity sales
revenue, but is offset against the cost of
property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

Rental income from investment properties
is recognised in the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Revenue from sales of properties is
recognised when control over the properties
has been transferred to the customer. The
properties have generally no alternative use
for the Group due to contractual restrictions.
However, the Group does not have an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date. Therefore, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the
ownership of the properties has been passed
to the customer. Deposits and installments
received on properties sold prior to date of
revenue are included under current liabilities.

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets, that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

Property management fee income is
recognised when the services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases

(@) The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee

The Group’s leases consist of land leases
and office premises.

For leases of office premises, rental contracts
are typically made for fixed period of 1 to 2
years without extension options.

()

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer
to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are
classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Each lease payment
is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in liabilities. The finance
charges are charged to the income
statement over the lease periods so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@

The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee
(continued)

()

(i)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018 (continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion
of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent
prepayments for leasehold land held
under operating leases, which are
stated at cost and subsequently
are amortised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of
the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in
profit or loss. During the course
of the properties development, the
amortisation is included as part of
the costs of the properties under
development.

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019

From 1 January 2019, leases are
recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@) The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee

(continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

At inception, the Group assess whether
a contract contains a lease. This
assessment involves the exercise of
judgement about whether it depends
on a specified asset.

Lease and non-lease components

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group has
elected not to separately account for
the lease and non-lease components
for leases of offices.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the
lease, lease liabilities are measured at
the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease
term comprises the non-cancellable
period with addition of periods covered
by options to extend the lease if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise
option or reasonably certain not to
exercise the termination option. This
assessment is made on inception of
the lease.

Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

- fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@) The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee

(continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement
date;

amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase
option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option;

payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option; and

lease payments to be made
under reasonably certain
extension options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@) The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee
(continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

Incremental borrowing rate

The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental
borrowing rate, the Group:

- where possible, uses recent
third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third
party financing was received,;

- uses a build-up approach that
starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party
financing; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@) The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee
(continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

Incremental borrowing rate (continued)

- makes adjustments specific to
the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use
assets at the commencement date of
the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
assets is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for
any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability;

- any lease payments made at
or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives
received;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@

The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee
(continued)

(i)

Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

- any initial direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the group
is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

For right-of-use assets relating to
land leases, during the course of
the properties development, the
depreciation is included as part of
the costs of the properties under
development.

Right-of-use assets are subject to
testing for impairment if impairment
indicator exists. When there is
impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

(@

(b)

The Group’s leasing activities as a leasee
(continued)

(i)~ Accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019 (continued)

Short-term leases and lease of low-
value assets

Payments associated with short-term
leases of offices and all leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less. The Group did not have any
low-value assets.

The Group’s leasing activities as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where
the Group is a lessor is recognised in the
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet
based on their nature. The Group did not
make any adjustments to the accounting for
assets held as lessor as a result of adopting
the new leasing standard. Details of the
recognition of operating lease rental income
are set out in Note 2.23(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable,
it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, restricted cash, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings, lease liabilities, loans from non-
controlling shareholders and amount due to a
shareholder. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

The Board focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in the
Mainland China. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the Group’s
functional currency.

The Group currently does not have
any foreign currency hedging activities.
However, the management of the
Group monitors the foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

If Renminbi had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars as at 31
December 2019 with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
income tax would have been HK$52.4
million higher/lower (2018: HK$58.9
million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

M BRI
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk
due to fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group’s
results and operating cash flows are
substantially dependent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However,
management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2019, if the interest
rate had increased/decreased 100
basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
income tax would have decreased/
increased by HK$27.1 milion (2018:
HK$31.1 million).

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk
arising from the listed investments held
by the Group, which are classified in
the consolidated balance sheet as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 23).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Price risk (continued)

The performance of the Group’s listed
investments are monitored regularly,
together with an assessment of their
relevance to the Group’s strategic
plans.

As at 31 December 2019, if the share
prices of the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss held by
the Group had increased/decreased by
5% (2018: Nil) with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
income tax would have increased/
decreased by HK$15.0 million (2018:
Nil).

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
short-term bank deposits, restricted cash,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables.

The carrying amount of short-term bank
deposits, restricted cash, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables,
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to its financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Risk management

To manage the credit risk associated
with short-term bank deposits,
restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are
mainly placed with certain state-owned
banks in the PRC which are high-credit
quality financial institutions and banks
with high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated
with trade and other receivables, the
Group adopts risk control to assess
the credit quality of the customers
and debtors, taking into account their
financial positions and past experience.
The Group has monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

()

Risk management (continued)

For renewable energy business,
the Group is exposed to significant
concentration of credit risk in terms of
electricity sales as the Group’s sales
of electricity were made to state-
owned grid companies. The Group
normally does not require collateral
from trade debtors. It normally grants
credit terms of 30 days to these state-
owned grid companies. However, part
of the trade receivables, including
those held through associates, due
from the state-owned grid companies
relate to government subsidy which
are subject to government allocation
of the tariff surcharge for renewable
energy. Based on past experience and
industry practice, these tariff premiums
are generally paid after 12 months from
the date of the sales recognition though
it may take longer to get paid in some
circumstances where the government
needs more time to allocate the
tariff subsidies. Ageing analysis of
the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in Note 26. Management
makes periodic collective assessment
as well as individual assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables
based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the
relevant debtors.
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RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

()

(i)

Risk management (continued)

Other than renewable energy business,
there is no concentration of credit risk
with respect to trade receivables from
third party customers as the customer
bases are widely dispersed in different
sectors and industries.

In addition, the Group monitors the
exposure to credit risk in respect
of the financial assistance provided
to subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures through exercising control
significant influence or joint control
(where applicable) over their financial
and operating policy decisions and
reviewing their financial positions on a
regular basis.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s trade receivables are
subject to the expected credit loss
model.

While short-term deposits, restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents,
amount due from an associate and
amount due from a joint venture are also
subject to impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for
trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation.

The expected loss rates are based
on the payment profiles of customers
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking
information on the inflation rate and the
economic environment of the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

B 3% B b 1 ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BEEREKEZE@®)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EE=EBE(HE)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) ZEEEZREE)
On that basis, the provision for BIEEE  RZE
impairment of trade receivables as —NEFERZFT—)N\F+
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was A=t —HZEWK
determined as follows: BR A R B B R A

TET:
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEET
Not yet due K 0 B 102.0 24.9
Past due for: B %0 Hf -
- Less than 2 months - bRofE A 9.7 16.1
- 2 1o less than 6 months - 2% L A61E A 9.5 11.5
- 6 to less than - 6ZE A 121E A
12 months 19.1 13.4
- 12 months and more -12@ A &M E 20.1 9.9
160.4 75.8
Less: provision for TR E A
impairment (31.9) (11.3)
128.5 64.5
Trade receivables are written off when ENGFAERYE R E

there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of
a customer to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(©)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is
unable to meet its current obligations when
they fall due. The Group measures and
monitors its liquidity through the maintenance
of prudent ratios regarding the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans
and commitments of the Group. The Group
also maintains a conservative level of liquid
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and
material cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

During the vyear, the Group complied
with all externally imposed loan covenant
requirements to which it is subject to.

The table below analyses the Group’s
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The amounts disclosed in the table have
been drawn up with reference to the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay.

3

B 3% B b 1 ()
B 3% 8 B (R =& (@)

3.1

(©)

RBESER

mBELRRRAEERRK
BEETTHIIHEHAEE R
R AEEREBEEE A
& BERNAEZRBDES
RiE - BBEREEL R
ENERERPES - A%
ERERASEERNRR
K URERABRAR S
mERN AT EBHERRK
BETARZERBRERTHK -

RARFE  AEBEEBEMAB
BRSNMEEARMER -

TERAMAEEEREE L
BHEIME - TREEZR
B2 EAKEANRZ
EPRHERAEZRMR
RERERE -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3 BHXEERMEREm@m

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEEREZE@®
() Liquidity risk (continued) () RBELEMRE
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and5 years 5 years Total
—ER -E@WE —EEE EENE “Em
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERT BEERT BEERT BEERT BEERT
At 31 December 2019 R=-ZE—-NI&
+=-A=1+-H
Borrowings fE 554.5 594.5 1,960.4 303.4 3,412.8
Trade and other payables &8 7 & H fty
JE {58 978.4 = = = 978.4
Financial guarantee for ~ FIEREEHME

credit facilities granted R4 B ER

(Note 38(a) (It 2£38(a) 66.9 - - - 66.9
Financial guarantee for ~ HiAATHNEER

mortgage facilities sduliopi$i

granted to certain MEREHNE

property buyers ER

(Note 37(b)) (P 5E37(b) 72.4 - - - 72.4
Amount due to a B —BRERE

shareholder (P £%35)

(Note 35) 197.7 - - - 197.7
Lease liabilities HEEE 241 8.1 - - 32.2
At 31 December 2018 R=-ZE-N#F

+=A=1-A
Borrowings RN 631.9 5411 21775 393.2 3,743.7
Trade and other payables JE {8 30 I E

JER 3R 1,394.6 - - - 1,394.6
Financial guarantee for ~ FIEREHBE

credit facilities granted R BEER

(Note 38(a)) (F} 7£38(a) 82.0 - - - 82.0
Financial guarantee for ~ FRETHEER

mortgage facilities il 0i:gi

granted to certain BERMEE

property buyers ER

(Note 37(b)) (Fff 5£37(0)) 516.6 - - - 516.6
Amount due to a B —BREHE

shareholder (Kt 5£35)

(Note 35) 1975 - - - 1975
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.2 Capital risk management

B 3% B b 1 ()
3.2 EXERERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, raise new debt financing, issue
new shares, share options and warrants or conduct
share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its gearing ratio and cash flows
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments for this
purpose. The Group defines gearing ratio as total
debt divided by total equity. Total debt is the
aggregate of amount due to a shareholder and
current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet and total equity is
also as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were as follows:

AEBEREARAZRERRER
SESBEKEEB 2N BX
A5 P R (2] 3 B A B At B 25 AR
BAETSRAE  WHRRRENE
ARBREMBDEZKA

RERFRFEERRE  AKHEH
SERBARRKNZEE S
BOSEHMEBRE  BITHK
D BN AR ESETE
B -

AEEBZERIEBEEAL X
EREREFBRERHLEAR
B BRIREEEERRMBR
ERAE AEBEKABERL
EREREFBBERAE R B
B ABEEREREERER
PR 2 FEAS — % B R SR A )
K FERBNE R ARER o s ARFR IR
RIEBEERBERIIR -

RZZE-NER-ZZ-N\F+A
=t HZAEEEARLERMT:

2019 2018

—E-hE Z—ZT—)N\F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEET

Current borrowings kIR 408.3 477.0

Non-current borrowings EREER 2,559.6 2,768.3

Amount due to a shareholder JEN — B R EIA 197.7 197.5

Total debt BB 3,165.6 3,442.8

Total equity M R 15,734.4 15,954.4
Gearing ratio (total debt/equity ratio) BEEANLLR(EKETE,

T B8 20.1% 21.6%

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31

B 3% B b 1 ()
3.3 AFEMLE
TRERAGBEEZSZAFEYE

ZEMTEETHN - FRKR
REWMT:

RAEHBEESBER
JERTIIS 2 B CREFHE)
(B15R) »

REBIRET A 2R E AN
BEEFAERAEBR IMEE
(EBERELSL BRE
EXBEMEKRAEE(E
28 o

I FF % Al B T 45 83 (AD
WIBRMABHRAEBRZ
BEXAFERABAB(ES
AR e

TREJINAKER-ZF-AFT+
“A=t—HEAVEFEZSE

December 2019. BhEE o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FER E24% 3 m
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BHEET BHEET BEERT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair BRAFEEEM
value through other 2HERIEZ
comprehensive income CMEE - 8.8 9.3 18.1
Financial assets at fair BALEEER
value through profit or IR eREE
loss 300.8 = = 300.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3

B 3% B b 1 ()
3.3 QAT EMFT@E

TRENNAEBR-_Z—N\F+
“A=t—HBEAVEFEZSE

BEE ©
Level 2 Level 3 Total
X E3Mm B

HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET  BHEAT HEAR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value at 31
December 2018.
Level 1
SR
HK$ Million
BEAETT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair mATFEEEM
value through other 2HEBRIEZ
comprehensive income CREE

10.7 10.7 214

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily
equity investments classified as trading securities
under financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

REBMEMEESRMTAZA
FEDREREEAMHRTSE
RAE - WKL ERBERERS
P RX5E - &4 ZHRAER -
HERGAEERBESRE
BZFERRREBERERERA
FEEETZMERS - BITS
ARREE AEEMESRE
EMATSHRERBAMZEAE -
HETASFHABIR - FHAFE
R TEFTERRDBRERYF
BEEERIIRZEMEEER TR
PEHLIBAERE °

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not

B 3% B b 1 ()

3.3 QAT EMFT@E

AEHEERMSEESMTALZ

traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in Level 3.

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair
value measurements within Level 2 and Level 3 are
as follows:

Valuation technique

fl B B2 1l

RNFEDRBEERMNERE - &2
AESAEBEEMSBIELEARE
MAORBEERSEGIE  HF
HERTEEERTEREDS
g - WA E-BIAZATE
PIBCERNBABTEE BB
=-BBITASAS2R -

fie — 18 3k % 18 & A% A\ BB I IF
REANBERTESHREFSE BH
TASAEIAL -

F2M M EIR AT EFEMER
i E RE A BB

Significant inputs

EXRBARE

Financial assets at fair value through other Quoted market prices for Observable quoted

comprehensive income (Level 2)

(F24%)

Financial assets at fair value through other Net asset value™°®

comprehensive income (Level 3)

similar instruments

BATVTEREEMEZEARSEIRZEMEE AEITAZTS®RE

BATEERMRAERIEZSREE AEFE

(384

Note: The Group has determined that the reported net
asset value represents fair value at 31 December
2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BHXEERMEREm@m

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMF @
There were no changes in valuation techniques HERTRFARETRES -

during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into AREEBzHRERREREFE
and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of BER I IBREESL A E
the date of the event or change in circumstances REAREBEHQATESEL -

that caused the transfer.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 BHE-Z-NFRFE—N\F+=
and 2018, there were no significant transfers of A=T—HLHE AFESZH
financial assets between level 1, 2 and 3 fair value BE1 2R3 e R EE 2
hierarchy classifications. W E RERE -

The fair value of the following financial assets and UWTeRmEERBE AT EH
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts: HIFEEMRS:

e Trade and other receivables o EUCIR IR I E b FE UK

e Amount due from an associate, net e EW—MEEATRIBFE
e Amount due from a joint venture o REIW—FELEAFINIE

e Cash and cash equivalents e HREKBEFED

e Short-term bank deposits o  HIRITHER

*  Restricted cash e TRHIEE

e Trade and other payables e ENBRERREMEMNK

e Borrowings e &

e |ease liabilities e HEARE

e Amount due to a shareholder e REN—HARERIEAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B 7% B B 1 ()
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 QAT EMFT@E

TEBIBE-T-NEFR-F
FIMIAEH -

The following table presents the changes in level
3 instruments for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Financial
assets at
fair value
Available-for-  through other
sale financial comprehensive

assets income Total
BRAFEEHA
AEHESE EERVEREZ
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BEBTT BEBTT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hE&E
—HA—H = 10.7 10.7
Return of Capital = NEIR = (0.9) (0.9)
Net loss recognised in 7 & #ER
reserves [Ri=DEE] = (0.5) (0.5)
At 31 December 2019 R=-Z—hH&
+=—B=+—H = 9.3 9.3
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F
—A—H 18.0 - 18.0
Reclassification on RNE BT
adoption of HKFRS 9 HEAFI5R
ZEHDE (18.0) 18.0 -
Return of capital =Ny - (5.5) (5.5)
Net loss recognised in WA & P iER
reserves [i= Pkt - (1.8) (1.8)
At 31 December 2018 ~ HRZZT—\&F
+=—A=+—8 - 10.7 10.7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@) Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases)

The fair value of each investment property, and the
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets (mainly
related to land leases) portfolio as at 31 December
2019 and 2018, are individually determined at
each balance sheet date by an independent valuer
based on a market value assessment. Knight
Frank was engaged to carry out the independent
valuation of the Group’s investment property and
right-of-use assets (mainly related to land leases)
portfolio as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. This
valuation was carried out in accordance with the
Valuation Standards on Properties of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors which defines market
value as “the estimated amount for which a
property should exchange on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion”.

E R H

AEERBAEERLEMER(BRE
BRREMHMELETRBRTHEE
BEEZEM)  THS[RHE(E
HEEf

AEBHREELBTRRER - B4
BE MBHZEMHEELHERH
MERARER - BRT—EAMKEF
EREENABBEREAELRERARR
B fh St R R AR T XAt

REWE FERAREE(XE
Rt HERR)TREEE
Z &8

EREVERFEAREE(EE
HEWHAERRAER-_ZT AN
FR_F—)\F+-_A=+—80K
AlEeEZATFE REEE
A /B G E % T E R A B
ETF HBEHAEBER_ZT—
NERZE—N\F+=ZA=1+—H
ZHREDERFEAREE(EE
B EER) AEETE
B ZEEDRESSNEME
GYEMBEERNEST - ZER
HMEZEEBIZYDERMGE
HEBEMSHEHEEZ HAREE
AREBEEAENE  BERT
B ZIBRT  HAFRAE
IRGMARBZIEFTE%E] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) (continued)

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s property portfolio by capitalising the
rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market
comparable transactions. The assumptions are
based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date.

For the right-of-use assets (mainly related to land
leases), management determined the recoverable
amount based on the valuation report prepared
by Knight Frank. Knight Frank has valued the
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets (mainly
related to land leases) on the basis that the
properties will be developed in accordance with
the information provided from management. It
is assumed that approvals for the development
scheme will be obtained without any onerous
condition which would affect the value of
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets (mainly
related to land leases). In arriving the opinion
of value, Knight Frank has made reference to
comparable transactions in the locality and has
also taken into account the construction costs that
will be expended to complete the development and
the quality of the completed development in the
development scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(@)

Valuation of investment properties/
recoverable amount of right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) (continued)

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with its own
assumptions, with reference to comparable
sales transaction data where such information
is available, and has concluded that the Knight
Frank valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio and right-of-use assets (mainly related to
land leases) is reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties
had been 10% higher or lower than the value
stated on the valuation report, the fair value
adjustment for the year arising from the Group’s
investment properties would have been increased
or decreased by HK$1,220.5 million (2018:
HK$1,287.4 million).

Provision for properties held for sales,
properties under development and right-
of-use assets (mainly related to land
leases)

The Group assesses the carrying amounts
of properties held for sales, properties under
development and right-of-use assets (mainly
related to land leases) according to their estimated
net recoverable amount based on the realisability
of these properties, taking into account of costs
to completion based on past experience and net
sales value based on prevailing market conditions.
Provision is made when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be realised. The assessment requires the
use of judgement and estimates.

4

EXREFHE R A @

(@)

REVE FAREE(XE
HitHEERE) TKRE SEE
ZAHE (#)

EEEEEMKT 2EE XE
SEARBZRBAHEXZHIE -
HEREAGHNERFELE &
RABRRKITHAEEREYMEA
EhEREEE(ERHETHM
EAMMAEEBAE -

W% EME 2 HERGERSH
FIBES LR R10% @ RFE
BEAREREMFXELEZATE
=2 FE 18 0 3k Rk 401,220,500,000
7 T (ZF — )\ : 1,287,400,000
B IT) °

BRIFHERBRZWE - HESP
MERERAEEE(EERL
HwEERR)NRE

AEERBYROATEREN G
FHEATWEFE - BRI RER
BEEROTIRKARRBITHR
R EFE  AFEEHERR
ZWEBRTDEREREE
EXEELWHEEARNERR
B EEFHREHBRBTRE
T 1B R 6 BE B2 3R B 4F L 348 © 3%
AT {l A B A KB R Ad 5t e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

Impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related to
power plants in the Mainland China

Plant and equipment are reviewed by management
for impairment losses whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount is
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use of the plant and equipment. Management
makes judgements on whether such events or
changes in circumstances have occurred, and
makes estimates in determining the recoverable
amount. In the situation where the value in use
of plant and equipment cannot be assessed due
to the uncertainties of the operation model in the
future, management has assessed the respective
recoverable amount solely based on the fair value
less costs to sell. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recovered.

The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets (mainly related to
land leases) related to power plants in the Mainland
China have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable
in accordance with the accounting policy in
Note 2.11. The Group reviews certain indicators
of potential impairment such as operating
performance, actual electricity dispatched, tariff of
electricity and other general market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS(WMM%@

()

Impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related
to power plants in the Mainland China
(continued)

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed
by comparing the carrying amount of the assets,
to the higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell,
and (i) the value-in-use of the cash-generating
units. The value-in-use of the cash-generating
units represents estimated future cash flows from
the continuous use of the assets, and requires
complex assumptions and estimates such as
future electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity and
discount rates. The discount rates used to discount
the estimated future cash flows are based on
the relevant industry sector risk premium and the
gearing ratio.

During the year, the Group has performed an
impairment assessment on the Renewable Energy
Projects. The value-in-use calculation was based
on the key assumptions, including i) average annual
tariff increment at approximately 2.0% (2018: 2.0%)
per annum based on management’s expectation
on market development and general inflation and ii)
projection of volume of electricity dispatched based
on the operational feasibility reports and historical
performances. The pre-tax discount rates applied
to the cash flow projections are 11.07%—-12.20%
(2018: 11.69%—12.27%) per annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
are higher than their respective carrying amounts.

Judgement is required in the area of impairment.
If there is a significant adverse change in the key
assumptions, it may be necessary to have an
impairment charge to the income statement.

4
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BRARESRETER 2 AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

Impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets
(mainly related to land leases) related
to power plants in the Mainland China
(continued)

With all other variables held constant, if there
is an average annual tariff reduction at 1.0%
(2018: 1.0%) throughout the operating period, the
recoverable amount would be higher than the
carrying amount (2018: the recoverable amount
would be less than the carrying amount by HK$3.6
million). Similarly, with all other variables held
constant, if the volume of electricity dispatched
is 10.0% (2018: 10.0%) less than management
expectation, the recoverable amount would be less
than the carrying amount by HK$12.6 million (2018:
HK$21.8 million).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determined is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for potential tax exposures based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

Impairment on financial assets

The impairment on financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information disclosed in the annual report
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments. In this regard, the Group is organised into the
following segments: Properties development (for sale or
lease upon completion of construction work), Property
investment and leasing, Renewable energy and Other
operations.

The Group’s most senior executive management
assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on operating profit after interest income and
expenses, taxation and share of profits/(losses) of
associates and a joint venture. Corporate expenses
mainly include the employee expenses of the head office,
interest income and expenses arising from the holding
companies and other administrative expenses of the
head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are managed on a central basis. These are part of the
reconciliation to total balance sheet assets. Corporate
assets mainly include the cash at bank, property, plant
and equipment and other receivables held by the head
office. The assets of each reportable segment comprise
the inter-segment receivables.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated income statement. Total segment
revenue from external customers also represents the
Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 7 2 E R (@)
The segment information for the reportable segments (ZEE-NFERZF-N\FT+A=Z
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as T+ —RIEFERZ2®RD Iz n & R0
follows: T
Properties development
NEER
Property Total
investment  Renewable  reportable
Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen and leasing energy  segments
NERE 2HSH
&5 k2 If REE BEER k|
HK$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEEn FE%Bn BHE®BrT BEBExT HEER  HEER
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-E-NE+=A=t-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers REMREP 2 W5 187.2 249.8 60.7 358.0 181.2 1,036.9
Inter-segment revenue AHENE = = = 0.2 - 0.2
Total revenue KEBE 187.2 249.8 60.7 358.2 181.2 1,087.1
Operating profit mERM 64.5 87.7 64.3 359.9 46.8 623.2
Finance income 873N 43 27 14 5.3 2.6 16.3
Finance costs BERK - - - (148.5) (@7.7) (176.2)
Share of profits less losses of associates  fE{4HE 4 A 7]
EHEER = = = 205 62.5 83.0
Share of loss of a joint venture Et-HeeRTER = = = (152.5) - (152.5)
Profit before income tax & B AR 68.8 90.4 65.7 84.7 84.2 393.8
Income tax expense FrEfz (2.3) (17.0) (26.0) (4.6) (9.9 (59.8)
Profit for the year REERF 66.5 73.4 39.7 80.1 74.3 334.0
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERBENE
equipment - (0.9) - (1.2) (82.4) (83.7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE - (19.2) - (2.0) (0.8) (22.0)
Fair value adjustments on investment RENFLATEAR
properties = = = 91.9 = 91.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBmRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o2ER@
Properties development
NEER
Property Total
Shanghai investment  Renewable Other  reportable
and Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin -~ Jiangmen and leasing energy  operations  segments
i NERE PES T
RitfT 25 RE iy REE BERER  AfhEH 2%
HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Milion  HK$ Milion ~ HKS Milion  HKS$ Milion ~ HKS$ Millon ~ HK$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion
BEgkn  BEER ABEAn  EEER  ABEET  REER  BEERT  BEEER
Year ended HE-E®- \ﬁ
31 December TZA=1-
2018 LEE
Revenue from external  RESNREF
customers pdl € 34 348.0 344.0 871 338.0 149.5 - 1,270.0
Inter-segment revenue 7 BRI M - - - - 04 - 43 47
Total revenue KEaE 34 348.0 344.0 871 3384 149.5 43 1,274.7
Operating profit KERN 398.9 104.4 1.0 211 534.4 339 - 1,203.7
Finance income BIBMA 01 31 35 09 6.8 32 - 176
Finance costs BARKA - - - - .0) (28.8) - (32.8)
Share of profits JEEHEAR
less losses of aAREE
associates - - - - 6.1 83.3 - 89.4
Share of loss of a joint  [Ef5— A ZAH
venture BR 35 - - - (69.4) - - (65.9)

Profit before income  fif 15 % A1 %

tax 402.5 107.5 114.5 220 4739 91.6 - 1,212.0
Income tax expense  FIRH I (107.2) (25.4) (33.6) (10.2) (108.3) (1) - (295.8)
Profit for the year ~ REE &7 295.3 821 80.9 1.8 365.6 80.5 - 916.2
Depreciation E - - (0.1) - (13 (71.0) - (72.4)
Amortisation B - - (200) - (24) (1.0) - (234)

Fair value adjustments £ ENEATEAE
on investment
properties 4024 - - - 2941 - - 696.5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Properties development

5 S2{ER @

NERE
Shanghai Property Total
and investment  Renewable Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Jiangmen and leasing energy operations  segments
Lt NERE TEHA B
RHT ER xE If REE BEEE HtER o3l
HKS Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HKS Million
BEEr FABEx HEEn HBEEr BBEEx  BEER  BEBT  BEER
As at 31 December RZZE-RE
2019 +ZB=1+-H
Total assets BELE 283.4 1,101.5 2,232.7 300.2 15,700.8 2,681.1 2.5 22,302.2
Total assets include: EEBBHE:
Interests in associates HA B & N E 2% - - - - 482.9 719.9 - 1,202.8
Interest in a joint R-HAER
venture ZER = = - - 1,443.9 - - 1,443.9
Total liabilities BELEE 186.4 426.9 1,326.0 85.7 5,202.7 1,048.7 = 8,276.4
As at 31 December R=Z-NF
2018 t=A=+-H
Total assets BELE 279.9 1,0974 2,307.6 3903 16,389.7 2,389.5 0.4 22,854.5
Total assets include:  ZEREARE:
Interests in associates 7B & 2] 2% - - - - 4701 740.2 - 12103
Interest in a joint R-HBaglH
venture pa 3= - - - - 1,626.7 - - 1,626.7
Total liabilities SEAE 188.5 4448 1,396.1 149.8 5,681.0 779.9 - 8,640.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

5 SEGMENT|NFORMAﬂ0N(wMMw® 5

A reconciliation of profit for the year of reportable

7 2 E R (@)
AWMy Bz AEE G ERNERZ K

segments to profit for the year of the Group is provided FEGAEROT :
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEFE ZZE)NF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET BEBT
Profit for the year of reportable A 23R 5 3 2 A F[Z &
segments 334.0 916.2
Unallocated amounts: Ko e :
Corporate (expenses)/income TEFRI]A -
- net (.7) 15.1
Gain on liquidation of B AR SR W - B8
subsidiaries — net 48.8 -
Fair value loss on financial BEAFEEERIER SR
assets at fair value through BEZATEBE - F58
profit or loss — net (3.6) -
Compensation income claimed — BLLARTFE —EE ZE/KEE
and received from an RIRBAFIRRERES
insurance company for a ZfEE A
project completed in prior
year - 25.9
Profit for the year of the Group A% B 2 NF [ i 7 377.5 957.2

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 7 2 E R (@)

Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total
assets as follows:

AZ2BNMEEREERBYERINT

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BEAT
Total segment assets DEPEERTE 22,302.2 22,854.5
Head office assets BWMEREE 1,253.8 1,759.1
Intra group elimination SE A EHE (1,841.8) (1,710.8)
Financial assets at fair value BEATELEEMEEmEBERYER
through other comprehensive L EREE
income 181 21.4
Financial assets at fair value EAFELEERYE
through profit or loss JERMEE 300.8 -
Total assets per consolidated MEEEBBERMINEERS
balance sheet 22,033.1 22,924.2

Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total
liabilities as follows:

AERoHAaERAERBHERNT

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZT)N\F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEEAT AHEETT

Total segment liabilities DE BB 8,276.4 8,640.1
Head office liabilities BIMEEREEE 44.8 207.7
Intra group elimination SERNELE (2,022.5) (1,878.0)

Total liabilities per consolidated #r&aBEBEXRMIIGERTE

balance sheet 6,298.7 6,969.8

Non-current assets other than financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are mainly
located in the Mainland China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 7 2 E R (@)
Analysis of revenue by category: BB D2 WEm DT
2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZE)N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEBT HEBTT
Sales proceeds from properties HEEHER R 2 EMSHIE
held for sale 497.7 782.5
Rental income from investment R &WEE S KA
properties 358.0 338.0
Renewable energy BERER 181.2 149.5
1,036.9 1,270.0
For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, HEZT-NWFERZFT—N\F+ZA=
revenue from external customers is substantially +—RHIEFE  INAREP 2K =B ARES
attributable to the China market and there is no revenue ARBFETSE  AERBE—IAE
derived from a single external customer exceeding 10% FPrW=mBBRa8E 210% °

of total revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

6 OTHER INCOME - NET

6 HMWKA-FHE

2019 2018
—B-hE —T)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBAL BEETT
Property management fee MEEBBIA
income 201 22.5
Rental income generated from REEHEREZYWEZHS KA
properties held for sale = 0.6
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEME  HWEREZEZ
property, plant and equipment  (E518) U2k — H%E
- net (3.3) 0.3
Fair value loss on financial assets & A F{EEEBZRYIERZ
at fair value through profit or CRMEEZAFEEBE - F8
loss — net (3.6) -
Exchange gain — net PEH W - JF5E 22.0 53.1
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries B ARS8 2 Wz - F58
- net 48.8 -
Compensation income claimed — BLLARTFE —EE T IEER
and received from an insurance R ABIRR RIEF Z@EWA
company for a project
completed in prior year = 25.9
Others Hth 36.7 32.8
120.7 135.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

OPERATING PROFIT 7 RERA
Operating profit was arrived at after (charging)/crediting KEHEFBNR) /KE2THES :

the following items:

2019 2018
—EB-RFE ZE)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBTT BEET
Employee benefit expenses 12 B 18 A 7 & (Ft 529)
(Note 9) (98.9) (104.8)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease &1 £ ith 8 & 7k # £ (Ff 5£15)
payments (Note 15) - (23.1)
Depreciation of right-of-use ERAEEENE (MiE15)
assets (Note 15) (22.0) -
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% « # 28 & &% 5 37 & (M 5E16)
and equipment (Note 16) (85.9) (74.7)
Cost of properties sold FAEEWEXR
during the year (298.9) (479.2)
Reversal of construction cost BEFEEEMEN
accruals for properties sold in JE TR SR K AN B B
previous years 97.4 -
Direct operating expenses arising 7] BtERFE & W A 2
from investment properties that I EWMEEL 2 HELERY
generate rental income (43.4) (53.8)
Write-off of trade and other T 55 1 UK BR SR K E A PR UK
receivables (11.9) (10.2)
Provision for impairment of trade & I BR 58 2 5L (B B 1
receivables (21.2) 4.9
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S Em B &
- Audit services - ZE R (4.8) (4.8)
- Non-audit services - EZERT (1.3) (1.9)
Rental expense relating to short- ERHAHEESEMNE SN
term leases (0.8) -
Exchange gain — net fEH W - JF5E 22.0 53.1
Write-back of provision for legal %12 & 8% # & B @
claim 1.4 -

Operating lease payments
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FREMBHRRMTE
8 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME - NET 8 (MEMAR) HBWA - FHE
2019 2018
—B-nE -—T-N\&
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BEET
Finance costs: b & KA
Interest expenses on bank RITERFERX
borrowings (167.9) (158.8)
Interest expenses on amount ER—ZIRRFKEBENBRZ
due to a shareholder (MF7E38)
(Note 38) (10.4) ©9.9)
Interest expenses on lease HEBBEMNERX
liabilities (2.7) 4.0)
Interest expenses on other HMEHFERXZ
loans (9.1) (9.5)
(190.1) (182.2)
Less: amounts capitalised B BEERNMbz &% 12.5 148.8
(177.6) (33.4)
Finance income: 0 N
Interest income on bank RITTF A B HA
deposits 572 41.8
Finance (costs)/income — net (BMERA), TIBWA - F58 (120.4) 8.4

Note: The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount Bt 3% -

of finance costs to be capitalised is the weighted
average interest rate applicable to the Group’s general
borrowings during the year, in this case 4.82% (2018:

4.84%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEFEABEX
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT BEBT
Wages, salaries and other T8 - HakHEMEF
benefits (95.8) (101.19)
Pension costs — defined BIKEKA - TREEREEI(H5E)
contribution plan (Note) (3.1) (8.8)
Write back of unused annual AEHAFHRED
leave = 0.1
Charged to income statement, BEEEZKRNRFRE
net (98.9) (104.8)
Note: Bt 3T -

The Group uses the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme
vest immediately. The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in compliance
with the requirements of respective municipal governments.

REBIZBEBRFIELESTEEG 2
MERL—HABESE  ARES SR
BEAIIZEZEEM®Z - BESTE A
BUEAATRE Y EREMERKESEE -
BERELTE  BEEREREHARR
EEMBWAZ%METEIELHZR B
Az 8 B8 U8 A BA30,0005% 7T & F IR - &t 2l
HABEEEHBENRREE - AEEAFPH(E
BERAREFTEZHEATIEFTAMBETERA
MEZBEDLIER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2018: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented on Note 42. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2018: one) individuals during the year are

EEMEBES AL

FR - ARERERSFALEENA
“E-N\FOREFE WEZHME
SR EA225 2 0ITRER - FREHRT
—H(CE-N\EF: —R)EMALTZE
HEEmT:

as follows:
2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBRT ER-N w
Salary and other benefits He R HMEF 2.7 2.6
Discretionary bonus 15 AL 0.4 0.7
3.1 3.3

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

FEATEANA :

No of individuals
AE
2019 2018
—E-NE  —T)N\#F

Emoluments band (in HK dollar) %7 Bl 4% 51 (& 7T)

HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 BRI
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made AR AEEREEZE_SE—NFR-2F—
as the Group has no assessable profit for the years NF+ A=+ HIFETERER
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. Mainland China EA - M EREENSRAELES -
income tax includes corporate income tax which has FEAAER(BIECEMESH)IZ
been provided on the estimated assessable profits BRIER B A A E B AR 2T ER
of subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China at FRaA - 225% (ZF —\F : 25%) ~
25% (2018: 25%). Withholding tax was provided for TEREHEE B E THPER
dividend distributed and undistributed profits of certain HWHE AR RBE AR ZED KK E
subsidiaries and associates in the Mainland China at a RARDIREF - HE5%5k10% (ZF—N
rate of 5% or 10% (2018: 5% or 10%). F 1 6% H10%) 2 B KA H B o
Mainland China land appreciation tax is provided at AR B A B D 3G (B B BE A E R
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 40% (2018: T80% £40% (ZF—/)\F : 30% = 40%)
30% to 40%) on the appreciation of land value, being L EBEETREE  THABEBNEEY
the proceeds of sale of properties less deductible ¥MBRERETIHBASZ(BE L
expenditures (including costs of land use rights and TRAENARYFEERMASZ) -
property development expenditures).
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZBN\HF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEARL ER:- 3w
Current income tax BN EA AT 13 Bt
Mainland China income tax B A b P A B (61.9) (83.7)
Mainland China land B A bt 3 R B B
appreciation tax (29.1) (37.6)
I 010 (213
Deferred income tax (Note 34) i iE BT 15 % (Fff 5£34)
Credited/(charged) to the REBHEZE R (HR)
income statement 147  (191.0)
(76.3) (312.3)

Note:

The share of income tax expense of associates amounting to
HK$21.0 million (2018: HK$34.2 million) and the share of income
tax expense of a joint venture amounting to HK$4.0 million
(2018: share of income tax credit of HK$2.3 million) are included
in the Group’s share of profits less losses of associates and
share of loss of a joint venture respectively.

GEE

FEAR B & R E] 2 FTE B2 421,000,000
JC (=% — )\ : 34,200,000 7T) K& fE 15 —
f & & QAR ZAT8#i X th A4,000,000% 7T
(ZZ—N\F : BB K % 52,300,000
BIL)  DRIFFAAREE 2 BREE A QAR
FREEREE—MAEEQGEIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FEHRIH@
The tax of the Group’s profit before income tax differs REBRAEHRAEN 2B - H2iEA
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the RE O 2 0% T ER B A F 5 B &
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the SHzEweREzEZ20T:

consolidated entities as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hAFE ZF)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERAT BEATT

Profit before income tax and share  FT 153 % B & 1~ 62 3 & 15 B 2 A A)
of results of associates and a joint N — AL ARIEE ZHF

venture 523.3 1,246.0
Tax charge calculated at the REBHEBERN 2 & FrEA

domestic rates applicable to profits B Rt E 2B X

in the respective countries (115.6) (295.0)
Expenses not deductible for taxation A~ A[#1F: 2 3%

purposes (22.0) (21.4)
Income not subject to tax BERT WA 56.0 52.1
Utilisation of previously unrecognised {& Fi %t Al < #E 52 2 75 T8 &5 18

tax losses 1.5 3.2
Over/(under)-provision in prior years BEFEBEEE,(BETL) 11.4 (5.4)
Tax losses for which no deferred RERBELEMSH 2 HMIBERE

income tax was recognised (40.8) (5.6)
Temporary differences not AR ERE5E

recognised 4.4) 9.7
Recognition of previously BRATRER LR ESE

unrecognised temporary

differences 87.3 6.8
Mainland China land appreciation tax 7 Bl A #th + b 1% (& §3 (29.1) (37.6)
Withholding tax on dividend MEAR R E AR ZEDIK

distributed and undistributed B R DR E T 2 B

profits of subsidiaries and

associates (20.6) (19.1)
Tax expense I8 X H (76.3) (312.3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SEREF
(a) Basic @ EF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing BREREFTIRIBEARRG # =
the profit attributable to equity holders of the BAEAEBGRMNBRAFASET
Company by the weighted average number of TERCMEFLHEE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019 2018
—E-nFE —T—)\F

Profit attributable to equity KAEEmFE ARG
holders of the Company (BBBT)
(H K$ Million) 278.7 7341

Weighted average number of B 217 & i % 2 i FH &

ordinary shares in issue (B8®)

(Million) 527.4 508.8
Basic earnings per share BRERZFN(GRAEML)

(HK cents per share) 52.8 138.8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all

12 BREF @

(b) #8

FREERMN B BHERTE
BB 2 N8 - ARER AT
ERBEBECERBOEEALEM

dilutive potential ordinary shares. FTE o
2019 2018
—E-nEFE —T—)\F
Profit attributable to equity KREEmFE ARG
holders of the Company (BEBBT)
(HK$ Million) 278.7 7341
Effect of assumed conversion R X BHHBARETZ
of convertible notes issued AMBRER I FE
by a subsidiary (HK$ Milion) (B & T) (4.3) (2.5)
Effect of assumed conversion BRI EKB AR T2
of warrants issued by a REEFZTEBHEEL
subsidiary (HK$ Million) - 0.4)
Profit used to determine ARETEREERFN 25T
diluted earnings per share (BBAT)
(HK$ Million) 274.4 731.2
Weighted average number FEEREERN
of ordinary shares for Tk mEFHE(EE)
calculation of diluted
earnings per share (Million) 527.4 528.8
Diluted earnings per share EREERZN (ERBNL)
(HK cents per share) 52.0 138.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRHE
13 DIVIDENDS 13 BRE
2019 2018
ZB-hE —TN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEETT AEETT
Interim dividend paid, of HK13 ~ BEIERFHIK & - T @135
cents (2018: HK13 cents) —Z—\F 13
per ordinary share 68.7 68.7
Final dividend proposed, of HK13 #E Ik & Hif% 8 - & I I @ 1378 1L
cents (2018: HK13 cents) ZE—)\F 135 M)
per ordinary share 66.5 68.7

On 31 March 2020, a final dividend of HK13 cents per
ordinary share payable in cash in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 is proposed by the Board
and the amounts are not accounted for until they are
approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. As the proposed final
dividend is declared after the balance sheet date, such
dividend is not recognised as liability as at 31 December
2019.

On 22 August 2019, the Board has declared an interim
dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share payable in
cash, amounting to a total of HK$68.7 million was paid
in September 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, a final dividend
of HK13 cents per ordinary share payable in cash,
amounting to a total of HK$68.7 million was paid in June
2019.

R-Z-_BE=A=+—H BFe
FREHEE2-_FT—NF+-_A=1+—8
IEFEZREBRE  SREERIRE
WE13BI > FHERRREBRITZA
NERERAFRE BB - AREIK
B ARYREREEEABRHEE
K MAIEZE—NFF+=—A=+—
AW A& -

RZBE-AENAZ+-H BEgT
IR EIAR B TR SRR R 23R £13
Bl & 5HA68,700,0008 TER-Z
—NEFENALA -

(2T —)\F+-_A=+—HLFE
BB AR R 23R 21378 1l 2 R Ef iR
B A45/468,700,0008 TE R -8 —
NENBZIN -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 BREYE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEERT BEET
At 1 January w—A—H 12,344.9 12,280.5
Currency translation differences [ ¥, & = %3 (247.6) (648.6)
Additions NE = 16.5
Cost adjustments X 7S 3 (208.8) -
Fair value adjustments, net N EFHEFE 91.9 696.5
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 11,980.4 12,344.9
Notes: B 5
(@ At 31 December 2019, investment properties of @ RZE—NALEF+ZA=+—8 &
HK$9,571.7 million (2018: HK$9,792.8 million) were {89,571,700,0007 T (=& — N\ & :
pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings (Note 9,792,800,0008 L) 2 I EWE - B
32). 1B BN 5 & BT {8 51 2 3598 (I 5
32) °
(o)  Fair value hierarchy b) RAFEFR

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Knight Frank
to determine the fair value of the investment properties
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. Significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) were used in fair value
measurements of investment properties.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 has been determined
on the basis of valuations carried out by an independent
qualified valuer not related to the Group, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of
the investment properties valued. The Group employed
Knight Frank to value its investment properties. For
all investment properties, their current use equates
to the highest and best use. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held between the Group’s
senior management and valuers at least once every
six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. At each reporting date the Group’s
senior management:

- verifies all major data inputs to the independent
valuation report;

- assess property valuations movements when
compared to the prior period valuation report;

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are also analysed at each
reporting date by the Group’s senior management.

14

BEWE @
AEBZEEFLRE

AEEZAFEFEEREME - K
SER=_ZE-NFER=ZZE-N\FT=A
T —RZEREWMEZAFENER
AEEVWEBEZBYABERGER
ETHNEBENEMEL  ZEHEMRE
BHEBARTEEER  WHAMBEN
EYER M BB AT LR -
AEBEZERTHHREMEHETE
EFffh - BLATAKREMEMS - B
MERENEESM&RESFER - A/
AAREENFHMFERERR  &~&
BrafEEERtEmsz 8, @A
St EARNEBESER R - R
®EHH AEBaRERE:

- REBYMRERENMAEEARHK
EE A

- FIEYEAEEBEHBGER
LN R E)

- BEBYMHEMETHR -

ARE EREEENEESBRED
WA ESRATEZED -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

14

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs

Fair values of completed commercial properties in
Shanghai, Nanxun, Shenzhen and Tianjin are generally
derived by using the income capitalisation method. This
valuation method is based on the capitalisation of the net
income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from
analysis of market transactions and valuers’ interpretation
of prevailing investor expectations. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have been referenced to
recent lettings, within the subject properties and other
comparable properties.

Fair value of completed commercial properties in Beijing
is generally derived by using the income capitalisation
method with reference to its profit rent originated from
the lease term interest and its rights in sub-letting and/
or transferring the lease term interest of the property.

Fair value of completed commercial property in
Hong Kong is generally derived by using the direct
comparison method. This valuation method is based on
comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of commercial
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required
to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect
the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.
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BEWE @
HERE M

BRRABEXRELIBENBABBETH
AVEE

RLEE BB RIRRZEZEEKE
XMENRVFEEEMRABRAER
RETE - WEESATDERNBBERA
BEZEMMEL R - SETERAFENR
EHRWATUNERL - MEACELXTS
BREMER S REEMDITIRITER
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LY ERT AR B RMETE

RUERZEERBEDENAFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation techniques (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (continued)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for
the valuation for the years ended 31 December 2019

14 REYHE @

7 {8 $52 105 (40)

RAEXBEIBENBABBETH
AV E B

BHEe_Z—hEr-_ZE—N\F+-A=
+—BIEEZ2HENGERMEE

and 2018. T -
Relationship of
Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs unobservable inputs to fair
Description technique(s) inputs (probability-weighted average) value
BEBE EBLBEERAYBEE ELBEERARE
kS i B £ i WAHE (% 2= fn 48 P19 E) HATLENBER
Commercial properties Income Capitalisation 5%-8.25% The higher the capitalisation
in Nanxun, Beijing, capitalisation rate (2018: 5%—8.25%) rate, the lower the fair
Shenzhen, Tianjin method value
and Shanghali
REs - tx- WA BARE ERf b= 5% %£8.25% BRfLRAS -
R RER (ZF—\F : 5%%8.25%) REERE
rEZEEDE
Average RMB1.2-RMB7.9 The higher the daily rental
market (2018: RMB1.2-RMB7.9) value, the higher the fair
rental per square meter per day value
THmEHEe BSHSTHFRARBI2TZARYE SHEEEERS
T (ZE-N\F: ARK127T NEEES
z AR¥797T)
Commercial properties  Direct Market unit HK$18,700 (2018: HK$19,500) The higher the market unit
in Hong Kong comparison rate per square feet rate, the higher the fair
method value
REBZBEDE BEEYILZE MHEMEE SFHERIBTOBT(ZE-N\F: mHEENEERS
19,5007 7T) AFERSD

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/PREPAID LAND 15
LEASE PAYMENTS

ERAEEE FANLHBEER

Prepaid Right-
land lease of-use
payments assets
A L ERE
HER BE

HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERET  HEAER

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-hE+=-A=+-—H
IEFEE

Opening net book amount FYER®FE 1,472.1 -
Reclassification on adoption of N E BB SR EER FE165 2

HKFRS 16 E iR (1,472.1) 1,472.1
Currency translation differences EHMmEER = (30.3)
Additions NE - 42.8
Amortisation capitalised in properties B E N ERE P W EE K

under development = (7.6)
Depreciation charged to income WEERBRENR

statement (Note 7) (Bt 5E7) = (22.0)
Closing net book amount FERE FE - 1,455.0
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-N\¥+=-A=+—H

LEE

Opening net book amount FYIREFE 1,579.6 -
Currency translation differences EHMmEER (79.2) -
Additions NE 2.1 -
Amortisation 5

- Capitalised in properties under -ERERFMEERL

development (7.3) -
- Charged to income statement - ERBERMNG
(Note 7) (Bt &£7) (23.1) -

Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 1,472.1 -

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of the
Group’s right-of-use assets consists of land leases and
office premises of HK$1,454.3 million and HK$0.7 million
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/PREPAID LAND 15 EHEEE #HAFLBER
LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) ()
Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s 7N £ B BR TE (B 44,900,000 7T 2 15 FA 1
right-of-use assets (mainly related to land leases) with EE(FEHR+WHEEAR CEE(Z
carrying values of HK$44.9 million (2018: secured by T — \F : N & & R H {847,500,000%
the Group’s prepaid land lease payments with carrying TN ERE T UEGE
values of HK$47.5 million) (Note 32). FRITEFH(HFE32) -
16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - MERBRHE
Electric
utility Other  Leasehold
Construction plant and plant and land and
in progress  equipment  equipment buildings Total
BRER Hirses HELH#
HEIR &L Rk#&E REF “E
HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER BEAR BEER BEAR BEER
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZE-ZE-hE+=-A=t+—-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FUNERFE 321.0 828.0 4.4 776 1,230.7
Currency translation differences [ X B E 2% 4.9) (18.7) 0.2 (0.6) (24.0)
Additions NE 210.3 8.0 0.5 = 218.8
Disposals & - (10.5) - - (10.5)
Transfer # (302.6) 302.6 - - -
Write-off 3 (1.1) - - - (1.1)
Depreciation (Note 7) G ED = (81.9) (1.6) (2.4) (85.9)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 222.7 1,027.5 3.2 74.6 1,328.0
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=B=1+-H
Cost AR 222.7 1,751.3 7241 98.0 2,144.1
Accumulated depreciation and 2t & K EE
impairment - (723.8) (68.9) (23.49) (816.1)
Net book amount REFE 2227 1,027.5 3.2 74.6 1,328.0

Included in leasehold land and buildings, there is a right-
of-use asset which is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and lease term on a straight-line basis.

HELHWERBFEBETHREREINE
EZAEREHIEEFHIREE
ARENEZERREE -
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RE MWK EE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

16 Y% - BRRE@

Electric
utility Other Leasehold
Construction plant and plant and land and
in progress  equipment  equipment buildings Total
Hitigss  HELH
ERIRE BERNRE B RETF BE
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEETL BHEET BEETL BEET BEETL
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ-F-\E+-HA=1—-H
tEE
Opening net book amount FORERE 36.1 9123 4.2 81.7 1,034.3
Currency translation differences  [E {2 & =% (14.3) (45.8) (0.4) 1.7 (62.2)
Additions AE 3244 7.2 2.0 - 3333
Transfer B (24.9) 249 - - -
Depreciation (Note 7) & (M7 - (70.6) (17) 2.4) (74.7)
Closing net book amount FREMTE 321.0 828.0 41 776 1,230.7
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZB-N\¥+=A=t-H
Cost KA 321.0 1,493.8 740 98.8 1,087.6
Accumulated depreciation and 2t & K FE
impairment - (665.8) (69.9) 21.2) (756.9)
Net book amount REFE 321.0 828.0 41 776 1,230.7

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s construction in progress, properties, plant and
equipment with carrying values of HK$1,228.5 million
(2018: HK$1,124.3 million) (Note 32).
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RE MWK EE

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 BREE

Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Hith
EE BREEE e
HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBET BEBET BEBET
Year ended 31 December BE-Z-hF+=-A=+—H
2019 HEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE = 1.4 1.4
Amortisation B - (0.4) (0.4)
Closing net book amount FREEMEFE - 1.0 1.0
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AF+=-A=+—H
Cost AR 409.5 2.4 411.9
Accumulated amortisation and £ 5t # 85 KR E
impairment (409.5) (1.4) (410.9)
Net book amount BRMEFE - 1.0 1.0
Year ended 31 December BE-_Z-N\E+=-A=+—H
2018 IEEE
Opening net book amount FYE®EFEE - 1.6 1.6
Currency translation differences [ i ¥ & = %8 - (0.1) (0.1)
Additions AE - 0.2 0.2
Amortisation 5 - (0.3) (0.3)
Closing net book amount FRIRMEFE - 1.4 1.4
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\F+=ZA=+—H
Cost B AR 409.5 2.4 411.9
Accumulated amortisation and 2 &+ §5 &R E
impairment (409.5) (1.0) (410.5)
Net book amount R F(E - 1.4 1.4

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

18 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18 BRPWH

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEEAET BEBTT

Properties under development BEREPYWEBE:

comprise:
Construction costs and BERARERNMEAZ
capitalised expenditure 412.8 300.4
Prepaid land lease payments N HEER = 255.2
Right-of-use assets TREEE 262.8 -
675.6 555.6
Less: current portion of B EERYERNBRE S
properties under
development (126.5) -
5491 555.6
The properties under development are all located in the ERPYERIMCAFEAM -
Mainland China.
Properties under development relating to a certain g1 H th —15 B B @9 2126,500,000/% 7T
project of HK$126.5 million (2018: Nil) are expected to ZE-N\F E)ERTYEEANEK
be completed and available for sale within next twelve R+Z{E AR - BRI HEE - R
months. At 31 December 2019, no bank borrowings are E-NF+A=+—H XrEELE
secured by the Group’s properties under development (Z2E-N\F EEERYEDERIU
(2018: Nil) (Note 32). HR A5 R 17 18 3K (BT 3£32) ©
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RAEVMBHRRME
19 SUBSIDIARIES

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December
2019 is HK$2,783.2 million (2018: HK$2,752.2 million),
of which HK$734.7 milion (2018: HK$727.4 million)
is for China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
and HK$2,094.8 million (2018: HK$2,067.5 million)
is attributed to Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited. The profit allocated
to non-controlling interests of China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited is HK$32.6 million (2018:
HK$35.1 million) and the profit allocated to non-
controlling interests of Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited is HK$70.8 million (2018:
HK$190.2 million) for the year ended 31 December
2019. The ownership interests held by non-controlling
interests of China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
and Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate Development
Company Limited are 44.31% and 40% respectively as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: 44.31% and 40%). The
non-controlling interests in respect of these subsidiary
companies are material to the Group.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
(before inter-company eliminations) for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

19 KB A

EXRFERESR

RZZE—hNhE+-_A=+—8B23
A% KE 2 42 5B A2,783,200,0007% JT
(= & — )\ F£:2,752,200,000/% 7T) -
H 734,700,000/ (= & — )\ F:
727,400,000/8 70) AT B B A RIEE
AR AT }2,094,800,00078 T (= Z —
J\F 1 2,067,500,0008 T) %k &8 L8 E
HEMERZEERAR HE_ZT—
NF+-—A=+—BUIFE »EFH
BEHEEREERRARZIEERE
5 /) %% F A£32,600,0008 T (ZZE — N\
F 1 35,100,000/8 L) Mo EFLEE
MEWEREER AR ZIEERER
#93% K £&70,800,00058 7T (Z T — )\ 4 ¢
190,200,000/ L) c RZE—hF+=
A=+—H #BEBLEERERREER
RAN L EEAEEREBERAT
EERERBECEEREDF A
44.31% K40% (ZF — )\ F : 44.31% &
40%) - HALEME BHZENE
REIZIEEREZBEREK -

TXHIABHASEMSBEAM

BAEFERER Z2ENBARR AR
M HEA 2P BEERBE -
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REMBHRRHE
19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 MIE 2R @
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BARFERELS @
Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 HE+-_A=1+—HLFEZERXHE
December 2
China Shanghai Guangtian
Renewable Energy Real Estate Development
Investment Limited Company Limited
PEBERERRE Lt EEHREER
BRAEFE BRAEFE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-AEFE —E-N\F ZB-hF ZTNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million  HKS$ Million
BEBTT AEETT BEBTT AEETT
Revenue W 181.2 149.5 196.8 164.9
Profit for the year REE 5 57.8 63.0 177.0 475.4

Total comprehensive 2EWA S (EE)

income/(loss) @ 22.3 (28.6) 68.4 203.7
Dividends paid to [EENE Y

non-controlling BEmRE

interests (8.9) (8.9) - -
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RE MWK EE

19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

19 KB 2R @

China
Renewable Energy
Investment Limited

EREERER @
R+ -_A=+—HZEEBGBLARE

Shanghai Guangtian
Real Estate Development
Company Limited

FEIBERERRE LtEEHREHERR
BRAOF BRAOF

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-AF ZZTE-NF ZE-hF ZENF
HK$ Million HK$ Milion HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
BE#ERT BEATL BEEAT BEBT
Non-current assets ~ JERENE E 2,162.8 2,106.1 9,529.0 9,773.8
Current assets MEEE 631.9 419.3 233.7 347.2
Total assets BEEBSE 2,794.7 2,525.4 9,762.7 10,121.0
Non-current liabilities JER 8 & (& 552.7 4147 3,676.9 3,835.8
Current liabilities mEBAE 512.4 383.4 849.5 1,117.3
Total liabilities BEBHE 1,065.1 7981 4,526.4 4,953.1

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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REBMEN
19 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19 KE2QE @
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BARFERELS @
Summarised cash flows for the year ended 31 HE+t-A=-+—RHLEFEZRESRE
December BE
China Shanghai Guangtian
Renewable Energy Real Estate Development
Investment Limited Company Limited
PEBLERRRE L5 R H it = R
BRAHF BRAF
2019 2018 2019 2018

—B-NE —T\F —B-AE —ET-)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Milion HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT  EEAT  BEET  A8ER

Net cash generated I TSRS

from operating HeFH

activities 89.6 51.2 153.6 98.4
Net cash used in REEHMA

investing activities R&F8E (44.2) (231.2) (132.1) (526.1)
Net cash generated MEFHME

from/(used in) (AR & F5

financing activities 104.3 43.3 (20.0) 426.0

Net increase/(decrease) IRE&ERIREEEY

in cash and cash #wmCRd) F8E

equivalents 149.7 (136.7) 1.5 (1.7)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on FTEWB AR ZFBEH N E234F238
pages 234 to 238. B o
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RE MWK EE

20

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

20 REBERT ZES

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$ Million HKS$ Million

BHEBTT BEBT

Group’s share of net assets AEBEMEEFE 1,063.5 1,071.0
Amount due from an associate, net & Ux — & Bt & A &) 30 18 7% 58 139.3 139.3
1,202.8 1,210.3

Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest
free and not repayable within the next twelve months.
The carrying amount approximates its fair values. The
balance is denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The following financial information, after making
adjustments to conform to the Group’s significant
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate

W — B E AR RESEER 2
BRBERART-_EAREE - &
HEEEQAFERAE HEHRNUAET
G o

THMBEH CERAREERGHIK
RMABR)RMRAEES K EEBE
RAN( BRI ELMEE) 2 WS EARE

share of revenue and results of associates, all of which BEatan T
are unlisted, and is summarised as below:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEET BEATT
Revenue g #= 228.0 2521
Profit before income tax T 15 7 Bl & 71 104.0 123.6
Income tax expense Frig®isz i (21.0) (34.2)
Profit for the year REZ 5 F 83.0 89.4
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RE MWK EE

20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20 REtE QTR Z2ER @
Material associates BEXEE QT
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited, ERERERBEZ=ERBRAA - PETaE
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited BRERRNELEERATRPEHEE
and CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited are the BERNEEGRIL) BRARAHE RS
associates that are material to the Group. EmEBERNZHENA -
Details of principal associates are set out on page 239. FEBE AR 2 BENEF289. -
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXEHINEKREEQE 2 WEERTE
for the material associates. The information reflects the 2o BAWEENRMAEE QNFMME
amounts presented in the financial statements of the WERAZINAREE WA AEE R
associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies HENRZEFBRNEEELHA
between the Group and the associates. o
Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 HET-A=T—HLEFEZEREXHE
December 2
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC

Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power

Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total

EERRGRER THEER(ERIRIRE THREARAIRECEL)

BRAF BRAR BRAF Fob)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

SE-AF “FNF SR-AE CF0\F CE-AF SF\F SE-AF CFNE
HKS Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS$ Million  HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
EEEL  EEBT  AERR  mEAT  EESR  AEBT  EEER  EEAR

Revenue Wz 89.1 95.8 218.5 238.7 191.9 214.3 499.5 548.8
Profit for the year KEFE 511 153 107.7 1126 32.8 68.3 1916 196.2
Other comprehensive loss £ 1% & 2 (19.1) (58.0) (16.8) (43.8) (14.8) 419 (50.7) (143.7)
Total comprehensive 2ARA/(BR)

income/(loss) o 32.0 @2.7) 90.9 68.8 18.0 2.4 140.9 525
Dividends from the BENAIREZRE

assoclates = 161 35.8 36.2 22.8 25.2 58.6 76.5
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RE MWK EE

20 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Material associates (continued)

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

20 REEZE DT 2= @)
Ep NI NCITE )
R+ -_A=+—HZEEBGBLARE

Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
ERERARER THEBR(ERIBELIRE THEEERNIRE(ERL)
BRAT ERAT BERAR am
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NF ZZ-)\F ZE-hfE ZZ-\Ff ZE-RAFf ZT-\f =ZB-NFf ZZT-N\F
HKS$ Million ~ HKS Milion ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS Million  HK$ Million
BEBT AEAR BEBT BBET  HEAR BEAT HBEBRT AEAR
Non-current assets FRDEE 1,393.8 1,378.7 951.8 1,041.0 909.8 9914 3,255.4 34111
Current assets TEEE 508.7 1727 347.7 240.6 191.0 249.1 1,047.4 662.4
Total assets BERH 1,902.5 1,651.4 1,299.5 1,281.6 1,100.8 1,240.5 4,302.8 40735
Non-current liabilities EEIN=Y 688.3 688.6 - - - - 688.3 688.6
Current liabilities mEaE 355.1 358 490.0 4734 403.6 504.1 1,248.7 1,013.3
Total liabilities BEEE 1,043.4 724.4 490.0 4734 403.6 504.1 1,937.0 1701.9
Net assets BEFE 859.1 827.0 809.5 808.2 697.2 736.4 2,365.8 23716

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interests

ERIZHMBENBERASENE
EXBERRZEaNREECH K

in its material associates: R
Hong Kong CECIC HKC (Gansu) CECIC HKC
Construction SMC Wind Power Wind Power
Development Limited Company Limited Company Limited Total
EEERARER THEARHERANRE PEHREERANIREGRL)
BRAR ERAR BRAR ag
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF Z2-)\F ZB-hE 2\ ZE-RAE ZE-)\f ZF-NF ZB-)F
HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Milion ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Milion ~ HKS$ Million  HKS$ Milion ~ HKS Million  HKS Milion
BEAL BEAT BEER BEET BEEL BEAT BEAL BEAT
Closing net assets FREEFE 859.1 827.0 809.5 808.2 697.2 736.4 2,365.8 23716
Group's share of net FEEEGEETE
assets (40%) (40%) 343.6 330.8 323.8 323.3 278.9 2945 946.3 948.6
Amount due from an [l —mEE AR
associate, net HEFE 139.3 139.3 = - = - 139.3 139.3
Carrying amount EEE 482.9 4701 323.8 323.3 278.9 294.5 1,085.6 1,087.9
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RE MWK EE

20

21

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Immaterial associates

The Group has interest in an immaterial associate. The
following financial information represents the Group’s
share of results of this associate and carrying amount
of interest in this associate.

20

REEE QT 2 =@
FEKREE QT

AEEN R EABE DTG
3 o TR B R B A B (5 3B
BARZ EERREME DA ES
B 1 -

2019 2018
—E2-NF —FT)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEAT BEBTT
Share of profit for the year FEMR R F E i F 6.4 11.0
Share of other comprehensive loss  J&{h H th 2 H &5 18 (2.5) 6.7)
Share of total comprehensive B2 E U A B EE
income 3.9 4.3
Carrying amount of interest in REZEE N RER 2 REE
this associate 117.2 122.4
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 21 R—BEERRAZER
2019 2018
—E-hE Z—ZT—)N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
Group’s share of net assets AEBEMEEFE 1,401.3 1,583.2
Amount due from a joint venture  JEU— A & QAT FHIE 42.6 435
1,443.9 1,626.7

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, amount due from a
joint venture is unsecured, interest free and not repayable
within the next twelve months. The carrying amount
approximates its fair values. The balance is denominated
in Renminbi.

There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the
Group’s interest in the joint venture as at 31 December
2019 and 2018.

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

R-E-NFR-ZFE-N\F+A=*
—B RBUE—HeERFRELEE
B 2RRBARKET_BARE
B REAEREQNFERSE - H&R
MAREREE -

RZE—NFER_F—)/\F+_A=+
—B . UEEEAEENEGE AR ZE
mZEANAERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21

M BRI

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 21

The following financial information represents the Group’s
aggregate share of results of the joint venture and is
summarised as below:

R—EBEERTZERE @

THHBEHNRRAEEASLEES
BRAZFREBALT:

2019 2018
—E-AEFE ZZE-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEATT BEET

Loss before income tax P %i Al ks 18
Income tax (expense)/credit FEH (), %
Loss for the year REEEE

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company
Limited is the joint venture of the Group.

Details of the joint venture are set out on page 239.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the joint venture. The information reflects the amounts
presented in the financial statements of the joint venture
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between
the Group and the joint venture.

(148.5) (68.2)
4.0) 2.3
(152.5) (65.9)
EBeBUENMEEEXEBRATALRE
HEERT o
AR RNEZFFBEH N E2398 o

TXENAERRZHBERBE -
ERERRBRESE QRN B RE
NEJNORE TR AKEESZE
AR ZHABTBRRNERFHAE -
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RE MWK EE

21 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 21

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31

R—EBEeg 2R m
HEt+t-A=1T—"BILFEZEZXH
=

December
Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited
tssRBENEBEE
BRALAT
2019 2018
=F-hAF ZFN\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEBT BEET
Revenue W = 965.5 628.3
Depreciation and amortisation P& K B (129.7) (127.8)
Fair value adjustments on REMEAFEFAE
investment properties (165.9) 18.4
Interest income F 2 WA 51.6 3.9
Interest expense MERX (651.7) (351.4)
Loss before income tax FristiaI B 1A (593.8) (273.0)
Income tax (expense)/credit e () #H e (16.1) 9.1
Loss for the year AEEEE (609.9) (263.9)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEE (118.4) (341.3)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEIB B (728.3) (605.2)

Dividend from a joint venture

—HAERFIKEZRE
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 21

Summarised balance sheet as at 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

R—EBEeg 2R m

RT-A=+—HAZEERABRRE

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

BB NHEEE
BRAF
2019 2018
—E-AFE —ZZE-)N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEBT BEATT
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,6684 17,9103
Current assets mBEE
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEDYD 441.3 271.8
Others Ao 2096 118.3
Total current assets nEAEMR®E 6509 3901
Non-current liabilities REEE
Financial liabilities (excluding TRHAEBETRERNER
trade and other payables and Ko B FE A FOA I B 45
provisions) 15,406.2 9,199.9
Others HAity 11,0739 = 1,079.0
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 16,4801 10,2789
Current liabilities MEEE 1,234.2 16887
Net assets EETFE 5,605.0 6,332.8

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

21 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in its joint venture:

21

R—EBEeg 2R m

E2MNZHMBERRBEREASRERE
BERRZEGNRAE HRNOT:

Shanghai Jingang
North Bund Real Estate
Company Limited

LiEEBEINEEE
BRAF
2019 2018

—E2-NF —FT)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT BEBTT

Net assets BEFE

Group’s share of net assets (25%) A& B (L& E % (8 (25%)

Amount due from a joint venture  EW—Ff& & QAR FKIE

Carrying amount BREAE

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

22

5,605.0 6,332.8
1,401.3 1,683.2

42.6 43.5
1,443.9 1,626.7

BAVEEHMEEERIK
ZEMEE

INCOME
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTR BEETT
Unlisted securities, at fair value BRAFEZIELETES 18.1 21.4

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity securities which
are not held for trading, and which the Group has
irrevocably elected at initial recognition to recognise in
this category. These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more relevant.
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REMBHRRMEE
23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 BAFEEERZIERzZE®ME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS E
2019 2018
—B-hE Z—ZT-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT EBBT
Equity securities, at fair value BERAVFEZRAERES
Listed in Hong Kong BEHELEM 288.8 -
Listed outside Hong Kong BEBBINET 12.0 -
300.8 -

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
comprise equity securities which the Group has not
elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through
other comprehensive income.

BATEEERIIEZEREERR
AEEYREZEHMOEZEBEER

NP EW R EEZ BAES

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24 #ZERE2z2E€mI A

206

Assets
at fair value Assets
through other at fair value
Assets at  comprehensive through
amortised cost income profit or loss Total
BATEE BATEE
RBHRE Htt2EES BRIk
HEZEE FIECEE BE bl
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BBET BBET BBET BB
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet SABEESERZEE
At 31 December 2019 RIBE-AF+-A=t—-AH
Financial assets at fair value through other BATEEEMR2EERIIGZ
comprehensive income (Note 22) SRBEF2) - 181 - 18.1
Financial assets at fair value through RATEEERIKRZ
profit or loss (Note 23) SREE (W09 = = 300.8 300.8
Trade and other receivables under MBEERNENERR
current assets H At B I 420.4 - - 420.4
Other receivables under non-current assets ERBEETH LML 56.2 - - 56.2
Restricted cash (Note 27) RHE & (W EE27) 200.1 - - 200.1
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 29) ReRBESEY (M 20 2,293.5 - - 2,293.5
Total @ 2,970.2 18.1 300.8 3,289.1
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+-A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through EATFEEAMEZARRNE
other comprehensive income (Note 22) SREEWEH2) - 214 - 214
Trade and other receivables under TRENE B R R
current assets T E fh FE MK 369.4 - - 369.4
Other receivables under non-current assets ERBEETH LML 67.6 - - 67.6
Restricted cash (Note 27) RFE & (W E27) 478.9 - - 478.9
Short-term bank deposits (Note 28) BRI (H 528 712.3 - - 712.3
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 29) ReRBLSEY (M F20) 1,889.6 - - 1,889.6
Total @ 3,617.8 214 - 3,5639.2
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RE MWK EE

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

25

(continued)

24 BREHNESZzEMIAE@

Other
financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
% 85 R AR
TEZHAM
tEAas
HK$ Million
BEBAT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet H&a&EERBEXRZERE
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) f& B (Ht 5£32) 2,967.9
Lease liabilities HEAE 30.7
Amount due to a shareholder (Note 35) JE - — & B 3R ) 38 (Y 5E35) 197.7
Trade and other payables (Note 33) JE AT BR 3R K L Ath B A< 3R (BT 3£33) 1,100.6
Total e 4,296.9
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+_A=+—H
Borrowings (Note 32) & 3% (Pff 5£32) 3,245.3
Amount due to a shareholder (Note 35) JE - — & B 3R ) 38 (Y 5E35) 197.5
Trade and other payables (Note 33) JE AT B 3R K2 L Ath B A< 3R (BT 5£33) 1,474.3
Total e 4,917
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, total cash s 2T —-—NF+=ZA=+—H

outflows for leases of HK$23.5 million was included in

net cash used in financing activities.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2019, no properties held for sale (2018:
Nil) was pledged as securities for the Group’s borrowings

(Note 32).

REFR o

25 FEERABRZYME

R-ZF-NF+-_A=1+—8 AEHE
HERGZMECE-N\F: 8)BE

FTFE - HEzHEREER
23,500,000/ 7T 7T A & & /& ) P A

R ER [ P FE AR SR 2 AR (P REB2) ©
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FREMBHRRMTE
26 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 26 ENNR- EBURERRKREMEK
RECEIVABLES A
2019 2018
—E-NFE ZE-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
Non-current FRE
Prepayments and other receivables T8 R R H At JE UK
(Note h) (M) 591 84.3
Current E
Trade receivables JE IR BR 3K 160.4 75.8
Less: provision for impairment R E R (81.9) (11.3)
Trade receivables — net FEUWERFK — F R 128.5 64.5
Bills receivable JE W 7 4.2 4.0
Prepaid taxes TEA B K 14.8 19.0
Prepayments, other receivables and ERNR - EtERK EIES
deposits 327.2 281.9
a7 3694
533.8 453.7
Notes: B 5
(@)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables by the Group’s @ REXR BRAEERRZERBELE D
revenue recognition policy at year end, net of provision REMBBERERGERZ EBKERE
for impairment, was as follows: BofmmT:
2019 2018
—2-AE —EN\F
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEET
Less than 2 months Lr2f@ A 45.5 34.2
2 to less than 6 months 2% LR6fE A 23.4 15.0
6 to less than 12 months 6& L 12fd A 49.6 12.3
12 months and more 1218 A & A £ 10.0 3.0

128.5 64.5
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RE MWK EE

26 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date
at year end, net of provision for impairment, was as
follows:

26

AR - R R H e WK

(8

PRt : (#8)

RER REZAMIADASHERE
BEREERZEYIRFEREOTIT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ZT-N\F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEBIT

Less than 2 months D HA21E A 104.5 33.7
2 to less than 6 months 2% Lr6fE A 1.9 15.0
6 to less than 12 months 6= V128 A 10.5 11.1
12 months and more 1218 A & A £ 11.6 4.7
128.5 64.5

(i) For renewable energy business, the Group allows
a credit period of 30 days to its trade customers.
Receivables from sales of electricity are usually
settled on a monthly basis by the state-owned
grid companies. Included in trade receivables
were tariff subsidy receivables of HK$107.5
million (2018: HK$48.2 million), representing
the government subsidies on renewable energy
projects to be received from the state-owned
grid companies in accordance with the prevailing
government policies. Based on the credit history
of the customers, it is expected that the amounts
will be received eventually and there is no recent
history of default. The Group does not hold any
collateral in relation to these receivables.

(ii) Other than renewable energy business, group
companies each has its own credit policies
depending on the requirements of their markets
and the businesses which they operate.

Other than renewable energy business, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of HK$31.9
million (2018: HK$11.3 million) were impaired and fully
provided for.

0] RBERRESMS  A5®
MEESEFIEH AR 0RAY
EEH HEEHARBET
BENHERWERETSAL
B o EUER P B IR R B A R
& U $%107,500,0008 T (= &
— )\ : 48,200,0005% 7T) » 8}
BRIBRITBRITBREREEE
MBAFE A BAERIERM
BIFHE - BEREFZEER
8o BEHZSRERLEER
B B:REEENTE - A%
EYESEHEZSRKERE
B2 ARG o

(i) BRBEERESI  KEAQF
SREETSHERRMEEE
BHEAEENEERRE -

BRBLERRERI  RAKEEPS
AL WEBERLEEEEDZ
[ B

R-_ZBE—-HAhE+-_A=+—0" A
231,900,000 jT(= T — N\ F:
11,300,000 7T) 2 F& UK BR 30 H 3R
EREEEEL EE -
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FREMBHRRMTE
26 PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 26 FE{TE - EWEREF R EHMEWE
RECEIVABLES (continued) ()
Notes: (continued) B aE: (8)
(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other d) AEBZEWERRREMERRKZ
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: REBENTIEEEE:
2019 2018
—2-hE T N\&
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEEL
Hong Kong dollars o 4.0 44
Renminbi AR 529.8 449.6
533.8 453.7
() There is a bank borrowing secured by certain of the e AEEBBETERER FE@EE
Group’s trade receivables with carrying values of #79,800,000% (= & — )\ &F:
HK$79.8 million (2018: HK$25.6 million) (Note 32). 25,600,000/ 7T) B AERITE R 2
P (P 7532) o
(f) Movements on the provision for impairment of trade (f) JEWERR 2 REREZESH T -
receivables are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HKS$ Million  HK$ Million
HE®BT HEETT

At 1 January w—A—H 11.3 7.9
Currency translation differences [ERRE =R (0.6) (0.7)
Additions 12 10 22.0 4.9
Receivables written off during the year £ Rl #4 /& 7 AT e [@1 2 fiE U 3%
as uncollectible (0.8) (0.8)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 31.9 11.3
(@  The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting @ MBSAHzaEsEERRA LIE
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable HEWGRZEEE AEETERS
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral ERERRIEER -
as security.
() Included in prepayments and other receivables were (h FABNREEMERRAENRLY
(i) no deposit held for property resettlement schemes XEREBEHEVEREG (2T —
(2018: HK$24.5 million) and (i) input value-added taxation J\4F 1 24,500,0007% 7T) K (i) & & B
recoverable of HK$54.8 million (2018: HK$49.4 million) B WEREE B EIRE
arising from purchases of property, plant and equipment. B #154,800,000/8 ;L (ZF — N\ F :

49,400,000 7T) °
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e ERRM T
27 RESTRICTED CASH 27 ZREBRE
2019 2018
—E-AE Z—ZE-N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEERBT BEATT
Restricted cash represents: ZREIREHE:

Escrow accounts relating to deposits held :EEBEFE SR ZEMERRE

for property development projects e ZE 188.8 476.5

Deposits subject to regulatory restriction =R REERE 2173 11.3 2.4
200.1 478.9
28 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 28 FHBITER

As at 31 December 2019, there were no short-term RZE—NFF+ZA=+—H8 " LER
bank deposits with original maturities of more than three FBEEA=EA 2 RERITER - B
months. As at 31 December 2018, the short-term bank —E-N\F+ZA=+—H" ' REHA
deposits with original maturities of more than three BA=EAZEHRTERZFERNEX
months with interest rates range from 2.69% to 3.85% 1 F2.69% £3.85% ©
per annum.
Short-term bank deposits are denominated in the REBRTHEIIRUTEREE:

following currencies:

2019 2018
—E-hFE ZZE—NHF
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEERAT BEET

Hong Kong dollars AT = 43.6
US dollars ETT = 668.7
= 712.3
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RE MWK EE

29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

29 RERBESEEY

2019 2018
—E-hE ZEN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERER BEETT
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the BE MBS EEWBETEIUAT
following: &IF
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERAS 1,368.2 1,329.7
Restricted cash and bank deposits with SR HIE S & REEHAIR
original maturities of less than three —ERZRITHER
months 1,125.4 1,038.8
2,493.6 2,368.5
Less: Restricted cash WX REIIR S (200.1) (478.9)
2,293.5 1,889.6
2019 2018
—E-REFE ZE)N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEER BEATT
Cash and cash equivalents, deposits with 24 NIELEEY - REHA
original maturities of less than three DR =18 A 217 5K & Z R
months and restricted cash R&
(@) Placed in banks in the PRC: @ RPBERRITEFE:
- denominated in Renminbi - UARKEE 1,250.5 1,610.8
- denominated in Hong Kong dollars - B TTEE 39.3 39.3
- denominated in US dollars - UETEE 2.6 3.2
(o) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: ) REAEEZRITHFE:
- denominated in Renminbi - UARBER 0.7 9.9
- denominated in Hong Kong dollars - B THE 134.0 306.1
- denominated in US dollars - ETHEEHE 1,066.5 399.2
2,493.6 2,368.5
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RE MWK EE

29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 29 BRERBRLZEY @)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date REEAZEBRENT:
were as follows:

2019 2018
—2-n% e G
Us$ HK$ RMB Us$ HK$ RMB
E BT AR e BT AR
Bank deposits with REEBALR
original maturities =R
of less than three BITER
months 2.02%-2.75% 2.52%-2.96% 0.30%-1.40%  2.39%-3.75%  145%-3.05%  0.30%-3.04%
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RBEEHcEREERR A LXM
date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances MR e RIRITHESRKREE -
stated above.
Cash and bank deposits with original maturities of ReFRIBALAR=MEAZRT
less than three months of HK$1,292.4 million (2018: 17 31,292,400,000% 7T (= & — )\ £F
HK$1,653.3 million) are held in the Mainland China and 1,653,300,0007% 7T ) =& 17 74 # B A 3t 37
are subject to local exchange control regulations, under g HNEE B GBI TR IR - IR It F%
which the balances could not be exported freely out of T eeamB LA - HPRBE AT
China. The repatriation of fund out from the Mainland L& ARBHEEUEUREIE
China is possibly conducted by way of dividends or other RIS HEAT o
means as complied to the regulations.
30 SHARE CAPITAL 30 WA
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
R EE ZER
Million HK$ Million
BE BEER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2018, RZE—-—NF—H—H"
31 December 2018 and —E-NFTZA=+t—HK
31 December 2019 —ET-hFt+ZA=+—H1 1,200.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid BERTRAR
At 1 January 2018 and RZE-NEF—H—BRK
31 December 2018 —T-NF+=ZRA=+—H 528.8 132.2
Repurchase of shares LA v (13.2) (3.3)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—8H 515.6 128.9
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company HE-ZT-NFT-A=T—HILFE
repurchased a total of 13.2 million ordinary shares at an AN E) B B A $£13,200,0000% 38 A%
aggregate consideration of HK$77.6 million. All shares RB#EE A77,600,000/87C - 2 HEE
repurchased during the year were cancelled. ERHERFANTHE -
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31 RESERVES 31 fRE
Financial assets
at fair value
Share Property through other
premium Capital ~ Contributed Other  revaluation Exchange  comprehensive Retained
(Note) reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve  income reserve earnings Total
RATE
EEM2E
RO EE NEER B#IE2
(M) EXfE  BARH  HUHE BE  ERRE SREERE  REEA #E
HKS$ Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million  HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million HK$ Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
BEER BEERT BE®BT HE®BRT HEBT  AEER AEBRT  AEER BEERT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-BE#H 8,497.9 655.9 401.5 8.1 62.7 750.2 9.2 2,684.5 13,070.0
Currency translation differences BREBNEBHBRRR
arising from translation of financial ~ E4£ZERAEEE
statements of foreign operations
- subsidiaries -HEBAR - - - - - (209.5) - - (209.5)
- associates and a joint venture -BERAR
-H&ERT - - - - - (53.0) - = (53.0)
Release of exchange differences upon M B2 7R &% B
liquidation of subsidiaries ERRE = = = = = (49.9) = - (49.9)
Repurchase of own equity shares BERRARETZES
issued by the Company ExRH (74.3) - - - - - - - (74.3)
Dividend paid BRRE - - (137.5) - - - - - (137.5)
Fair value loss on financial assets at far EATEEEB2ERE
value through other comprehensive  JI 7 $BIEE 2
income ATEEE = = = = = = (2.2) = (2.2)
Profit for the year RERRH - = o = = = = 278.7 278.7
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
TZA=t-B&H 8,423.6 655.9 264.0 8.1 62.7 4378 7.0 2,963.2 12,822.3
Financial assets
at fair value
Share Property through other
premium Capital ~ Contributed Other  revaluation Exchange comprehensive Retained
(Note) reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve income reserve earnings Total
BRATE
EEMZE
i3 e E NEER 25182
(&) BRGERE  HAER EtEA L EXGE SREERAE  RBER ft
HKS Milion ~ HKS$ Milion ~ HK$ Milion  HK$ Milion ~ HKS Milion ~ HKS$ Million HKS Milion  HKS Milion  HK$ Million
BEEL BEER  BEBr  BEBr  BEBRT BB BEBT BEBRT  BEER
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-\F-F-B&H# 8,497.9 655.9 524.7 81 62.7 1429.8 92 1,950.4 13,138.7
Currency translation differences BEBNEBHBRRR
arising from translation of financial ~ E4ZEXRBEEE
statements of foreign operations
- subsidiaries -HEAR - - - - - (544.8) - - (544.8)
- associates and a joint venture -BENAR
REEEE - - - - (134.8) - - (134.8)
Dividend paid EffRE - - (126.9) - - - - - (126.9)
Changes in ownership interests in ATHRAEHMERT 2
subsidiaries that do not result in BEERGEDAEX
a loss of control arising from the BYRLEH R
following factor
- exercise of a listed subsidiary’s -fE-BLITHER
warrants AZAREE - - 26 - - - - - 206
- acquisition of non-controling - RE-HHEARZ
interests of a subsidiary FERER - (18.9 - - - - - (18.9)
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - 7344 7341
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N%
TZA=t-84H 8,497.9 655.9 401.5 8.1 62.7 750.2 92 2,684.5 13,070.0
Note: Bt 5T

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
32 BORROWINGS 32 fEX
2019 2018
—E-AE Z—ZE-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAR BEETT
Non-current FRE
Bank borrowings RITER 2,280.8 2,463.2
Finance lease liabilities BMEREAR S 30.6
Loans from non-controlling shareholders — 3E 2 i% A% 8 & 7% 278.8 274.5
2,559.6 2,768.3
Current i
Bank borrowings RATE 405.3 453.3
Finance lease liabilities MmEMREAR = 20.7
Loans from non-controlling shareholders — 3F#% B A% 3 & 7 3.0 3.0
408.3 477.0
Total borrowings BERABE 2,967.9 3,245.3
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings, RZE—NF+-A=1+—H £KEEH
except for bank borrowings with an outstanding balance ZSRITEF - 100,000,000 T (==
of HK$100.0 million (2018: HK$25.0 million), are secured —/\4 : 25,000,000 7T) K (& B IRITHE
by the investment properties, right-of-use assets (mainly RN AAEE 2 REME - £ 4
related to land lease), property, plant and equipment and BEE(ZZHIHMHEEEH) W -
trade receivables of the Group (Notes 14, 15, 16 and B3 Tk % e FE M BR Sk (T 314 - 15
26), certain of which are also secured by the corporate 16%26) EE#A - HpE FTIHETHAR
guarantee provided by the Company or its subsidiaries. ANHEMBRARRHEEEREAK

o
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32 BORROWINGS (continued) 32 fERu@
(a) At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank (a) REER TXEEZRITERZ

borrowings were repayable as follows: ERENT
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT
Within one year —FR 405.3 453.3
In the second year F_F 471.4 382.2
In the third to fifth year E=ZZFFRF 1,560.7 1,978.3
After the fifth year AF% 248.7 102.7
2,686.1 2,916.5
Wholly repayable within five years BERAEFAZEEER 2,249.0 2,616.5
Wholly repayable after five years HERAFEREE2HEER 437.1 300.0
2,686.1 2,916.5

(b)  The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest (b) AEBEFNLEERZFNEREDH)
rate changes and the contractual repricing dates Bl ReHEHNEEBRAT:
at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE ZTEN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET
6 months or less 61E Bk AT 2,345.8 2,708.5
6-12 months 62121E A 415.4 306.2
2,761.2 3,014.7
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RE MWK EE

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

()

The Group has finance lease liabilities at the
balance sheet date as follows:

32 ER@

()

S”>

BEH AKEZREME
(CRUNNE

|
7

2019 2018
—E2-NF —FT)N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEATT

Gross finance lease liabilities — MEHEAELATE

minimum lease payments - EHEERIEA
Within one year —FR - 23.3
In the second year F_F = 24.0
In the third to fifth year E=ZZERF = 8.1

= 55.4

Future finance charges on finance BMEHEECRKBEER

leases = 4.1)
Present value of finance lease MEHEABERE

liabilities = 51.3
The present value of finance lease MEREEBRCRENAT

liabilities is as follows:
Within one year —FR - 20.7
In the second year % _¢ - 227
In the third to fifth year F-EFRF = 7.9

= 51.3

As at 31 December 2019, loans from non- d RZE—-—h&F+=-A=+—8"

controlling shareholders of HK$281.8 million
(2018: HK$277.5 million) are unsecured, of which
HK$180.2 million (2018: HK$184.0 million) carries
interest at three to five years’ People’s Bank of
China (“PBOC”) lending rate per annum and the
remaining balance of HK$101.6 million (2018:
HK$93.5 million) is interest free.

The loans that are not expected to be repayable
within twelve months are classified as non-current
liabilities. The balance is mainly denominated in
Renminbi.

281,800,000/ T (=& — N\ 4F:
277,500,000 7T) 2 FE4E B% IR R
ERAEEM - £+H180,200,000
BT (ZF —/\4F 1 184,000,000/8
TIEBHPEARRBIT(FERAR
fETTJ)-iﬁEg f'EiFlJTD+§ ’
Mm&+%8101,600,000/8 7T (ZZF—\
F 1 98,500,000 70) Bl B & B o

BATERART_EARNERE
ZEFEOBRIERBDEE -
BMEIZUARKEE-
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RE MWK EE

32 BORROWINGS (continued) 32 fERu@
(e) The effective interest rates at the balance sheet () REEBHZEBRMNEZMT:
date were as follows:
2019 2018
e —2-\F
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR¥ BT AR
Bank borrowings RITHER 3.5%-4.54% 4.9%-6.55% 3.5%-4.2% 4.9%-6.55%
Finance lease liabilities BERESRE = = - 5.75%
Loans from non-controling ~ JEIZAZ AR E %
shareholders - 4.90% - 4.90%
(f)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings are () BRZEEERTINEEE:
denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
—E-hE ZEN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBAT BEATT
Hong Kong dollars BT 103.0 188.0
Renminbi AR 2,864.9 3,057.3
2,967.9 3,245.3
(g) The Group has the following undrawn borrowing (99 AEBEBBETIRBAEREE=E
facilities mainly for project development purpose: ZARBEEERE:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZET-)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERER BEAT
Floating rate F B R
- expiring within one year - R —F A 125.0 25.0
- expiring beyond one year - R —F 14 5| 8 269.2 451.4
394.2 476.4
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mEMBHmERME
33 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33 BENRMREMENSKIE
2019 2018
—E-AE Z—ZE-N\F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BERAT BEATT
Trade payables FESBR X 16.1 18.4
Retention payables R E R 46.4 93.3
Properties sale deposits received BRMEHEES 122.2 79.7
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRREER 915.9 1,282.9
1,100.6 1,474.3
(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables at year end (a) RER W BAERZRZER ST
was as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-AE ZZE-NF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT
Less than 2 months L rA2{E A 6.2 7.1
2 to less than 6 months 2Z L R6fiE A 0.1 .
6 to less than 12 months 6% L 12M# A 0.2 0.7
12 months and more 1218 A & A £ 9.6 10.6
16.1 18.4
(b) The carrying amounts of the trade and other (b) EENERREMENSKZETRE
payables are denominated in the following BEATEBIIE:
currencies:
2019 2018
—E-AE Z—ZE-NF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT
Hong Kong dollars BT 45.6 50.8
Renminbi AR 1,055.0 1,423.5

1,100.6 1,474.3
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RE MWK EE

34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 34

The deferred income tax liabilities recognised and
movements are as follows:

ELERBHAE
CHAZETEMEHAEEREZFHN
T

Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment Depreciation land lease Other
properties allowance Tax loss payments items Total
REMEZ LA
ATERE TERE HESR ENHE HittHE BmE
HKS Million  HK$ Million HK$ Milion  HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEET BEETR BEETR BEET BEETR
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE—F—H 1,518.1 80.9 (21) 276.4 9.1 1,882.4
Currency translation E)ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ
differences (31.7) (2.4) = (5.4) 1.0 (38.5)
Charged/(credited) to ~ MMEREIK /(HL)
income statement (Hi5E11)
(Note 11) 23.9 42.8 241 (12.8) (70.7) (14.7)
At 31 December 2019  R-ZE—A4F
+-ZRA=+—H 1,510.3 121.3 = 258.2 (60.6) 1,829.2
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\5—-A—-H 1,417.8 57.5 (2.8) 304.4 13.6 1,790.5
Currency translation EXQEEE
differences (79.5) 4. 01 (14.9) 0.7) (99.1)
Charged/(credited) to ~ WEZERING /()
income statement (B &E11)
(Note 11) 179.8 27.5 0.6 (13.) (3.8 191.0
At 31 December 2018  RZT—/\F
+-A=+—"H 1,518.1 80.9 21 276.4 91 1,882.4

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$214.1 million (2018: HK$163.7 million)
in respect of tax losses of HK$1,163.8 million (2018:
HK$936.5 million) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses have no expiry dates except
for the tax losses of HK$260.1 million (2018: HK$105.7
million) which will expire at various dates up to and
including 2024 (2018: 2023).

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

fi¥ 78 B] BE i 1B A TR FE SR B0 A #8 B R
JRIEMZEE  RISpEE s HEE
BHERECEFMSMEE - AEET &
7L %4 78 B9 481,163,800,000/8 T (- T —
J\EF 1 936,500,000 7T ) #ERIEIE AT 15
i & B 214,100,000 T (=& — )\ 4F :
163,700,000/ 7T) Al fE 45 8% + A DA 38
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35 AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 35

The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest
bearing at 3.5% per annum over one-month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate on outstanding amount and was
repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

B — & B R AR

EN—R2ERRFEASEER  BLKRE
BEeBR—EATERITREEREM
BEEFMEFE W ERRBRKEE -
EREEAE T E ©

36 COMMITMENTS 36 AE&iE
(@) Capital commitments (a) EBEAREE
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but REFEBEREBHREECE
not yet incurred is as follows: KAZWAT:
2019 2018
—E-AE —T-N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERET BEET
Capital commitments undertaken by — A&EE 2 & REPE
the Group
(@) Property, plant and equipment @ WE -  #BEREMHE
Contracted but not provided for BETAE REE 69.9 283.7
(b) Property development projects b) MEEERIER
Contracted but not provided BET# B REE
for 87.2 159.9
157.1 443.6

(b) Commitments under operating leases

The aggregate future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

(b) REBPLEHEE 2 RIE

REB@BRAEYE 2T AIHE
REBEZRRREBES BN

of office premises are as follows: Rk
2019 2018
—E-hAF ZZE-)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEERT BEET
No later than 1 year —FR = 0.3

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases.

B-Z-NE-A—HE r&5H
ERHEHREAEEEREE
BE-

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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36 COMMITMENTS (continued)

()

Future minimum rental receivable

The future aggregate minimum rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases is as

36 EIE@m

()

ARBREERVES

BRETAIHELERE 2 RR&K
BrEKESEBRNAT

follows:

2019 2018
—E-hAE ZZE-)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAER BEATT
No later than 1 year —FRN 286.8 332.7

Later than 1 year and no later than BB —F &K AFA
5 years 597.3 664.4
Later than 5 years iR hF 83.7 130.0
967.8 1,127.1

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for an initial period
of one to thirteen years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. No contingent rent was recognised
in the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@

The Group’s investment property located in
Shenzhen, the PRC is subject to housing facility fund
pursuant to ORI ERRETE @Y EEEEN)
adopted on 1 November 1994. Contingent liabilities
of RMB75.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$84.5 million) (2018: RMB75.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$86.3 million)) arising in this
respect have been assessed by management with
reference to the legal opinion previously obtained.
Management have requested relief from the relevant
local government authorities on the grounds that
certain amounts of maintenance costs were already
spent for the purposes as specified under the
requirement of housing facility fund, hence no further
provision for the fund is considered necessary.
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37 HAEE

(@

BER—ILhAhmE+—F—8
Rmz(ORYIgBErREERY
EETEEN) AKEMRFEH
FIZ—HEENEZBRNE
ErBEKEERES EEE
ERZEBAEMBZEEZER
oA ERLEEECSIAERE
& A R #75,800,0007T (4] 18 &
784,500,000 7T )( =& — \4F :
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RE MWK EE

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group arranged
bank financing for certain property buyers and
provided guarantees of HK$72.4 million (2018:
HK$516.6 million) in relation to the repayment
obligations for those buyers. The Group had not
suffered from any loss resulting from the above
guarantees in the past, which was mainly because
the guarantees concerned were only a transitional
arrangement for property buyers prior to the
completion of mortgage registration and were
pledged against property rights, in addition to the
fact that they will be released once the mortgage
registration is completed. Considering the above
factors, the Board is of the view that the possibility
of default by buyers is minimal, thus the financial
guarantees measured at fair value is immaterial.

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions during the year were:

(@)

At 31 December 2019, a subsidiary of the Group
provided guarantee in respect of a facility granted
to an associate of HK$66.9 million (2018: HK$82.0
million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

37 HAREBE@

(b)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
AEEAVEENETERSTHE
BITEE  THZZERNER
SR #72,400,00008 0 (ZZE —
J\FE 1 516,600,000/ 7T) 2 1R -
REBBFEIARALLMERKZ
TEL  TZEMREEERI
EAMEERERZIRBIRIFE
HATMAEELTHE BAEBEER
KRYEEERKT  TEKZBK
HEDTHRE TR - ERE
MEREE BEERAE BRERX
WA REMEE M - BIZ QA FERT &
M SIERMAZE -

38 BEAIXRS
BHEREREEMBIBRBELI IR

REERON

(@)

FREREHIRZ0T:

RZE—-—NhF+=ZAR=+—8"
AEB—HHBEATMK T —M
BenNazEEmEREZER
466,900,000/ L (ZF —)\4F :
82,000,000 7T) °

BRXSATBRREEEHA
RHMABRARES LA E
THRADFUAEER ZBER
% o

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38 BEHEE X 5 (@)
(b) Key management compensation b) FEEBEEREZHE
Key management solely represents directors of the FTEEEENBEEARTES °
Company. The compensation paid or payable to ENSENTEIEEREENE 2
key management is shown as below: BWEHRT:

2019 2018

—E-RAE ZT-N\F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEABRT BEETT

Director’s fees EEHe 1.3 1.3

Salary and other benefits HFekEMmET 22.3 21.9

Employer’s contribution to pension scheme ER& a2l 2 8 T 0.1 0.1

23.7 23.3

On 28 January 2017, a subsidiary of the
Company entered into a loan facility agreement
("Agreement”) with Creator Holdings Limited
(“Creator”) (@ company indirect wholly-owned by
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric), under which the subsidiary
of the Company might borrow up to HK$300.0
million until 31 December 2018. The Agreement
was further extended to 31 December 2022.
The terms of the loan are set out in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding loan balance and
interest expense payable amounted to HK$195.0
million (31 December 2018: HK$195.0 million) and
HK$2.7 million (31 December 2018: HK$2.5 million)
respectively. During the vyear, interest expense
amounted to HK$10.4 million (2018: HK$9.9
million).

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

On 4 April 2019, the Company entered into a
standby loan facility agreement with Creator,
under which the Company might borrow up to
HK$1,000.0 million until 31 December 2020. The
loan was unsecured, interest bearing at 2.8%
per annum over one-month Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate on outstanding principal amount and
repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2019,
there was no outstanding loan balance.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an
aggregate of 120,000,000 new shares of a listed
subsidiary of the Company were subscribed by the
Company upon the exercise of bonus warrants, at
the subscription price of HK$0.23 with the total
gross payment of HK$27.6 million. The outstanding
bonus warrants were lapsed on 18 May 2018.

The transaction did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

38 BEBAXRZ

(e)

—NFEMAMA KA
méﬁiélJLnTﬂ%ﬁﬁfﬁfxrﬁﬁﬁ%
F B BEE-ZT-ZF+=
)E]:"f’ = $ T—HEI)\E’y
1,000,000,000/8 T » 22 E KA
EIEE - LL—EAREBRITAE
FEM28EFFEFFE (R KE
BASFHE) WEKREREE -
RZE-—NF+A=+—HB1
mEAEBEERER -

BERARSAE T BEARE LR A
FUAETEZHERS -

BHE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—H
HFEE ARRAERBEER
0.23BTITEARBI RN —MELEM

Mﬁ%@aZwuﬂﬁﬁé_ﬁ E/\R%ﬁ
120,000,000 B i {5+ FRIE 4858

£27,600,0008 7T ° MW RITE 2
REEEER-_T—N\FRAT
NEE

BRRXZATEARE ETRA
FUAETERZMERS

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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39

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”") in early 2020, a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the country/region. The Group will
pay close attention to the development of the COVID-19
outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group. As at the date on
which this set of financial statements were authorised for
issue, given the dynamic nature of these circumstances,
the related impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results could not be reasonably estimated
at this stage. In order to reflect the commitment of
the executive directors of the Company and reduce
expenses given the current challenging business
environment stemming from the COVID-19 pandemic, the
board of directors announced on 19 March 2020 that all
existing executive directors of the Company have taken
the initiative to implement a temporary 10% voluntary
reduction of their remuneration for the period from 1
March 2020 to 31 August 2020.
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40 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 40

RERERERNE

STATEMENT
(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to net (a) REZFELEEBIBR
cash generated from operations SFEZHER
2019 2018
—E-AE —T-N\#F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEABRT BEETT
Profit before income tax FT 15 % B /& A 453.8 1,269.5
Finance income WA (57.2) 41.8)
Depreciation and amortisation T E N 108.3 981
Fair value adjustments on investment &Y% QA FEFHE
properties (91.9) (696.5)
Write-back of provision for legal claim k72 % & & & & @l (11.4) -
Reversal of construction cost accruals @ FEEEWENET
for properties sold in previous years K AR E (97.4) -
Exchange gain — net PEH W - F&E (22.0) (53.1)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant 1 &% « # 22 LR E 2
and equipment — net BiE (k) - 38 3.3 0.3)
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries — net i & 2 &5 #& 2 Wz
- HRE (48.8) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair & A FEEEZREVE 2 &
value through profit or loss — net BEEANFEEE
- JFEE 3.6 -
Dividend income & B A (3.6) -
Finance costs ELEEY DN 177.6 33.4
Write-off of trade and other receivables il 5 & U BF 7k &2 H 1
J& WKk 11.9 10.2
Provision for impairment of trade JiE W BR 3R 2 Rk (B HE
receivables 21.2 4.9
Share of profits less losses of associates [& {f B & A &l F 5 &5 18 (83.0) (89.4)
Share of loss of a joint venture JEiE—RHAaE A REE 152.5 65.9
Operating profit before working capital % &8 & & & &) Al £ & i 7
changes 516.9 600.9
Increase in properties under ERAPYIEEM
development (123.8) (43.7)
Increase in right-of-use assets {# FA#E & =3 0 (41.9) -
Increase in prepaid land lease payments &1~ £ 1 F1 & 7k 1% f1 - 2.1)
Decrease in properties held for sale ESHERB ZYER LD 303.0 4841
Decrease in inventories FERD = 2.2
Increase in other non-current receivables £ th 3E 7 &h g U 70 LA &
and trade and other receivables JE WS BR 3R Ko H A i R
0 (124.9) (147.9)
Increase/(decrease) in other non- Bt 3E 7 B) FE AN FRUA K
current payables and trade and other  JE < BE 2k & E b e f<F X
payables @, Cr ) 59.6 (96.2)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFRBRS 588.9 797.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

40 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 40 HLEBRESREXRM T W@
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTHMEENEEBZY
financing activities &
Amount
Lease due to a
Borrowings Liabilities shareholder Total
ER—%
EE HEEE B} R IE mE
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
HEAER BHEAER HEAET BEER
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H (3,245.3) = (197.5) (3,442.8)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS16 R4 & 78 31 76 3 & X 8
F16HR 28 51.3 (51.3) - -
As at 1 January 2019, as adjusted R=Z— 4
—A—B - ERE (3,194.0) (51.3) (197.5) (3,442.8)
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 77 & 3 &
and other loans HEtERMBRE (357.2) - - (357.2)
Repayment of bank borrowings B RTIEH &
and other loans HthER 521.2 - - 521.2
Payment for lease liabilities YREEBENRIER
(including interest) (BIEFB) - 23.5 - 23.5
Interest paid for advance froma BfN—&ABRRAZKZ
shareholder A = = 10.2 10.2
Foreign exchange adjustment &5 59.4 0.7 - 60.1
Other non-cash movements HindRe &g 2.7 (3.6) (10.4) (11.3)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ—-NF
+-A=+—H (2,967.9) (30.7) (197.7) (3,196.3)
As at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—H—H (2,796.1) - (226.2) (3,022.3)
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 77 f& 3 &
and other loans HEtERMBRE (1,609.5) - - (1,609.5)
Repayment of bank borrowings B RT1EH &
and other loans HthER 997.9 - - 997.9
Repayment of advance from a BE-EZBRERR
shareholder - - 25.0 25.0
Interest paid for advance froma BfN—&ABRRAZKZ
shareholder A - - 13.6 13.6
Foreign exchange adjustment I 159.3 - - 159.3
Other non-cash movements HindRe &g 3.1 - 9.9) (6.8)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+=-A=+-H (3,245.3) - (197.5) (3,442.8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE MWK EE

41

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FARNEERBERRFAEEH

ARRIBERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E2-NF —FT)N\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
Wexr BEBR AEETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZRE 151.2 154.4
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE ] 8,561.7 8,949.7
Other receivables Hoth i W 0.4 0.3
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEED 1.4 1.9
Total current assets REBEEHARE 8,563.5 8,951.9
Total assets EEH#AT 8,714.7 9,106.3
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to ZARAFEZIFEAEML
equity holders of the Company EXR#E
Share capital [ 128.9 132.2
Reserves (Note) fi 1 (B 5) 8,581.6 8,970.3
Total equity ERBE 8,710.5 9,102.5
LIABILITY =R
Current liability REBAE
Other payables E b AT X 4.2 3.8
Total liability BEHAHE 4.2 3.8
Total equity and liability EaREaBEREE 8,714.7 9,106.3

OEIl Kang, Eric
=
Director

EZE

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
REH
Director

BEF

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHmERME
41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41 ARAREERBERRRZHFEZD
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued) (#&)
Note: Reserve movement of the Company iz ZARQRIHEEEZD
Share Contributed Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
RAEE BABK EXRE REEF wE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEEBEr BE#®T HBHEBER BERET HBHEER
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-A—B&#H 8,497.9 529.8 (208.4) 151.0 8,970.3
Currency translation differences B ¥, 2 & =% = = (180.1) = (180.1)
Repurchase of shares BERH (74.3) - - - (74.3)
Dividend paid BRRE - (137.5) - - (137.5)
Profit for the year AR A = = - 3.2 3.2
Balance at 31 December 2019  RZZE—-AF+=A=+—HB#&#% 8,423.6 392.3 (388.5) 154.2 8,581.6
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-A—RA&#H 8,497.9 656.7 276.0 102.4 9,533.0
Currency translation differences [E X HE =5 - - (484.4) - (484.4)
Dividend paid ERRE - (126.9) - - (126.9)
Profit for the year REE - N N 48.6 48.6
Balance at 31 December 2018 H=Z—/N\E+-F=+—A%&#% 8,497.9 520.8 (208.4) 1510 89703
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GEMBHmRMEE
42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 42 EENFETHAEZEBIR
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES =

The remuneration of every director and chief executive
officer is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

BEENTHAHOMEMT

BE_ZT-hF+A=+—HILFE:

Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary to pension

Name ®E Fees Salary* bonuses* scheme’ Total
BikE&stEl

we et BMisfEa: ZEXMHEZR FkC]

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THER THER THER TAERT FTHET

OE!l Tjie Goan' H2ERO = = = = =

OEl Kang, Eric* =y 175.0 12,427.3 1,195.4 36.0 13,833.7

LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FER 100.0 2,874.2 432.2 18.0 3,424.4

WONG Jake Leong, Sammy BER 175.0 2,568.6 284.1 36.0 3,063.7

LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel PR 175.0 2,254.6 214.9 36.0 2,680.5

CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico®? EXEO 240.0 = - = 240.0

CHENG Yuk Wo g 240.0 o = = 240.0

Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior ZEfE 240.0 = = = 240.0

VOON Hian-fook, David® B R = = = = =

1,345.0  20,124.7 2,126.6 126.0  23,722.3

Notes:

Chief Executive Officer

The amounts represented emoluments in respect of
services provided in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking.

Mr. OEl Tjie Goan resigned as non-executive director with
effect from 3 December 2019.

Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico resigned as independent
non-executive director with effect from 1 February 2020.

Mr. VOON Hian-fook, David was appointed as
independent non-executive director on 1 February 2020.

* THHEE

# HeBMAREREEANRHHNE
RAMEBEBEBRTRERSEH

-

B =E

1, BEERELEB-_ZT-AFT-A=H

EEIENTES -

2. BREEAEFE T ZEF_HF-HE

BIEBYIFRNTES -

3. BERELEE T -_TF_A—A#
EZERBULIENITESE -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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RE MWK EE

42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 42 EENFETHAEZEBIR

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

B
HE-T—\FT-A=T—AILEE:

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary to pension
Name HH Fees Salary* bonuses* scheme* Total

RK&EtE
we Fet BBEar ZEEHER HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAT FHET
OEI Tjie Goan #HER - - - - -
OEl Kang, Eric* =4 175.0 12,221.6 1,251.9 36.0 13,684.5
LEE Shiu Yee, Daniel FE 100.0 2,789.1 326.3 18.0 3,233.4
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EER 175.0 2,520.3 204.3 36.0 3,025.6
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RER 175.0 2,1938.9 256.6 36.0 2,661.5
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BRE 240.0 - - - 240.0
CHENG Yuk Wo B AN 240.0 - - - 240.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior EIa 240.0 - - - 240.0
1,345.0 19,724.9 2,129.1 126.0 23,325.0

Chief Executive Officer

# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of
services provided in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. OEl
Tjie Goan voluntarily waived annual director's fee of
HK$92,000 (2018: HK$100,000).

During the year, no other benefits and remunerations
were paid to or receivable by the directors in respect
of accepting office as directors (2018: Nil). During the
year, no emoluments were paid to or receivable by
the directors in respect of director’'s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2018: Nil).

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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# HeBMAREREREANASHNE
RAMEBEBEBRTRERSEH
-

HE-_Z—hLF+-A=+—HLHF
B EZBEREEEEBNEFTEEEE
£92,000/% 7T (= F —/\4F : 100,000/%8
JT) °
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RE MWK EE

42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to directors during
the year ended 31 December 2019 by a defined
contributions plan as disclosed in Note 10 in
respect of their services as a director of the
company and its subsidiaries is HK$126,000 (2018:
HK$126,000). No other retirement benefits were
paid to or receivables by the directors in respect
of their services as directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries or other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking (2018:Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in respect
of termination of directors’ services were paid or
made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities
(2018: Nil).

Director’s material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2018:
Nil).

42 BEERFETHRAEZEIR
R

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

ESRHKEF

HE-_Z-h&F+=-_A=+—H1t
FE - ARNREE B 10T # &
ZREHFEBKRFEMNES LA
MR ERIARTLREHBA
AIE ERRIRET £126,0008 7T
(ZF— )\ : 126,000/ 7T) 1
BRESETARRENE AR
AEENRESREEBEALA
FEMBAREEEBENEMR
TSR E B sk B E A R IKAR
FZE—NF 8)o

EERBERN

FA-BERESTKULEZTERY
MEZKEERES Mg RH
E R Rk AR A - O AR R A
RBE(CE-NF:E)-

RENEERBEMEOE=T%
T2 E

FA-HEREREERE A
FE=HXNHE=T EKEMK
B(CE-NF:8)-

BBRNES ESoIEAE
ErEEEEAZBEAZE
M EERREMRZZER

FA -BMENES BEFZRE
thEEREEERATBEAZE
F BERIEMRS (ZF-N
FE)-

EENREG  RHEREHNHTZ
EXER

VEABAEEXHMARBIE
RER—FTAARBDEENES
TRERER) EEENER
(RN 4R [ 3 0 4F A 1) B ) 75
EINEARRS  ZHEREH(Z
T-N\F:E)-

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND A JOINT
VENTURE

TEWEAT BEATR—MAEAT

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associates and a T~XHIEZTRAHAEEHE_ZT—NF
joint venture which, in the opinion of the directors, principally +Z-A=+—BItEE¥E N HEEFE
affect the result and/or net assets of the Group for the year BEZ7 T EWBAT  HBMERTIRELER

ended 31 December 2019. alEEts -
1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 1 FTENMB AT
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
AL/ e
£ RERERER: FEBEH BRARE/BAEEMER rEECERRAER
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF -\ ZE-pf ZFN\F
(a) Investment holding
REZR
APC Wind Power Pte Limited* Singapore Investment holding SGD10 SGD10 55.69% 55.69%
AR REERK 1057 13K 7T 1037 IR T
China Renewable Energy Investment Cayman Islands/PRC  Investment holding HK$25,061,575 HK$25,061,575 55.69% 55.69%
Limited-® Hews/P REER 25,061,575%8 7T 25,061,575% 1T
PEBERRREBRAR
China Renewable Energy (Nanxun) Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 55.69% 55.69%
PEBERR(EIERRA &5/ HE RERR 1E7 AT
China Renewable Energy (Songxian) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 55.69% 55.69%
Limited Bk /A RERR 1#7 iy
PEBEER(EZ BRAR
China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
PTEEERRA: Bt/ REARR 1,000,000 ¢ 1,000,000% 7
Eka Capital Limited* British Virgin Islands/  Investment holding US$1 US$1 100% 100%
ZREXERAH! Hong Kong REER 15 IE
KERAES /B
HKC (China) Management Company PRC Wholly foreign-  Provision of management US$8,000,000 1S$8,000,000 100% 100%
Limited* owned enterprise services in the PRC 8,000,000% 7t 8,000,000% 7T
ERRR(PE)EEBERAA RENEBELE  RPERMEERK
HKC Investment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$77,113,850 HK$77,113,850 100% 100%
EERRREBRAR: EE/48 REER 71,113,850 T 71,113 8507 T
HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%
ERRZ (MR EMAERERAR &5/ HE RERR 2B 2R
HKC Property Investments (China) Limited*  British Virgin Islands/  Investment holding US$1 USS$1 100% 100%
ERRRNERE(FRE)ERAR PRC RERR (Ey 1%
RERTES/H
HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments Limited*  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 100% 100%
EERRRRENRERRAA" &5/ mE RERRK 187 AT
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 55.69% 55.69%
EEMER(KT)ERARRA" &5/ mE RERRK 187 AT
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Principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
TENBAR BHELARAR—HBEE QT

1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 FEHE QR @
Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective
Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HMAL/ S
£ REREBEL: FEXH BRARE/BAERER rERCERRARSR
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-nE “E-\F ZE-AE ZE)\%
(a) Investment holding (continued)
REZR(8)
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HK$1 55.69% 55.69%
EETHRHB)ERERAA B/ mE REER 1E7 AT
Hong Kong Construction (Interior Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100% 100%
Contracting) Limited* B/ REER 10,000 7t 10,0007% 7T
EERR(ZEIR)GRAR"
Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Tuan Po Hu  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$462,000,000 HK$462,000,000 100% 100%
Investment Limited- Bt/ Ml REER 462,000,000 7T 462,000,000/ 0
ERRRREEANREERAA"
Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Investment holding HK$150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 100% 100%
Limited ik REER 150,000,0007% 7t 150,000,000/ 7
ERRR(EA)IRERARA
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$2 HK$2 55.69% 55.69%
Wind Power Limited* B/ RERR Py 2B
ERNER(DTIR)BRERAD
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi llj  Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1,000 HK$1,000 55.69% 55.69%
Wind Power Limited- Bt/ Ml REER 1,000/ 7 1,000 7
AN R(MFIE_B)REERAR
HKC (Shanghai Guangtian) Holdings Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HKS$1 HKS$1 100% 100%
Limited* /48 REARRK 137 1%
EERRZ(LEEA) ERERAA"
Karbony Investment Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
B/ RERR 10,000,000 ¢ 10,000,000/ 7T
Noble Quest Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands/  Investment holding US$1 US$1 100% 100%
Hong Kong RARR 15T 1T
AERREE/BE
Sinoriver International Limited* British Virgin Islands/ ~ Investment holding US$1 USS1 55.69% 55.69%
FIERERAA) PRC RERR 1%5% 1%
RERUEE/H
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 HK$20 55.69% 55.69%
Limited* EE/P REARRK 87T 057
FNIER (RE)BRAR"
The Legation Quarter Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$82,105,263 HK$82,105,263 80.4% 80.4%
MAREBEERERAR /% RAER 82,105,263% T 82,105,263/ 1
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Principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
TENBAR BHELARAR—HBEE QT

1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1 FEWBAT @

Issued share capital/

Group’s effective

Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
EMAYL/ S
£ RERERER: TR BRARA/BHEMER FEECERRAER
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE —Z-\E ZE-NE ZZ-N\E
(b) Property investment
Hong Kong Construction (China) PRC Investment in shopping US$85,500,000 1S$85,500,000 100% 100%
Engineering Company Limited* Wholly foreign-owned ~ mall of South Ocean 85,500,000% T 85,500,000 7T
ERRR(FE)IRERAR" enterprise Centre, Shenzhen,
Gkl the PRC
NEEERE REPERYTEAERL
0%
Karbony Real Estate Development PRC Investment in offices US$155,000,000 US$155,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* Wholly foreign-owned and shopping mall of 155,000,000% 7 155,000,000% 10
TRRHERE (RINERA enterprise Shun Hing Square,
# Shenzhen, the PRC
NEBEELE RETERIITER
BHNHAERES
Sky Universe Limited British Virgin Islands/  Property holding of 9/F., US$1 US$1 100% 100%
Hong Kong Tower 1 South Seas 1%7 1%
EBERUBE/EHS  Centre, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
BELREENE
EL =T
9EIME
RIRBERELR ERBERAAN PRC Investment in property US$18,200,000 1US$18,200,000 80.4% 80.4%
Wholly foreign-owned  for restaurants and 18,200,000 7t 18,200,000% 7T
enterprise retails in Beijing, the
Gl PRC
NEBEELE REGELRTNE
FEERTE
Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate PRC Real estate development RMB2,300,000,000 RMB2,300,000,000 60% 60%
Development Company Limited** Sino-foreign equity in Hongkou District in A &%2,300,000,000% A &%2,300,000,00070

LERARHERZERAR:

joint venture
#
PHEERE

Shanghai, the PRC
REPE LETINERRE
RibE
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Principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
TENBAR BHELARAR—HBEE QT

1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 1 FEREBEAR @

Place of incorporation/

operation and kind of Issued share capital/ Group’s effective

Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
EMRY/EE
1 RERERER: FEXH BRARA/BAZMER rEEZEBRRARER
2019 2018 2019 2018
“8-hF “E-0\f ZE-AEF ZB\E
(c) Property development
NEER
Huzhou Nanxun International Building PRC Development and US$48,000,000 1S$48,000,000 100% 100%
Market Center Company Limited Wholly foreign-owned ~ operation of & building 48,000,000% T 48,000,000% T
ANERERENBERAR enterprise materials centre in
H Huzhou, the PRC
NEBEELE REEHNERR
ZEREMBRL
Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment PRC Real estate development RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited** Limited liability in Nankai District in A R%500,000,0007% A K #500,000,00070
KEMeBEXREFRAR" company Tianjin, the PRC
# REEXEHHFE
EREMERT HERE
Tianjin Eka Properties Company Limited* ~ PRC Real estate development HK$452,200,000 HK$452,200,000 100% 100%
RERREEERAAN Wholly foreign-owned i Tuanbo Lake of 452,200,000 7T 452,200,000% 7T
enterprise Jinhai County in
H Tianjin, the PRC
NEBERE ROERETHEE
ARRERENE
Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management PRC Real estate development - HK$230,000,000 - 100%
Company Limited* Wholly foreign-owned in Tianjin, the PRC 230,000,000/ 7T
REMRELXERERAR: enterprise REBXETRERNE
#
NEBELE
EREX(ER)ERAE" PRC Real estate development HK$928,000,000 HK$928,000,000 100% 100%
Wholly foreign-owned ~ at Ningbo Road in 928,000,000 7t 928,000,000% 7T
enterprise Heping District in
i Shenyang, the PRC
NEBELE REEEBTHTE
EREREENE
EERROIMYELERERAR: PRC Real estate development RMB260,000,000 RMB260,000,000 100% 100%
Wholly foreign-owned ~ in Jiangmen, the PRC A K #260,000,0007 AR 260,000,007
enterprise RPEIMmRERLE
i
NEBEELE
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Principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
TENBAR BHELARAR—HBEE QT

1 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/
operation and kind of

1 FEWBAT @

Issued share capital/

Group’s effective

Name legal entity” Principal activities Paid up registered capital equity interest
HMAY/EEHY
#8 REEERER FEER BRTRA/BAEZMER FEEZEBRRARER
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZF-hfF “E\F ZE-RF CTNE
(d) Renewable energy
BERR
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company ~ PRC Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 HK$100,000,000 47.89% 47.89%
Limited* Sino-foreign equity Heilongjiang, the PRC 100,000,000% 7t 100,000,0007% 7T
SHENEEHMT) AR joint venture GRS Db
i BAREER
PHaERE
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company PRC Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 HK$150,100,000 48.27% 48.27%
Limited* Sino-foreign equity Heilongjiang, the PRC 150,100,000% 7T 150,100,0007% 7T
EERNEE(BR)ARAA! joint venture GRS Db
i BAREER
PHaERE
Huzhou HKE Energy Limited* PRC Distributed solar project RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 55.69% 55.69%
HNEEREEERAR! wholly foreign-owned ~in Nanxun, Zhejiang, AR #15,000,0007 AR %15,000,0007T
enterprise the PRC
T RAENIEEEZ
NEEELE AHAREEER
Songxian HKE Wind Power Limited* PRC Wind Power project in RMB210,000,000 RMB174,000,000 55.69% 55.69%
BEBERERRAR" Wholly foreign-owned ~ Songxian, Henan, the A &#210,000,0007 AR #174,000,0007C
enterprise PRC
i ReETEEEL
NEEELE EWE S
BEMEENFTRREERAR: PRC Wind Power project in RBM?166,480,000 RMB166,480,000 55.69% 55.69%
Wholy foreign-owned  Siziwang Qi, Inner A K #166,480,0007C AR #166,480,0007C
enterprise Mongolia, the PRC
T REBERFERFEEL
NEEELE EWE S
B RN T TEREERAR: PRC Wind Power project in RBM172,526,500 RMB172,526,500 55.69% 55.69%
Wholly foreign-owned ~ Siziwang Qi, Inner A E#172,526,5007 AR 172,526,500
enterprise Mongolia, the PRC
T REBERFERFEEL
NEEELE EWE S
(e) Property services
NERB
Shenzhen Kumagai Property Management ~ PRC Provision of property HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited* Sino-foreign equity management service 60,000,000 7 60,000,0007% 7T
RIEANEERERAA joint venture RENFERRY
h
PHaERE
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Principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
TENBAR BHELARAR—HBEE QT

2 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

2

FEBRERQT

Place of incorporation Group’s effective

Name Issued share capital/registered capital foperation equity interest
£ BRATRA/ERER HRAYL/BEHE FEECERRAES
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF —T0\E ZE-NEF 20§
(a) Property investment
Hong Kong Construction SMC Development Limited* HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 Hong Kong/PRC 40% 40%
EERRERERARRAA" 10,000,000 & 10,000,003 7T EiE/ 4 E
(b) Renewable energy
BERR
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company Limited** RMB589,620,000 RMB589,620,000 PRC 22.28% 22.28%
pEEEE(EBRNEEERAA AR%589,620,000T A K ¥#589,620,0007 H
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited** RMB545,640,000 RMB545,640,000 PRC 22.28% 22.28%
PHEEERNEE(RILERAT AR%545,640,000% AR ¥%545,640,0007 H
CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited** RMB323,260,000 RMB323,260,000 PRC 16.71% 16.71%
PEEERRNEE (R ARAT AR#323,260,000T AR #328,260,0007C H
3 A JOINT VENTURE 3 —HEe#gld

Form of business structure/

Place of establishment/

Name Kind of legal entity operation Group’s effective equity interest
A% EBERPR LERHERE  AMKYL/SE#H AEEZERREES
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
Property investment
MERE
Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate Company Limited+# Wholly foreign-owned enterprise ~ PRC 25% 25%
LBERILMEERERRA+ NEBEERR i
Notes: Bt 5
# Unofficial English transliterations or translation for # FEX R TFEXBIEERB A
identification purposes only
+ Interest held by subsidiaries * EEABARES
8 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited is listed on ? HEIFERERIREBR DA I
the Stock Exchange of which the stock code is 987. o R R8T -
b The above legal entities are limited liability company, s REBEHEN i EERERAER

unless otherwise stated.

NG

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEHHENBR

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE ZE-N\F ZT—+tF ET—RF <ZT—AF
HK$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BHEER BEETL BEAT BEET BEETL
Consolidated income REBEX
statement
Revenue I &8 1,037 1,270 1,789 1,640 1,273
Profit/(loss) before income tax 5 E A&,/ (& 18) 454 1,269 1,715 1,189 (671)
Income tax expense e (76) (312) (471) (600) 9)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF/(EEB) 378 957 1,244 589 (580)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: e H A (B ) -
Equity holders of the Company ARFI A A 279 734 899 386 (498)
Non-controlling interests R ER 99 223 345 203 (82)
378 957 1,244 589 (580)
Dividends % 2 137 127 74 - -
Consolidated balance sheet HAEEEEXR
Net current assets MBEEFE 1,793 2,058 1,576 1,946 2,167
Non-current assets FRBEE 18,338 18,547 18,679 15,304 15,724
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (4,397) (4,651) 4,299) (3,623) (4,049)
Net assets including non- BEFH
controlling interests (BIEEERER) 15,734 15,954 15,956 13,627 13,842
Share capital [ 129 132 132 132 132
Reserves i 12,822 18,070 13,139 11,345 11,628
Non-controlling interests RS 2,783 2,752 2,685 2,150 2,082
Total equity SRk 15,734 15,954 15,956 13,627 13,842
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFUBERBE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF ZE-N\F Z—+F ZIZT-RE C"T-hF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Earnings/(loss) per share SRAF (E8)*
- basic - ®EK 0.528 1.388 1.700 0.780 (1.002)
- diluted - #E 0.520 1.383 1.700 0.728 (1.032)
Dividend per share* TRk E*
- attributable to the year - FEERL 0.26 0.24 0.14 - -
Return on total equity” T 7 48 FE o sy R 2.4% 6.0% 7.8% 4.3% (4.2%)
Notes: Bt &

Earnings/(loss) per share and dividend per share were restated
to reflect the share consolidation.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held on
6 October 2016, every twenty-five (25) ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the issued and unissued share capital of the
Company were consolidated into one (1) consolidated ordinary
share of HK$0.25 each in the issued and unissued share capital
of the Company effective on 7 October 2016.

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year
expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the
year concerned.

&M (BE)RSREIEEET
bR B fn & B o

BRIBARNGRBRRERAZE—NF+ANBET
ZHREFIASLEBBZEBRER B
B+ RHE)BRARFRAF R EEO0.01
BLZEBEIRABITEBRREMRE—O)
BN A R PR AN R B AR E{E0.2574 T 2 B3 1T
MARBTEHEBR KT —

HAER -

RERBEORE/RNFLHEN THERE

MEEFRBEZEB2BNLL -

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TEYPXZ-—EX

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—HhF+-_A=Z+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — COMPLETED

REWE - BFK

(Approx.) (Approx.)
Share- GFA  Attributable Term
Location Existing use holding (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) of lease
(X#)
(K#) EfhEE
BELRR BER
i BRI AR BE  (FHK) (FHK) HEH
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces and Offices and 100% 31,000 31,000  Medium
1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices, Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre, shops i
No. 5002 Shennan Road East, Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC BREREH
AR BRI T B ERRE R K002 F HES L EHERONENES
FEREGRIE 2ERSENRLE
The shopping mall and all car parking spaces, South Ocean Centre, Shops 100% 6,300 6,300  Medium
Dongmen Road Central, Shenzhen, the PRC (5] i
fRFERITRATREERONBENBSRAEFES
Various shops, No. 23 Qianmen, Dong Dajie, Dongcheng, Beijing, the PRC Shops 80.4% 17,100 13,700 Short
fir R R B T R B AT P R A28 ) S R B 9 Bk EE
Various shops in Zone B & C, Construction Materials Market, Shops 100% 97,000 97,000  Medium
Nanxun Economic Development District, Huzhou City, EE] s
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
IRPEIEANTRESEERER
BEREEMHENBERCENZHEH
Three apartment units, various shops and all car parking spaces of CITIC Plaza, Shops and 40% 35,300 14100  Medium
No. 233 Tianhe Road North, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, residential H
Guangdong Province, the PRC EEREE
AR REIERE BINT R &R K233 R EESM3EEEENL -
SHBRRMERES
Units 1 to 7 on 28th Floor, Offices of City Centre, Offices 100% 1,487 1,487 Medium
Junctions of Xikang Road and Chengdu Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC BRE HH
fRFERETNTEARREKBEROEETLBEHAZI-THREN
The shopping mall, office tower 1 and 2 of Shanghai Landmark Center, Offices and 60% 191,000 114,600  Medium
No. 88 Sichuan North Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC shops i
IR B AT ARE) I Bes EEEFROMBENES  —ER-EHAE  HAZERES
The shopping mall, office tower of Sinar Mas Plaza, Offices 25% 253,000 63,250  Medium
located in the Northern side of the International Passenger Transportation Cruise Terminal A% 8
of Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC
URPE LTI RSREALASERELGNBENE SRR
Various Portions of 9th floor of Tower 1, South Seas Center, No. 75 Mody Road, Offices 100% 425 425 Medium
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong /e HH
URBENEXDBEREDEBREFTL—HNENETHH

HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEYFR-EBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z—hhF+-_A=1+—HLLFE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT - FOR

SALE PURPOSE

BRRTUEX-FHERAR

Expected  (Approx.)  (Approx.) (Approx.)

Share- Stage of year of  Site area GFA  Attributable
Location Intended use  holding completion completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  GFA (sq.m.)
(K%)
(K#) (K%) EERE
HEER BHARR BER
it B REMR RiE ERER AEERES  (FHEXK)  (FAK) (5 K)
A parcel of land along the eastern Residential 100%  Planning stage - 804,000 836,000 836,000
shore of Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai County, FE REIE
Tianjin, the PRC
NP S
BafARSeE—tELi
Two parcels of land (Zone A, C2) Residential 100%  Construction 2020 - 2024 26,000 81,000 81,000
located at Ningpo Road, Heping District, and shops stage and —TZTER
Shenyang, the PRC FERES Planning stage ~ —Z-M%F
RPEESETNTRERE TRERR
gL (A - C2&) AR B
917,000

TE-NAFFR BRERER)ERAA
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FTEPE-—BER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-NFtTA=1T—HILFE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE EHERBE YR
(Approx.)
(Approx.) Attributable
GFA remain GFA remain
unsold as at unsold as at
(Approx.) (Approx.) 31 December 31 December
Share-  Site area GFA 2019 2019
Location Intended use holding (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(R#) (R#) B
RZE-hE RZB-IF
t=ZA=+-B t=ZA=t+-8H
(K#) (R#) i R E 2 i R E 2
WEEE BEAER BEAHRR BEAER
it B BER® RE (FHK) (¥ K) (£ K) (£ K)
Various shops in Zone B & C, Shops 100% 68,000 83,000 24,100 24,100
Construction Materials Market, Gk
Nanxun Economic Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
f R BEDITE N
BREERER
BERKEMHBER
BRERCENZHAR
Various residential units in Tianjin Eka Residential 100% 54,000 150,000 17,000 17,000
Garden, South of Hongai South Road, F=E
Nanki District, Tianjin, the PRC
URFPBERETERE
AEEBRABREZRER s ZHEE
Various residential units and shops Residential and 100% 95,000 189,000 18,400 18,400
in Jiangmen Eka Garden, Jianghai District, shops
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province, the PRC TERHER
URPEEREIMTLER
IFRRER ZHETREH
Various residential units and shops Residential and 100% 41,000 183,000 17,5600 17,500
(Zone B, B1-B4, B6-B11, Zone C1, C5-C6) shops
in Shenyang Eka Garden, Ningpo Road, TERHER
Heping District, Shenyang, the PRC
URPEEGETMTRERRBSZEER
(BEB1-B4 - B6-B11 * C12C5-C6) 2 I =
R
77,000
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HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
EBER(ER)BERLQF

9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NRERDIAREME 755 EF 0151912
www.hkcholdings.com
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